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ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED £ #: 1 2 45 [ 5 KL A ]

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s turnover from continuing operations for the year ended 31st
March, 2009 was approximately HK$145.1 million, showing a reduction of
HK$455.7 million from the comparative figure of HK$600.8 million mainly
due to significant reduction in proceeds from the sale of securities during the
year. The gross profit decreased from approximately HK$76.9 million last
year to approximately HK$44.1 million for current year.

Income from loan financing amounted to HK$21.8 million for the year,
showing a decrease as compared with HK$31.8 million last year mainly
because of the disposal of a loan due from an associate last year.

Since Concordia (as defined below) in current year capitalised all its
borrowing cost as part of the cost for its property development, the Group’s
interest income from the shareholder’s loan to Concordia, which is included
in other income, was eliminated on equity accounting for the results of
Concordia. Correspondingly, the share of loss of Concordia as an associate
also reduced as compared with last year.

The Group recorded a loss for the year of HK$461.8 million, as compared
to HK$144.4 million last year, mainly due to the following unrealised losses
provided in the income statement:

1.

The US financial turmoil has been hammering the world-wide
economy in all aspects including the stock markets in the second half
of the year. The drastic price deterioration of listed securities caused
the Group to record a loss on financial instruments of HK$169.3
million, HK$167.5 million of which represented unrealised loss due
to drop in market price at year end, as compared with a net gain of
HK$76.4 million earned for last year.

The sentiment of the property market has been greatly affected by the
financial turbulence and pessimistic outlook of the economy. Both
transaction volume and price of properties in Hong Kong in general
experienced a sharp decline during the second half of the year. As a
result, impairment losses of HK$54.1 million and HK$92.6 million
respectively on the properties under development and properties held
for sale were incurred at the balance sheet date.

Property Development and Investment

Macau:

Empresa De Fomento Industrial E Comercial Concérdia, S.A. (“Concordia”),
of which the Group has an effective interest of 35.5%, has taken the last
couple of years to complete all formalities with the Macau Government
Authority enabling Concordia to develop the newly re-aligned lots into
over 4,000 luxury residential units and 80 villas, state-of-the art clubhouse
facilities. An ultra-luxury hotel occupying 800,000 sq. ft. catered for
Japanese tourists together with shopping facilities and Hip Food and
Beverage outlets will be included as Phase I development which is scheduled
to be completed towards the end of 2011.

205 ol g
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d) X0 Wl i ()

Property Development and Investment (Cont’d) MR R R (A

Macau: (Cont’d) M (4F)

Marketing of the 1,356 residential units in Phase I will start around Christmas 45— HA 1 356/ £1 22 B4 22 #E R L 45k — %
2009. TR

In May 2008, the Group sold another residential unit and car parking space at  jid — & E N\4E 7 7 > A< 5 [F H B 16 W i g
Pearl on the Lough at a profit. The remaining portfolio of property inventory — — il {£ 5= B i Sz {5 Hi{v; > 3 A 3% 38 &) v
in Macau consists of 44 residential units at Zhu Kuan Mansion tastefully — F| o jA Y 2 9 2E 8% N HFE B A& S FE 0L R BR

upgraded to a high standard, 15 residential units and 15 car parking spaces at  JT. & O g% T 4% 4 e i TH H 2 448 fE &
Pearl on the Lough. The units will be relaunched for sale or lease once market B8 {3; > D Kz Vi B 3 ik 22 154043 =2 B4 S 1511

conditions turn more favourable. P BN o T % S B A T D e R T
HE B A
In September 2008, the Group acquired the entire interests in Keen Step  jid = EE N4ESLH » AEEHIRBEEBEARA

Corporation Limited, which possesses over 90% property interests at No. &) 7 2 ¥HE 25 » HI5A 7 EETH 2 798/8190%
7 Moreton Terrace. In December 2008, the Group has further acquired the — #ZEHESS o N —FEFNE+ - H » REEHIE
entire interest in Pine Cheer Limited, which possesses the whole block — — B AR AR 2 &whEss - HiskfA
interests at Nos. 19-21 Shelter Street. Subsequent to year end, in June 2009,  {Zffifk; 19— 21 ¥R TEY) ¥ 2 W) M 2E - BB
the Group has completed the acquisition of the entire interests in Fortress 454 Hjid —EEfL4ESNH > A5 [F1 52 Bl g
Jet International Limited and Sino Able Investments Limited, which possess &4 [ [ A FL 2 6] M HE 53 & A R 7 230
over 90% property interests at Nos. 35, 37, 39-39A, 39B and 39C Tung  Jich > B4 PR A PR A F) MFEBRCE G IR A
Lo Wan Road and the whole block interests at No. 33 Tung Lo Wan Road, &)%) 7l 35 45 40 8 #5635 98 ~ 3758 ~ 3998 —39
respectively. The Group currently intends to redevelop these properties on  $EA ~ 39%EB [ 395ECH 2B 90% 2 ) JEHE
an amalgamation basis as up-market food and beverage outlets and hotel (the 25 & §f#F i 3395 R IE E 2 WEMEZS o R
“Causeway Bay Project”). S 0 R A % S R R
AREEE T ([SREHEIHE )

The 2 adjacent blocks of building located at 703 and 705, Nathan Road (the — 7s £ [3] 3 A5 {37 7 38 25078 703 58 2 705 5% 14 4 Ik
“Nathan Road Project”), in which the Group has entire interest, have been WA F ([ B ITEH ) 2 27BHE2E > %W
evacuated and demolition is in progress. The site will be developed into a B (EF B & > WIFETIHIF o %
ginza-style retails, food and beverage complex with aggregate gross floor &1 8% J /4 48 73 SR T F 4 4 29,000°F )5 R 2 41
area of approximately 29,000 sq. ft. which completion is expected toward the — Jit X ZE KR MRLESTEE > HEH2IFEH® —
end of 2010. F—TAERTE, -

During the current year, 1 unit at Talon Tower on Connaught Road West was MR 4E B > 585 %8 Y %2 [ 4% S L o 1 BE {57
sold at a profit. As at 31st March, 2009, there were 6 residential units and 1 S WHEEFE o PN EBEIE=H

commercial unit remained unsold. =+ — H ¥ Ref AT 12 B M LR v SE AL
.
PRC: i -

The title transfer of the parcel of land at Hengqin, Zhuhai, located right [ f% ok 15 78 ¥ 5 2R Vg W 3E — 08 H#h 2 BF
on the waterfront across from Cotai, Macau is still pending upon lifting #8358 FH 55 R By Hb T BT 455 hef 38 Hb [ 2+ Hh
of moratorium for land transfer within the Henggqin area imposed by local #8388 [fij {/} 2K {3 P o 3% TH H 22 b % 1 F& &9
government. The site area is approximately 26,000 m? with plot ratio of 26,000/ K > Huf R 1.6 » AR 15 BRIk
1.6 which permitted uses under prevailing town planning guidelines are  T#i#|455] > A2 BIEME - 5 -
commercial, residential, hotel and retail. WG A i o



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
A&

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 7t 3 i 45 [H 5 R A 5]
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Property Development and Investment (Cont’d) B R (A
PRC: (Cont’d) i ()

Outlined below is a summary of the Group’s prevailing interest in significant A5 F G /E8t Rt 2 T E Y LT A RE
properties held for development/sale: AR -

Attributable

Group’s Gross

interest Floor Area

Location Usage A Pidli
% ik Pk 2 £t i
(%) (sq. ft.)

(F7R)

Concordia land situated at Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Macau Residential/Commercial/Hotel 35.5 2,250,000
PR £ PR B 2 B T /¥ W

44 residential units at Edificio Comercial Zhu Kuan Mansion, Residential 100 57,400
Avenida Xian Xing Hai nos. 81-121, =z
Rua de Londres nos. 148-254,
Avenida do Governador Jaime Silvério Marques, Macau
LA B I RIS B8 1-121 5%
T 148-254%F
G VPRI ARG B
BRI KB 2 448 11 B 37

15 residential units and 15 car parking spaces at Pearl Residential 100 37,000
on the Lough, Tiha da Taipa, junto 2 Estrada Nordeste da g
Taipa Aterro da Bafa de Pac On, Macau
DL A F L%
POS H B W]
ISR A
RSt g

Nathan Road Project situated at 703 and 705, Nathan Road, Retailing 100 29,000
Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong T

LA v JURERE Ay S 0E
70355 K705 5% < W PoEE B

Causeway Bay Project comprising:

FEHETEE > 045

- Nos. 19-21 Shelter Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong r 100 ‘
— EE B (5 TR 192198

—No. 7 Moreton Terrace, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Over 90
— A v SRR R TR 7 90

- Nos. 35, 37, 39-39A, 39B and 39C Tung Lo Wan Road, Hotel/Office/Shops { Over 90 } 157,300
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong WG/ WAE /T 90

— SR IS E 35 5% - 3798
3958 —399%A ~ 39%%B K394C

—No. 33 Tung Lo Wan Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
~ FH 30 \ w0
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Golf and Leisure T T R EBR 1 P

The turnover from the golf and leisure business during the year was HK$44.1  AAREE > KA SRR RIE M EH 2 &%
million (2008: HK$62.6 million) with a segmental loss of HK$5.8 million  %H £ ¥ % 44,100,000 70 ( = & & )\ 4E  dE
(2008: HK$56.5 million, inclusive of HK$45 million impairment losses  62,600,0007%) = 23 &5 & 18 £ 7 5,800,000 70
on prepaid lease payments of leasehold land and premium on prepaid lease (&% /\4E : #¥556,500,0007T > 75 ik
payments of leasehold land). The gloomy economic climate has adversely 45,000,000 22 FH & + 3t FE 45 FH & 3K T8 DL 2 FHL
affected the golf resort operation during the second half of the year which & 1 b 76 1+ Fil & 208 > %58 2 WHER) -
was the peak season for the Sun Valley Golf Resort in Sanya. However, the &8 % 5 S G 1R A AN 4F B R 2B AR 3 s W R sk
Group had been able to contain its loss by implementation of various cost- i A+ 45 7 4% A RS2 28 > T | 2B 4F B — 0]
control measures. AR AT UG 7S = T R BRI R AR G50 2 HE 2 o SR
T > A 582 B 27 2000 AT 25 T 452 1) ol AR 455 il T 45
DL il Fo g -

The Group is currently carrying out the construction of members’ village, 745 [ H §ij 1F A 4T I8k 4 =5 17 J< Bk 3R AB 44 3
initially of around 50 villas within the Sun Valley Golf Resort to provide Bl 7d6r 5 JFRAT - )9 & K450 B 2 > 3
its members a pleasant accommodation for their get-away holidays. iy /5 Hiér 5 #2878 {1 15 B2 18 L) =2 2 IR
Simultaneously, around 300 new membership will be promoted which 1 o BLjy[E] I - F&A G B K £930010 25 &
holders can enjoy these members’ village on a timeshare basis. In addition, — £& » J545 F W fe s E] L =LA T & B H o
the enlarged hotel development plan of approximately 66,800 m? including [ A) » i 2 1F 5 98 i 5138 ir i e 2 A 2
28 units of deluxe villas, 3 hotel buildings, a conference centre, a resort  %66,800°F 77 & - H A 613F28 M Z2FEHI B ~ 3
facility building and a driving range within the Sun Valley Golf Resort & )5 # 5= ~ |l &gk vpors ~ 108 B AR 5% i B
(the “Sanya Hotel Project”) has been formally approved by the authority. 5= K 1{fi A &Lk & 15 B R BRE RAAL 430 2 ' 7

Development works will start in due course. RERSUERYG ([ =HNIEIEE ]) - ZHA %
A B B LE AL o > B R R A R R A
Jti T e

After the disposal of the entire interest in the Lotus Hill Golf Resort, the A 1 8 3 {6 1) = #F F Bk E AR AT 2 & 3B HE 25
Group remains as the lessee of the golf resort as well as a partner to the % » AS4E B 4445 5 3% 5 W0 R BRE B A 2 & FH

development of villas therein. The villas development is progressing as N UL K 3% 8 T e BR BB AT A 2 Bl B 7 B8 e iy
scheduled and over 40 villas will be built which sale is expected in the second £ o FI| 27 %% & T2 40 W EFT - S35 16 B 728 48 4

half of 2009. A0FHIHII B > FEI A B R JUAE T 24 i B 4
.
Securities Investment BRRE

The dire financial tsunami and bearish sentiments overcast the global &7 I 1) 4 i v UGl K2 BE T SR A AS 4F B R 22 4F
financial market in the second half of the year and as a result, the Group’s &2 3kE @R FEsE > Witk » NEF 2
securities investment activities have inevitably been affected significantly 35 5 % & Vi Bh A A] 8 G0 b <7 ) & K A F 52
and adversely. During the year, turnover and segmental loss from securities 2 o JAAREF - B RENAR 2 25 25 My
investment were HK$53.5 million (2008: HK$424.6 million) and HK$169.8 & &5 48 4> Fll 2 & % 53,500,000 7 ( = & & )\
million (2008: a segmental profit of HK$59.1 million) respectively. As at  4F : #&#424,600,0007T) & 1 #169,800,000 70
31st March, 2009, the Group had available-for-sale investments and financial (223 /\4F © 4333 A % %959,100,0000C) ©
assets at fair value through profit or loss in an aggregate sum of HK$214.4 A - EZHAF=H =+—H » AL HEH 2

million, mainly comprised shares listed in Hong Kong and Singapore. ﬁ\ é P& B3 N EYIE R st A B3 2 4 m
B A 36 By U 214,400,000 0T > E AL 1E
B s BT bl 2 ey o

Financing R

During the year, the Group had interest income from convertible bonds, A A 4E JF > A4 5 2 vl Ha i f 25 - ME U

related companies and other loan receivables of HK$27.3 million. As at 8 /N &) 35 TH 2 HoAth 22 2 2 1) B Ik A B o

31st March, 2009, debt portion of convertible bonds, unsecured loans and  27,300,0007C © A —ZEENAE=H =+—H

interest due from related companies and other loan receivables of the Group 745 [#] 7 n] #a i f5 25 2 AU ETR 0y ~ BN &)

amounted to HK$37 million, HK$48.4 million and HK$208.7 million 7 41 HE Hl £ 25 Kz JE A5 1) &L D J S5 Al JRE Wi £ 22

respectively. 3 7 2% ¥ 137,000,000 7T~ #5 48,400,000 7T
J s 5208,700,0007C
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FINANCIAL REVIEW S5 ol R
To further strengthen the Group’s capital base, the Company had completed /5 ¥ — 5 Il i A< 42 [ > & A KLt > A A
the rights issue in August 2008, pursuant to which 9,286,554,078 new  © #t = & % /U4E N A 58 At B - $E 1tE >
ordinary shares were issued at a subscription price of HK$0.07 each on  9,286,554,078 % 7 1% 3 Jk & e 45 — e i
the basis of three rights shares for every share held. The net proceeds of /) J# %8 = & fH B A% 17y 2 5 ¥ 422 45 1k 150,07
approximately HK$626.9 million were raised for general working capital.  JG 2 78 B8 8847 « Ir 15 2 IE T 5 &0
After the rights issue, there were about 12,382 million shares issued by the  #¥626,900,000 7 /3 7 — i & 58 & 4 o ML A%
Company. In March 2009, the Company completed the capital reorganisation & > 7~/ 7 B #47 £12,382,000,000 % % 173
which, among other things, included a 25-to-1 share consolidation such that A “FEEFJLE=H » AN FE WA EAL -
the issued ordinary shares of the Company have been reduced to about 471 /A4 DL =+ T B A AR & 1F 2 — B 173 2
million. The capital reorganisation had no financial effect on the Group. et & i - WA A R 2 BT R IR 2 4
471,000,000 8¢ o B B A 3 7 42 [ M S AT fo]
[ipssig

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy with regard to its A< 52 [F] i H: 4% i 25 0 B 40 8 1R 1l i M B 6 1B
overall business operations. In addition to the convertible note payables, 5% o [ AJ 4 gk Z2 48 E AT 3K IE Ab > A4 B 4 5
a variety of credit facilities is maintained so as to meet its working capital ~ ZIEFEME - DB HESEESIE o
requirements.

As at 31st March, 2009, total borrowings from financial institutions ® ~EEHNFE=H=+—H > &M EHEME
amounted to HK$123.5 million, of which HK$40.7 million was repayable £ 4% %5 /& W& % 123,500,000 7C > & | ¥k ¥
after one year. The net gearing ratio of the Group, calculated with reference 40,700,000 7C/§ A —FEME R o N FENIE
to the bank borrowings of HK$123.5 million and the fair value of the liability = =-+—H » A& 2 1§ &k SR A
component of convertible note payables of HK$1,336.1 million, offsetting ~ 0.64 > Wi —FH /FE=H =+—HZLFE
with the pledged bank deposits and the bank and cash balances of HK$168.6 0.6 » # 1 £ 5t F 4047 & €89 % 123,500,000 7T
million, and the Group’s shareholders’ funds of HK$2,002.1 million, was K ] # 5% 22 15 JE A<} 0B & 5350 10 2 8 (B
0.64 as at 31st March, 2009, as compared to 0.6 as at 31st March, 2008. #1,336,100,0007C » N HLHS T AEIFERAT A7 3L
SRAT I Bl 4 &5 B 7 1 168,600,000 70 LA J A4
9] AR R 4 5 2,002, 100,000 0T

About HK$89.4 million of the borrowings from financial institutions were %% #:89.400,000 7T 2 4= il M i 18 68 T 4% 12 B)
interest-bearing with variable rates while interest of the remaining loan  F|Z&FHE > Wi T A9 K R4S B 4% & E
balances was calculated on fixed rates. The management anticipates that 25 E o & B TR E AR 1 35 2 F 26 4
interest rate remains stable in the capital market and therefore no hedge is  {FE&E > WCHFZE WAT A0 A i F) 2 30k 3 4 H ¢
to be made against any unfavourable fluctuation in interest rate. Most of the 1 o ZS 45 [H K &FR43 & s I B EH LW - A
assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, % K RFIWEHI(E > $FEF D5 > AEEN
Renminbi and Macau Pataca, and hence the Directors considered that the 4 i 3 {T-{a] &5 K [ R @iy

Group was not subject to any material adverse exchange rate exposure.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES I BN 320 0% 355 T 8o

As at 31st March, 2009, the number of employees of the Group was 553 R " EENFE=A=+—H  XEHZIEE
(2008: 1,003). Employees are remunerated according to their qualifications — A%/A553 A (T FZF /4L © 1,003 N) o A%
and experience, job nature and performance, under the pay scales aligned % 8 1T 2 & JiE K &858y ~ TAEMRL R R DL I
with market conditions. Other benefits to employees include medical,  T7 35 Hr P % I /& 2 M 38 o Hofh4g 2 48 A1)
insurance cover, share options and retirement schemes. ELFEEE - PRB ~ BERRE JORIRET# -
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OUTLOOK BB

The Group will continue its investment strategy to look for quality properties 7 £ [ 6 475 14 % B 18 77 20 % 4 b i 48 7
by taking a more prudent approach with primary focus on enhancing the ¥ & 44 2 W FMEE ERMHEY O EEY X
synergistic value of its existing portfolio. Based on the prevailing plan, &M o AR H T2 713 > Bid b - 87
the developments of the Concordia land, the Causeway Bay Project, the — #FiJEH ~ M¥ECETEE k=0 5 EHH 2 %
Nathan Road Project and the Sanya Hotel Project will be completed over the — J&& % i & 2 SUAF AR 48 95 A% > 17 7% 58 BURE > TE
coming years. By the time of their respective completion, it is anticipated 74 {4 w] 22 B T — {1 4 375 15 L R4 o
that the Group can take full benefit in the next economy cycle up-swing. For st HA fr M 2Em 5 > BHEH T E -
other properties held for sale, after taking into account the existing market 45 1 & 52 /£ H AR 18 (E 5 it A HKTF > 3fF A0
condition, the management considers that their carrying value is reasonable Bl & @ # ey i 6 o

which may be sold when there are suitable opportunities.

The effect of the quantitative easing policies implemented by the 32 Z BIEF I 2 AL B EOR r s 2 > i
governments of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the United - F & JL4E L2} 4E - didg ARILFE ([
States of America and most European countries gradually emerge during B |) ~ 35 &j(iﬁ%\@i’i)ll B R 4% 7% 3% i 18
the first half of 2009 and there is a better sentiment over the economy in the ¥ > ¥t 7] Fj§ 5K 2 BB B 15 465 4 Frik & -
foreseeable future. There is a general belief that the Greater China region & @ ¥4 52 /& K rf 3% Hly [ }{%Z%%‘{E] HE 4 il v Vil
will be the first to recover from the financial tsunami. Given that the interest 15§ %t > #i[7 o $8 i FR A4S AMEA - HADTE
rate remains at record low and public confidence in financial products need B[ E K R FEEB SRl E M ZF L > AL
certain time to rebuild, investors in general prefer property as their core ¥ [ ¥ LI EME B H FEEHRE - FikY %
investments. The property market in Hong Kong has stabilised from the — ¥ H A a2 > misc & L AER 4 A i
recent meltdown with improvements in both transaction volume and price.  F& o H1 iR AS 4 B AL & R BT A (7 7R IR ~ 75
In view that all properties in its portfolio, which are located in Macau, Hong % /1 [ 22 #) 2 44 D) &5 FHRAE A% i 5 HL B &5 A AE
Kong and the PRC, were acquired at reasonable costs with superb intrinsic &8 > A4 [H A 15 0 it T 5 4 — A0 16 #E 14 BE
value, the Group is optimistic in capturing future capital gains from these %% &R E AL

investments when the market further recovers.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS pegzxinyl

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group’s general credit facilities granted by banks ~ Ji* “EZJUE=H =+—H » 17T L & @ #
and financial institutions were secured by pledges of the Group’s properties % ) AN 42 5] $52 Y 2 — A A ) A AS 45 [H
held for sale in an aggregate value of HK$223.5 million, bank balances of % {F #& ¥ 223,500,000 7C 2 T & ¥y % - ki
HK$44.6 million, property, plant and equipment of HK$0.4 million and  44,600,0007C2 $R1T45 8% ~ #E:#5400,0007C2 9
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$1.1 2 ~ Hehl M i 5 S 407 951,100,000 7T Z 4% 24
million. SPARA MR Xt AR AR < 4l A AR o
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SECURITIES IN ISSUE CE T

On 5th August, 2008, the Company issued a total of 9,286,554,078 new & " EE AL/ H H H - A2 dl AR Bk %
ordinary shares at a subscription price of HK$0.07 per share pursuant to the 458 — BB A1 = B AL Ay (DL K 32 4553
rights issue on the basis of three rights shares (with warrants in the proportion [ - 1. Hi A3t H B 405 UR 26 DU 153 5 B HE w5 ) (T {3t
of four warrants for every fifteen rights shares subscribed) for every share ¥ |) 2 3Lt » J sl S & R HE0.07 0 81T &
held (the “Rights Issue”). As a term and condition of the Rights Issue, the — $£9 286,554,078 BT 138 A o ARFEMLL 2 M5k
Company issued a total of 2,476,414,328 warrants to the subscribers of the — FAGEf: » A\ E] B 8475 352,476,414,328 1373
rights shares conferring the rights to the holders thereof to subscribe in cash ~ HCHERE T HEE B IEN > MR T HBSA
for 2,476,414,328 warrant shares at an initial exercise price of HK$0.105 AR Fi 401 4 47 15 155 5 R 0 e HEE 36 FGE 7 e T
per warrant share (the “Warrants”). A total of 92 Warrants with fractional  0.1057T A 31 4 528 12.,476,414,328 % 58 B HE 35
entitlement were not issued to the subscribers but have been issued and ~ HEfy ([ FRBCHERS |) o sIA AR HI A —F
retained for the benefit of the Company as disclosed in the Company’s  Z/NFE/NH —H Z MG EE - &390
announcement dated 1st August, 2008. B FETE Ay 2 TR I BT TN -

M BATIE AL R ORE -

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated 1st August, 2008,  ZX 2 AR AT HM A —FF NE/NH —H
as a result of the Rights Issue, the conversion price of both the zero coupon 2 A » BN EATHLAL - AN FR ZFF
convertible notes due 2010 in the aggregate outstanding principal amount of ~ F4FE /N H +— H #8172 —F —~FFE P =E
HK$471,050,000 issued by the Company on 11th August, 2005 (the “First &\ o] 45 JJ& 248 (i R AT A8 2 A 4 S04 o vk e
2010 Convertible Notes”) and the zero coupon convertible notes due 2010 471,050,0007T) ([ 45—t = F —F4F n] ff ff 2=
in the aggregate outstanding principal amount of HK$17,476,177 issued % |) XA A Alir ZFENF RN H/NH BT 2
by the Company on 8th June, 2006 (the “Second 2010 Convertible Notes”) %% —Z4F 31| 1] J& w] i f ZL48 (¥ R AT(H 2
has been adjusted from HK$0.44 per share to HK$0.227 per share while 4 #%H B ¥ 17,476,17770) ([ 55 3t &
the conversion price of the 1% convertible notes due 2011 in the aggregate ~— — & 4F A #2248 |) 2 W3S © th &5 Ak
outstanding principal amount of HK$906,000,000 issued by the Company .44 7% 78 % % 45 [ # %60.227 ¢ » A2 74
on 15th June, 2006 (the “2011 Convertible Notes”), has been adjusted ~ —FEENFENHA A H BT ~F— 47
from HK$0.70 per share to HK$0.361 per share, all of which took effect 1] 1% nJ Bk Z2 48 (3 R AT 2 A 4 4058 o e
retroactively on 12th July, 2008. #5906,000,0007T) ([ —F——4Fn] R 248 ])
2 S ARV A1 E A s W 0. 700 R 2 A s T
0.3617C > LAt fir A St (B 3 — % 4L
A+ HIBWAER -

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated 12th August,  ZXiE¥iANF B A - FE/NFE/NAH+ " H
2008, as a result of the Rights Issue, the exercise price of the outstanding 2 /A M » A REITHLR > KA RIRPEH —F
share options granted by the Company pursuant to the share option scheme & —4E /\ H 75 H £ 4k 22 15 BHE 51 31 1 i
adopted on 26th August, 2002 (the “Options”) has been adjusted from " FFE/N4E /N H I H % H 2 W R AT (5 B A%
HK$0.50 per share to HK$0.315 per share for the Options granted on £ ([ BEAEAE |) 2 4718 2 4 Bk %0.50 0
15th August, 2006 and from HK$0.67 per share to HK$0.422 per share  #f % % 45 [t #: #:0.315 70 > it ~FE L4
for the Options granted on 27th July, 2007. In addition, the aggregate of & = +-& H 32 i 2 M A 47 5 I e Al 2 A7 8
25,300,000 outstanding Options granted by the Company on 15th August, & HI i & B %50.67 70 70 1 2 5 B 10,422
2006 exercisable during the exercise period from 15th August, 2006 to 14th 7T « M4 » KA E R ZFEENFE/NH L H
August, 2008 has been adjusted to 40,125,800 outstanding Options and the #3724 325,300,000 43 it 7 47 {f I FEEHE (aJ
aggregate of 61,700,000 outstanding Options granted by the Company on  j* “EENF/NH T+ HE ~FE/NF/NH
27th July, 2007 exercisable during the exercise periods from 27th July, 2008 -+ DU H 17 {8 ] [l 47 4% ) E 3 %% £40,125,80015
or 27th July, 2009 (as the case may be) to 26th July, 2011 have been adjusted ¥ R AT BEBEAE - Wi AR A RN —FE L4+
to 97,856,200 outstanding Options. A=+t HEREZA361,700,0000 1 R ATHE
WEIBEHE (A — B FENFLH L HR F
FHAELAZ LR BRERNE) 2 2%
——FEHZ N HATHEBIEAT M) g s
97.856,20017 [ ARAT il B JBEHE
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SECURITIES IN ISSUE (Cont’d) v ()
On 14th August, 2008, a total of the 40,125,800 adjusted Options at the — jA = FE /\4FE /) H +PUH » KT (018 4

adjusted exercise price of HK$0.315 per share were lapsed on maturity. 4 % 4k %0.315 70 22 & 3£ 40,125,800 17 &% 34 %

During the period from 14th August, 2008 to 13th March, 2009, a total of the  [i# [ # & A 2| HE £ 238 o i B ZE N\ N H

5,392,400 adjusted Options at the adjusted exercise price of HK$0.422 per U HFE —ZZAE=H +=H K - K5

share were lapsed upon resignation of a director and certain employees of the #8417 {#i {5 /4 & B s %5 0.422 0 2 5 4£5,392,400

Company. 73 566 81 R S RO HEE I AR % ) — 4 9 S A T
B BRI

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated 13th March, Z(iRskiANF H¥L " ZZAHE=H+=H
2009, as a result of the reorganisation of the share capital of the Company 2 /M i » i AR AN Bl EST IRAS A4 (W K &
involving every twenty five issued shares of HK$0.01 each consolidated into .+ 7 i 45 % T {E #s #50.01 702 B B T4 &
one consolidated share (the “Consolidated Share”) of HK$0.25 and the paid-  {}f £ — % 0 {H #s %2025 70 2 & BERR 40 ([ A4
up capital of each Consolidated Share reduced from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 {3 |) DA J2 #6545 % A 05 B0y 2 008 A e s ik
by cancelling HK$0.24 (the “Capital Reorganisation”), the conversion prices (.25 7T HI| ¥k % #0.24 70 & 1 %0.0170) ([ A
of the First 2010 Convertible Notes, the Second 2010 Convertible Notes and  F 4 |) » 2 —H#Ht - F —F4E [ I =P8 - 2
the 2011 Convertible Notes have been adjusted from HK$0.227 per share, — — it —E —ZAFE A ik HE | —F ——4FE7]
HK$0.227 per share and HK$0.361 per share respectively to HK$5.675  #a [ 548 > 5 #5082 &840 Bl B 45 1 e 10,227
per share, HK$5.675 per share and HK$9.025 per share respectively while 57 ~ 4 B i #0.207 50 S 45 B s 120,361 T 3 2
the maximum numbers of shares to be issued upon the full conversion of /A 45 Ik He M65.675 7T ~ 4 1% He 965.675 T M 15
the First 2010 Convertible Notes, the Second 2010 Convertible Notes and g #:#9.0255C » M AR UL —#H =% —
the 2011 Convertible Notes have been adjusted from 2,075,110,125 shares, — AR A] H Il B 48 « &5 — it — T — TAE A # i
76,987,563 shares and 2,509,695,282 shares respectively to 83,004,399 oy [y — & — —AE A Ha fr EHE UG T 8T 2
shares, 3,079,502 shares and 100,387,795 shares respectively. Moreover, the B¢ % i 8t H 2 #8407l 112,075,110,125 BEA%
exercise price of the Options granted on 27th July, 2007 has been adjusted {5y ~ 76,987,563 % & 153 % 2,509,695,282 1% f&
from HK$0.422 per share to HK$10.55 per share while the maximum /38 % /83,004,399 & % 4 ~ 3,079,502 JI% %
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of such Options has {43 }7 100,387,795 BBty o babh > did#EAT %
been adjusted from 92,463,800 shares to 3,698,552 shares as a result of the R4 » W _FEXLELH -+ EHBHZ
Capital Reorganisation. In addition, the subscription price of the Warrants [ i BEfT (0718 48 H 45 s 10,422 T 50 38 /%
has been adjusted from HK$0.105 per share to HK$2.625 per share while 45 s %10.557C » 1 5% 25 s I REEAT i 158
the subscription rights of one warrant has been adjusted from 1 share to 0.04 % ¥ 2817 2~ B 1 5% = B H 2 £ 11 92,463,800
share while the maximum number of shares to be allotted and issued upon [ J% 15 54 #& /43,698,552 B 14y = b abh > it
exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the warrants has been adjusted  JEfTIR AR T4 > RIS 2 2B EC LN
from 2,476,414,420 shares to 99,056,576 shares as a result of the Capital ¢ #0.105 7070 A 5 s %02 6257C > Mi—
Reorganisation. 43 38 2 3 TR 60 o1 1 A 0
F50.04 R B0y > IR R R HE a2 w0 i
FTAEAR A T O 88 T 384T < ey e A B 48
F12,476,414,420 1 /1 f73 i 8 75 99,056,576 i /i
fiy -

As at 31st March, 2009, there were 470,917,484 ordinary shares in issue, A " BENFE=H =+—H > B 8/T %8B
a total of the 3,698,552 adjusted Options at the adjusted exercise price of  /%470,917,484 % ~ &8 o 47 (41 15 /2 15 B
HK$10.55 per share and the 99,056,576 adjusted Warrants at the adjusted 10.55TC 22 £ o 3% 18 e HE A 4L /4 3,698,55210
exercise price of HK$2.625 per share remain outstanding. DL R 88 o B AT AE o 1 IR HE M 2.625 70 2 B8

BT W AR AT 2 BRBCRERS £599,056,57615

Save as disclosed above, there was no movement in the issued share capital [ | SCF % 55 & b » AN 5 B 8847 i A i #%
of the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2009. BELIFEZH = — B R A AR AT ]

ST -
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APPRECIATION EE ]

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to the 7 A G5 M HE 6wt IR 22 &0 ) S0 ~ S L
shareholders for their support, to the management and staff for their & 8 T 2 iR E L LB P - B R ESEY
dedicated efforts and to our clients, consultants and partners for all their A # & —F 4 T 2 B & W B B A 0 K

valuable assistance offered during this past year. At o

Cheung Hon Kit EX 4

Chairman R

Hong Kong, 24th July, 2009 T XX NAELAZ A
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DIRECTORS i

Executive Directors WiTHESE

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, aged 55, joined the Company as Chairman in April SR ®LBE & > 555% » it “FF HAEM A N
2005 and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated A A A28 & £ 8 M AN 6 2 F W& A 7 2
from the University of London with a bachelor of arts degree. Mr. Cheung ~ #  o ff S MuHOK 2 > 6 28218
has over 31 years of experience in real estate development, property {7 o i J5 4= it s 85 J@ ~ W £ E e A 2
investment and corporate finance, and has worked in key executive positions il & J7 [ f& i = + — 4E &8 B o 1% %9 A F
in various leading property development companies in Hong Kong. He is 2 [i] . 48 44 {7 (1) ) 3£ %8 B N w8 4T £ %
the chairman and executive director of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited 47 BLHEHS o i A 7k 28 e %8 (#2 ) A PR 2\
(01189.HK), an executive director of ITC Corporation Limited (00372.HK),  (01189.HK)Z T Ji M #4738 & - flrf > 34
an independent non-executive director of International Entertainment  [H£5 FR 2\ 7 (00372.HK) Z .47 % &5 ~ B PR 5t
Corporation (08118.HK) and Future Bright Holdings Limited (formerly %475 R\ 7] (08118.HK) M £ 5 £ 5 A BR 2w
known as Innovo Leisure Recreation Holdings Limited) (00703.HK). Mr.  ( §ij i % 37 %% 44§25 B A FR 23 71) (00703.HK)
Cheung previously held directorship as an independent non-executive 2 M 7 JE AT E F o s A HEMRE
director of Towngas China Company Limited (formerly known as Panva Gas 74 FR 2 &) (B #f 7 /TR S 5 e A BR 2 &)
Holdings Limited) (01083.HK) (resigned on 23rd May, 2007). (01083.HK) Z M 32 AT # = R —F X L4

AH -+ =HEHL) -

Mr. Chan Fut Yan, aged 55, joined the Company as Managing Director in BB B4 > 5558 » R FFLFE A MA

April 2005 and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is also /5 7 4\ ] # 55 40 48 ] ] AR 0 6] 22 % [ 8 2 )

a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan has 2 &% - IR A AN R HMEE G 2 KA -

over 36 years of experience in the local construction field specialising in site [ 55 A= j A i 8 58 2E RS 3 = /S AF 58 B - 2

supervision, planning of works and progress monitoring. He is an executive v i 1% B8~ TRESR &I Mo bfs T s T

director of ITC Corporation Limited (00372.HK). PE o 18 5 T8 A SE 4 145 BR 2 7] (00372.HK)
ZHATHESR -

Mr. Cheung Chi Kit, aged 43, joined the Company in 2005 and is now  JR&EBEEA > 435 > R - FEZLFEMAARL
an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the ) » B AR NG HITHEE - BRAAETALE
finance and accounting functions of the Group. He is also a director of  [H 2 BAME M fr st TAE o IR & AR 2N 7l 2 KM
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung has over 21 years of JB/A R Z #53 o RACELEF - Gt MHHE
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management. He holds 4y miAGd — | —F 588 o 1 i5H &5
a bachelor’s degree in accounting. Mr. Cheung is a member of The Hong - #4{ o 3R A HFER G A & - HFHbEE
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute — #FFh /A6 &S BB b E AT B A6
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and 2 ® &

Administrators.

Mr. Lai Tsan Tung, David, aged 55, joined the Company in 2006 and is  $EBE W 4 > 555% - N “FENEMAARL
now an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Lai is also a director of 7] » B ARG FATE D o« B ERAARL
various subsidiaries of the Company and he is responsible for the leisure &) £ F [l JB A 6] 2 #H > W & EAE EH AL+
and golf operations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He  # A RILANE ([ HF B |) 2 184 [ I i A8 R Bk 2
graduated from the University of Birmingham with a bachelor’s degree in 75 o R NMAMHE KL > 6 L AR TR
civil engineering. Mr. Lai has over 30 years of experience in the construction = £&{7 o #f Jc A= fE @ 48 2Rk = H4E 48 Bg -
field and has worked for several international construction companies at a 37 # 3& 4T 22 ] [0 P 78 58 2\ W) 22 /a1 #1045 PO
senior managerial position. 7 e
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DIRECTORS (Cont’d) W ()

Executive Directors (Cont’d) BATES (H)

Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl, aged 38, joined the Company as an Executive B MIE4 > 385% » R - FE-LHELAMA
Director in May 2007 and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. — AN\ &) A ¥ATEHH - IR AN 6 2 FMHE A
He is responsible for its real estate acquisitions and property development in ] Z # 35 o i & & P[5 55 Hb & g I e 4 26 5%
the PRC. Mr. Ma holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and a  J& o B oA 54 1 i3 4% #L B2 - B A7 I B 5 i
Master’s degree in Finance. He is also a holder of AIMR Certified Financial — —E:07 o 7R £ £ &8 BLATF 52 105 & 2 5 5 it
Analyst. Mr. Ma has over 16 years of experience in banking industry and B0 A bili o 6 oA i 8RAT 26 I vh B ) 2 58 2
property development in the PRC. Since 1998, he has been involved in SOE £+ /S FE4L8 < A — LIS >
restructuring and acquisitions, projects financing and real estate investments == % 3 Ti7 £ Bl [0 A 1> 3 o 4H S e I ~ JE H @
in major cities of the PRC. He has successfully invested and managed & J% 5 i i #% & o % S ib B FA A% & & %
several property deals for private investors including a villa project in & & & H Z (¥ 2 B & A 4% L 57 2 Bl 818
Beijing, a vineyard property in Jiangsu Province and office developments in ~ H ~ VT.#F & 2 i 4 B 2 DL M G R & 2 W 2
Guangdong Province. Mr. Ma is very active in the property sector in Beijing ~ #F8 o 5 o it At 5t 2 b s 7L 9k & 0% i
and is currently a standing member of Beijing Xicheng District China’s ¥ A b st i vk [w Bt B & & -

People Consultative Committee.

Independent Non-executive Directors WA E S

Mr. Qiao Xiaodong, aged 51, joined the Company as Vice Chairman and an ~ §/PR A > 515% - i “FF/NEHMA
Independent Non-executive Director in February 2008. He is also a member 77\ &) /& Bl = i Fe 8 r AT E S o 1ioR B
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Qiao holds a bachelor’s degree =~ AN\ H X ZE B &2 8 o oA HB
in Science and also a bachelor’s degree in Business and Administration 2% k7 5% JI5 J2¥, i £2 52 1 e 45 B B2 - B A3 o

from Norwegian School of Management. He graduated from the Beijing {5 2 it U 5UH T K& o — L ALFAEENH)
University of Science and Technology. In the early 1990s, Mr. Qiao joined i > &6k Z it p (=@ R =Ry
China Council for the Promotion of International Trade as a Patent Attorney, AT FFFCH A > K45 HAT rp 0 4% ol dc e (&
and the managing director of China Technology Trade (H.K.) Ltd. He has  #) AR A F 2 EHMKEH - H —~ L LEHF
been engaged in real estate business in the PRC since 1997. Mr. Qiao was the % - it H R S E M E 4T - BoA ok
chairman and the director in several real estate development companies. WA SO 5 HlLE BH BN B o R I R

B o

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, aged 47, joined the Company as an  E&MELE > 475 > R -FEZ=FHLAMA
Independent Non-executive Director in May 2003. He is also the chairman K72\ 7] & B 57 FE AT HE D o IR B AL 7] 5%
of both the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the HZEE & MHMEE G 1H - TRAEAE
Company. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of & FHAIA G ERE 8 ~ HEEFAR G
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified — Fili 23 6 & O & B M 95 B 55 045 B s Fi A &
Accountants and an associate member of The Chartered Institute of 8 o f{ ¥ 2ESFE - @E L RENF T
Management Accountants. He has over 22 years of experience in accounting ~ f&##1 — + " 4E & 5t Mo 2 B 888 - F ok
and corporate finance gained in property development, construction and £ At 42 A R A1 (00701.HK) 2 #LAT #
manufacturing companies. Mr. Wong previously held directorship as an 2 (A “ZFE/\FIJLH — HEHT) -

executive director of CNT Group Limited (00701.HK) (resigned on 1st

September, 2008).

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 61, joined the Company as an Independent 335564 > 61 » R - FE—FE+HMA
Non-executive Director in October 2001. He is also a member of both the — AN\ ] & M7 JE AT HE T o I IR A A\ ) 5%
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. % Z B & MHMZ B & 2 8 - F0eA g i
Kwok has been a marketing manager in an international company engaging AT — Z % g5 5k 51 B 2647 B &R 45 2 [ B 2 )
in the design of business administration system. He has over 26 years of — Z T35 488 o 15 7E{ Bir S % & ZE 455 5 I A i
experience in the insurance and investment business, principally in the senior /S48 - HARHKEHAL > FHA
managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an independent A 5 2 %5 3£ B A o 3P 50 28 b & B 45 [ A7 (R
non-executive director of Hanny Holdings Limited (00275.HK) and Wing /A 7] (00275.HK) % 7Kk % ik i (35 %) A5 BR 2 )
On Travel (Holdings) Limited (01189.HK). He previously held directorship ~ (01189.HK) 2 J8 7. JF AT 2 o 1% %8 /5 o
as an executive director of China Strategic Holdings Limited (00235.HK) 4[4 [R /A 7] (00235 HK) Z MiA7H & (jh — &
(resigned on 7th April, 2008). Z2)\ME A & HBHE) -
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT HARATPIA B

Ms. Yan Ha Hung, Loucia, aged 40, is the General Manager (Corporate UL/ - 40558 » A8 [ 2 AACHH ({2 2R
Services) and the Company Secretary of the Group. She is also a director ) K/ TR E o HIR A A 522 5 8 4 )
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Yan holds a master’s degree 2 # 2 o I /NHAFA L& HAE 27 o 1%
in business administration. She is an Associate Member (Practitioner’s /4 75 H 5 0 A0 35 00 € Ko o B0 45 0 A 2 AT B
Endorsement) of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and ~ AN B A2 & B (EERER) - A%
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Prior to joining & 4F-E H A AL HT - Hr/NH g & #i
the Group in July 2005, Ms. Yan was the company secretary of certain listed & #E F T/ 7 2 2 G AL o D5 74 & Fb 2 M
companies in Hong Kong. She has over 15 years of experience in company  ¥5 3t 2F 5 )7 1 i i 1 FL A 585 o

secretarial and legal affairs.
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ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 7 1% Hh 5 48 H A FR A 5]

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated #EHEH IR EALEHERE “FEZNF=H

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2009. = — H R AR R A AR S I R
® o WATHE -
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES S

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities ~ AR/ J5— L EPERAT] o REE FHEE
of the Group are property development and investment in Macau, the PRC % /& A [ ~ A B0 [ 7 s 11 W) S 88 e I 4%
and Hong Kong, development and investments in golf resorts and leisure & > i’ oP B4R 35 2 B8 < Bk B AR B 7 Pl 48 4%
operations in the PRC, securities investment and loan financing services. The — 575 % B M % & ~ w85 H0E U M & 510 & iR
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the % > JH: = 55 Jff Ja§ /0 7] 2 ZET R 45 & WHES

consolidated financial statements. FeMtita9

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION 09 IR

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2009 are set outin ~ AEMMREE " FENE=H=+—HIL4F
the consolidated income statement on pages 46 and 47. B2 SN 40 AT H 2 S5 AR A 4 -

No dividend was paid during the year. The directors do not recommend the — AS4F J& 3 S JR B8 E, o ¥ H A ERIRMN B =
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2009. CEFENFEZA=ZTHIEFEZRE -
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 5

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five 7S 8 [H 3 2= 1o W BA BLAE B 2 348 - B M A
financial years is set out on page 155. ERMEERIHAF 155K -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT W - B

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group AN [ JM4E A 2 W) 3 - BEA K Sk M5 58 B 1
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. A4 4 BB B M 115 -

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES U L/ES
Particulars of the Group’s principal properties at 31st March, 2009 are setout ~ AREEH R —FENFE=ZH = +F—HZ EEY
on page 156. I RIRH156 5 -
SHARE CAPITAL A
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are 7/ ] it 4F 18 22 5 2 588 B 51 17 00 45 & %
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. RFEMFE3T o
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY A2 wi] W B4 R B A
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the shareholders as at A /A R “FE AL FE K - EFNE=H
31st March, 2009 and 2008 were as follows: = —H Al g R IR AT
2009 2008
ZRBNAE ZRFINEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T
Contributed surplus BB 113,020 -
Retained profits 15 B8 5 | 57,668 61,160
170,688 61,160

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed 3% F 43 — JL/\—4E A FE (BFTA) » AR
surplus of the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company 23 & Z #IA ZEF AT LUK o SR > AR &) ik
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed LA N 1% WL ASTS H #2155 H IR SR ) S 3%

surplus if: PEL 73R -

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they ~ (a) it A7 ) 3R IR B R A5 45 -6 475 0E
become due; or P HFA R 5 5L

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the — (b) A/ 7] & 2 W] 4 BRLAE (B0 IR 17
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share Z AR A B AT BRSO  lai
premium accounts. IR 2 48 o
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS o ARG AL

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report AR BB AR H R > AR A Z FEAT

were: HEHMF -

Executive directors: PATES

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman) SREEGESEE (L)

Mr. Chan Fut Yan (Managing Director) BRI A (A AR RE)

Mr. Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley (Deputy Managing Director) B B oA (Al AR )
(resigned on 1st September, 2008) (P ZFF/AGETLH — HFHT)

Mr. Cheung Chi Kit RSB

Mr. Lai Tsan Tung, David R ARG

Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl TR SEAE

Independent non-executive directors: BOLIEAT S

Mr. Qiao Xiaodong (Vice Chairman) BN (L)

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin FA A

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva FFEr e

Pursuant to Bye-law 87(1) of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye- HRAEA LS W 2 23wl ) (T 2wl R 1) 25.87(1)
laws”) and the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as 106 B B s W 5 28 ) P A BRA ] ([ W 32 iy 1)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Zr LTI (T ETRLRN 1) B gk 14 il 2 A 3
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the EIRHEHLSFRN(TSP D) - AT 35 0 B Rk
“Listing Rules”), Mr. Lai Tsan Tung, David and Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl, ARG AR A LR E AT E R
both executive directors, and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, an independent non- SEACAE o A R JiE RS R A R ([ % R AF
executive director, will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting K ]) iR - AL ER S BRI
(the “AGM?”) by rotation. All retiring directors, being eligible, will offer AR R AR K AT o T A AT
themselves for re-election at the AGM. Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, Mr. Chan Fut FOREGE A - B B Rk S

Yan and Mr. Cheung Chi Kit, all executive directors, and Mr. Qiao Xiaodong A LS AT R /DR e E AR
and Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, both independent non-executive directors, AR SRAF B R AT -

will continue in office for the ensuing year.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has $50 7 M RO A O g i AT g o A
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which AR B B HAT AT B & 2 B R TR A SR RS R
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of — A N SR IR (5 8 BB BRSO k2 IRBs
compensation, other than statutory compensation. BH -

The term of office of each non-executive director and independent non- B AR IEZAT 2 JF AT ¥ 5 S S JF BT
executive director appointed from time to time is fixed with the terms of F 2 RBAFH I E > MEZE AR SF RSO
office subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the A4 LA AN T R AR R AT
requirements of code provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the Code which states W2 SCRT B JE AT 2 BAT E A 98 2 AT
that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject W 5 Sl A2 R R B I i R A R AT SR B
to re-election, and that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should IRf 22 Bl 38 S B ZH AR SR A R AT AR 2 1 T )
be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their SRR 4552 IR B > £ T3 (LA DA g 4F
appointment and every director, including those appointed for a specific WERALE ) WARIEA L Bl 2 S ul AR 2D
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three B AR E R AT —IK -

years, subject to the Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES

As at 31st March, 2009, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company and/or their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and convertible notes of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position
(i) Interests in the shares and underlying shares under equity
derivatives (as defined in Part XV of the SFO)

i B AT BN FUR By ~ A BBy B v
OB YR 2 B R AT

MREFFNAF=ZA=+—H  ARrzHEHR
B EBATEN B B A% 2 B LR A
O3 A BCHAT A AR R O 26 58 7 I B e
1 ([ 8 25 B I B A 91 1) SR X VIR ) Z Fiefy ~ A
I P 3 S w6 P S 4 o A ZE AR R O
BN X VARER T S 81 BRI & A A W] I 22
Jiv 2 M4 Bk (BRI S AR R 2 I &
TG AT B A0 SCRARLAE B0 PR AT < i I IR
) o BUHREAA L ARSI B
352fiefr B 2 ot < HESE RIRE - SURMRDE
TR R B Bk 10 T 2 bR AT N AT
R AE ) ) BRUE ST R (THEMESF R ) g A 28
) BB A i < e AR RO T

o
i) RO RHERTE TR T2 B R
17 (EFE 2 i 25 RATE R DIFEX Vi)

W
Number of
underlying
shares
(under equity Approximate
derivatives of percentage of
Number of the Company) the issued
issued ARH share capital
shares JBBEAT A TR Aggregate  of the Company
Name of director Capacity & 75} FTZHB interest A BT
WS g% ety & H JBe b H MHER  BRARESE AR
(%)
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit Beneficial owner 7,176,000 1,312,000 8,488,000 1.80
(“Mr. Cheung”) Tk TN
SREREE (TRSEE D)
Mr. Lai Tsan Tung, Interest of controlled - 3,079,502 3,079,502 0.65
David (“Mr. Lai”) corporation (Note)
BRI (TS ) Gl A (W7t

Note:

Mr. Lai, an executive director of the Company, was deemed to be

interested in 3,079,502 underlying shares in respect of a principal
amount of HK$17,476,177 zero coupon convertible notes due 2010
issued by the Company on 8th June, 2006 at the adjusted conversion
price of HK$5.675 per share held by Green Label Investments
Limited (“Green Label”) by virtue of his beneficial interest in the
entire issued share capital of Green Label.

18

ML - SRR A A R AT S R R
Green Label Investments Limited
(I Green Label |) 2 & £ 8517 A
ZERRER o B B R A
oA R FE NS A VH B
17T Green Label A~ 4x 4 %1 [y s ¥
17,476,177 Tk —F —FEFIM 2
Z BT SR I 13,079,502 ¢
AHBH B0 2 HERS > RSO R4 (8 7
N S.6757C -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND  #3 K& L EAT BN Bty - MBI W
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES Bt miyh > B3 Mk 8 (7)
AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont’d)

19

Long position (Cont’d) a4
(ii) Interests in the share options of the Company (i) JAR L E RS A
Approximate
Adjusted percentage
exercise of the issued
price Number share capital
per share of share of the Company
Name of director Date of grant Option period R R options I Vi 7o
HREA il WL frtif I TR BV 2 I
(HK$) (%)
()
Mr. Cheung 27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 - 10.55 761,280 0.16
R ZEFLELAZTEH 26th July, 2011
“FRLFLAHLAE
LA
Mr. Chan Fut Yan 27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 - 10.55 444,080 0.09
(“Mr. Chan”) ZETEELASTEH 26th July, 2011
PR “ERLELCTERE
([ D) ZE——EAZtAH
Mr. Cheung Chi Kit 27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 - 10.55 317,200 0.06
R ZEFEFLAZTENA 26th July, 2011
“ERLELCTERE
“E——HFLAZ AR
Mr. Lai 27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 - 10.55 190,320 0.04
[l ZEFEFLACTENA 26th July, 2011
CERLELCTERE
AT AR
Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl 27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 - 10.55 570,960 0.12
b ZETEFLACTENA 26th July, 2011
“ERLELI SRR
“E——HFLAZ AR
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin  27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 - 10.55 95,160 0.02
(“Mr. Wong”) ZREZEEEA ST 26th July, 2011
FEmEE (£ CERLEL SRR
“E——HFLAZAH
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 27th July, 2007 27th July, 2007 - 10.55 95,160 0.02
e ZETEFLACTENA 26th July, 2011
“ERLELI SRR
“E——FLAZ AR
2474160



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
R E

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 7 1% Hh 5 48 H A FR A 5]

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont’d)

Long position (Cont’d)

R B EATBON FUR By ~ A BBy B v
BB YR 2 B R ()

W ()

(ii)  Interests in the share options of the Company (Cont’d) (i) L AR Ry (4F)
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executive of M b ScHigE o > AN A E R EE
the Company nor their associates had any interests or short positions (I UNCETE Fa ) YNSRI
in any shares, underlying shares or convertible notes of the Company 25 v BCHAT AT AR Ik ) G 38 8 25 I
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part HA B AR 8 X V) AT AT e 003 ~ AH BRI
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company e T B SR AT AT AR R
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV R B BRI SR XV IR AR 7 K2 843 T R
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any such AR ) SR 3 T 2 R A BOR AT (BLEE
director or chief executive was taken or deemed to have under such B S5 AR 9 0 % B A 40 A I Ak S vk
provisions of the SFO); or which were required pursuant to section WVES AR A 2 HE 2 SR ) > SR
352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by the PRI SN BRI 5352 R AHRL AR A
Company; or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be A SR 2 M R AT > SR
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange. PEAEUE ST QI ZE MG A 0w B A2 T 2

REgr Bk A -
SHARE OPTIONS B R

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 26th August, 2002

(the “2002 Scheme”). Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are

set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table sets out the movements in the 2002 Scheme during the
year ended 31st March, 2009:

A A IR B —F TR T AE A R
H (1200278 1) R4 o A ) i AR =t i
LRI HOR AR o A R 38 o

T REFE 20025 BAEKE ZFEIEZA
=+ HI1EEE )

Number of share options
RIS
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Exercise 142008 during during during 31.3.2009
Category and name price  RCZENE the year the year theyear R -EFNAE
of participants Date of grant Option period per share MH—H L L3 ¥l ZHEt-R
BHRSEFES KN LEE TRATHERT WAL £l fifk /R WA
(Note ) (HKS)
(Hit1) (#)
Directors
it
Mr. Cheung 15.8.2006 15.8.2006- 14.8.2008 0315 15,860,000 - - (15,860,000) -
Rk ZEEREAITRRE “EEREANTLEE (Note2) (Note 2)
ZRENENA TR (i) 2
21.7.2007 21.7.2007-26.7.2011 10.55 761,280 - - - 761,280
“EELELH T EH “EELECACTEHE  (Notes2and3)  (Notes2and3)
FREACIAR (RR) (Wit223)
Mr. Chan 15.8.2006 15.8.2006 - 14.8.2008 0315 9,516,000 - - (9,516,000) -
[ ZEENEARTIA “EEAEAHTHRE (Note 2) (Note 2)
ZRENENA TR (i) 2
21.7.2007 21.7.2007-26.7.2011 10.55 444,080 - - - 444,080
“EELELH T EH “EELECACTEHE  (Notes2and3)  (Notes2and3)
ERLACTAR (A3 (Wit k)
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d) ik SR ()
Number of share options
TR A
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Exercise 142008 during during during 31.3.2009
Category and name price  REFFNE the year the year theyear ROBFNE
of participants Date of grant Option period per share WA—H R L3I Bl ZAZ-H
BHRSEEESE RN WM Tpletr it WAL £l fifk w8/ kM WAL
(Note ) (HKS)
(Wit (%)
Mr. Cheung Chi Kit 15.8.2006 15.8.2006 - 14.8.2008 0315 3,172,000 - - (3,172,000) -
R “ETNEAR TR “ETNEARTHRE (Note 2) (Note 2)
ZERNEARHINH Wizt (Wit2)
27.1.2007 27.1.2007-26.7.2011 1055 317,200 - - - 317,200
“ERLELA T LA “EELELACTEHE  (Notes2and3)  (Notes2and 3)
ZEERAZERR (R (Wet2k3)
Mr. Lai 2172007 2172007 -26.7.2011 10.55 190,320 - - - 190,320
Bk TRELHEEA T H TEEUHELATTEHE  (Noes2and3)  (Notes2and 3)
SEEEACEAR A (H##223)
Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl -~ 27.7.2007 27.7.2007-26.7.2011 1055 570,960 - - - 570,960
i i ZERLRLAZT LN “EFLELHCTLHE  (Noes2and3)  (Notes2and3)
EREACIRE (R (Wzt2%53)
Mr. Wong 15.8.2006 15.8.2006 - 14.8.2008 0.315 2,379,000 - - (2.379.000) -
Tk “EBNEAR TR “ETNEARTHRE (Note 2) (Note 2)
“EENEAHILH G2 (Hi#2)
27.1.2007 27.1.2007-26.7.2011 1055 95,160 - - - 95,160
CEREELAZTEN CERLELACHEHE  (Notes2and3)  (Notes2and 3)
ZEERAZIRE (AR (Wet2k3)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 2772007 2172007 -26.7.2011 10.55 95,160 - - - 95,160
FEUEE TRELHEEA T H TEECHELATTEHE  (Notes2and3)  (Notes2and 3)
SEREACIAR A (H##223)
33,401,160 - - (30927,000) 474,160
Former Directors
ik
Mr. Chui Sai Cheong 15.8.2006 15.8.2006 - 14.8.2008 0.50 1,500,000 - - (1,500.000) -
(“Mr. Chui") (Note 4)  “FFAEAA+EH ZREREAIIRE
AR ZRENENA TR
(ERED MY 2772007 27.1.2007-26.7.2011 0.67 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) -
ZERAELAZTEN “ERUELNCTEAE
“E—EEATAR
Mr. Wong Kam Cheong,  15.8.2006 15.8.2006 - 14.8.2008 0315 3,172,000 - - (3,172,000) -
Stanley (Note 5) ZERNENATRE ZERAENATIRE (Note 2) (Note 2)
EREE W) “RENENTIH Wizt (Wit2)
2172007 2772007267201 10.55 190,320 - - - 190,320
“EREELHCTLH ETLELACHEHE  (Notes2and3)  (Notes2and3)
SE—BLACIRE (iR (Wit k3)
6,362,320 - - (6,172,000) 190,320
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d) ik SR ()
Number of share options
JRHESH
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Exercise 142008 during during during 31.3.2009
Category and name pice  BRoFENE the year the year theyear  R-FFNAE
of participants Date of grant Option period per share MH—H Rl R ¥l ZHEt-R
BHRSEFES  RlHW AT TRATHER WAL £l fitk it | WA
(Note 1) (HKS)
(k) (H)
Employees 15.8.2006 15.8.2006 - 14.8.2008 0315 2,379,000 - - (2,379,000) -
i “EEAEAATRE “EERFATERE (Note 2) (Note2)
“EENEAAHILH i) (W3t2)
21.7.2007 27.7.2007-26.7.2011 10.55 6,609,272 - - (5,892,400) 716,872
CERLELACTEH “EELECAZTEHE  (Notes2and3)  (Notes2and3)
EREACIAR (iR (Wit223)
Other participants 15.8.2006 15.8.2006 - 14.8.2008 0315 3,647,800 - - (3,647,800) -
Lbs ik “EEREATIA “EEAEARTERE (Note 2) (Note2)
“EENEAAHLH i) (W3t2)
21.7.2007 27.7.2007-26.7.2011 10.55 317,200 - - - 317,200
CERLELACTEH “EELEEAZTEHE  (Notes2and3)  (Notes2and3)
S ) s N N 5 & (Wet273)
12,953,272 - - (11,919,200 1,034,072
Total 52,716,752 - - (49,018,200) 3,698,552
it
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d) W BehE (45)

Notes: M -

1. In relation to the share options granted on 15th August, 2006, subject to 1. A BN ZF RN I H B0 %
the terms and conditions of the 2002 Scheme, the share options shall be HEAE 2002 ‘1’%‘ 2R R RBR T > i
exercisable at any time during the option period and subject further to a JBARE W A W ﬁi@qf’ﬁ Wl@ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ Mk %
maximum of 50% of the share options shall be exercisable during the period SO%ZE%HQ@T B RERENT A
commencing from 15th August, 2006 to 14th August, 2007, with the balance TERALAENA W H WEATE > e
of the share options not yet exercised may be exercised during the period T ATH AR AT B0 ) B B HEE T s — B E B AR
commencing from 15th August, 2007 to 14th August, 2008. In relation to the AT H 2= ZFFNENA U H BT
share options granted on 27th July, 2007, subject to the terms and conditions i - HRIR =FERZLELH L HEREE
of the 2002 Scheme, the share options shall be exercisable at any time 19 B8 S AR E 2002 81 22 A6 3 B A 14 B RR
during the option period and subject further to a maximum of 50% of the T W IBCRE R A AT AT F’ﬁ W Fiﬂﬁ%ﬁ‘@i
share options shall be exercisable during the period commencing from 27th lji37E2 SO%Z%HXT%T W ZEENFELA
July, 2008 to 26th July, 2009, with the balance of the share options not yet B R E TR oS HWIH
exercised may be exercised during the period commencing from 27th July, A48 - gk T 1')5 AT AE 1 3 1B HE W] i —
2009 to 26th July, 2011. EENLFLAZ T EtHZF——4+1tH

ZAoN HARATAE -

2. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12th August, 2008 2. ﬁﬂzt-‘/ N 7 WEENAENA T H AR
in relation to the adjustments to the exercise prices and the numbers of share R R AT e T HE SR A A T
options, the exercise price of the share options granted on 15th August, 2006 ﬁ ’ EE AR AT — I B Ak = IR Ak A i
has been adjusted from HK$0.50 per share to HK$0.315 per share and the 153\ DI B A5 g i 1 T Iiﬁﬁﬁtﬁﬂxﬂﬁ‘(‘}l?%{ﬁ
aggregate outstanding number of share options has also been adjusted from PR RERE ) 2 BEMEAEIE (T ) > A
25,300,000 share options to 40,125,800 share options while the exercise EXRENATHARHZ Eﬁﬂﬁﬂ‘éz 1§1E
price of the share options granted on 27th July, 2007 has been adjusted from B A B M 0.50 7T i B R 10315
HK$0.67 per share to HK$0.422 per share and the aggregate outstanding TC o ARATEEZ IR RE AR ROIN E $125,300,000
number of share options has also been adjusted from 61,700,000 share options 43 B PR RE R 440,125,800 173 B FREHE - 1T
to 97,856,200 share options as a result of the rights issue on the basis of ZERREFEA LRGBS
three rights shares (with warrants in the proportion of four warrants for every ITEAIC bR 0.67 C i 2 E K
fifteen rights shares subscribed) for every share held (the “Rights Issue™). W 0.42250 » RATH 2 BERHEARBORT |

61,700,000 45 i B HE i # 22 97,856,200 133 i
JeHE

3. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 13th March, 2009 3. MAR G —EFILE=] + = HHER
in relation to the adjustments to the exercise price and the number of share B o AT A &Eﬁﬂﬁ HEBCH 2 2 Ml BT 3¢
options, the exercise price of the share options granted on 27th July, 2007 # o R R P a5 f T Lk
has been adjusted from HK$0.422 per share to HK$10.55 per share and the JRTRI{E0.0 175 T2 © BEAT iy F 20— IR
aggregate outstanding number of share options has also been adjusted from JiiEi (0. 25@%77:2 |:| 1}#5&{5}25&2@?& [k
92,463,800 share options to 3,698,552 share options as a result of the capital AEHD > RZFFLFELH L HER
reorganisation involving, among others, the consolidation of every twenty- ez ﬂﬁﬂﬂ‘ﬁz TEAE A R 0.422
five issued shares of HK$0.01 each into one consolidated share of HK$0.25 JCHEE E R 10,5570 > RATHE 2 WAL
(the “Capital Reorganisation”). HE A8 BT T Hh 92,463,800 17 1 B HE o7 % 52

3,698,552 M o

4. Following the resignation of Mr. Chui as an independent non-executive 4. Wi fE SR AR A R \AE ] HOH BT
director of the Company with effect from Sth February, 2008, 1,500,000 AL R BATHE R > AL W DL iR
share options granted by the Company at the initial exercise price of HK$0.50 50,5070 Z W AT IR 1,500,000 K
per share and 1,500,000 share options granted by the Company at the initial AR R AR s 40,67 0 2 W1 A TR
exercise price of HK$0.67 per share both to Mr. Chui were expired on 4th 11,500,000 13 T #2 S 2L 2 B IR E L A — &
August, 2008, which was six months after the date of his resignation pursuant Z\AEUA U H (BIAR$82002 51 3155 7.2(a)
to clause 7.2(a) of the 2002 Scheme. TE ol i 4 2 BEAE B TR SR A 2 /%) &

e

5. Notwithstanding the resignation of Mr. Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley as the 5. B H B e A —EFENEIL — HlL
deputy managing director and an executive director of the Company with BEAE ALY v Bl AR A AT > M
effect from Ist September, 2008, the further adjusted 190,320 share options A8 B AN A AN R 2R A
granted by the Company at the further adjusted exercise price of HK$10.55 ) ARG TS 110,55 70 2 S8HE— 25 R AT
per share to Mr. Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley continue to be valid and TEEETET«“CH??&Z 190,320 173 K8 HE— 25 3 %% fif
exercisable according to the terms and conditions of the 2002 Scheme as he JBEHE AR 98 2002 71 1] 2 A0 30 % Mok A1 4 A AT 2
remains as a consultant of the Company. KAl TATE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES AR BT R R AR
Interests of a director of the Company in competing businesses of the Group M-EEZNFE=ZA=Z1+—H » ROAEER
as at 31st March, 2009 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the TS A AR BRI R 8. 10 b R

Listing Rules were as follows: ZHRERRIE
Nature of
Name of director Name of company competing business Nature of interest
WALk H ek BT R TER il 2 PR
Mr. Cheung Wing On Travel (Holdings) Property business and As the managing director
RS Limited and its subsidiaries hotel operation in VE 52 AR A
TR B TR (PER) A PR 7] K Hong Kong and the PRC
FLHE 2w s N b ) 23 K
TP K88

China Development Limited

2 BB IR AT BR A ]

Artnos Limited

Co-Forward Development Ltd.

G AT PR A

Orient Centre Limited

Super Time Limited

Asia City Holdings Ltd.

Supreme Best Ltd.

Orient Holdings Limited
RIHE A BRAT

Link Treasure International
Limited
O I A R

Silver City Limited
SREARATF

Property investment
in Hong Kong
Y ETE

Property investment
in Hong Kong
TEY I E

Property investment
in Hong Kong
TV EBE

Property investment
in Hong Kong
YT E

Property investment

in Hong Kong
YA

Property investment

in Hong Kong
R ZESVa

Property investment
in Hong Kong
Y ETE

Property investment

in Hong Kong
Y E

Property investment

in Hong Kong
YR

Property investment

in Hong Kong
Y E

24

As a director and
shareholder

YRR JBOR

As a director and
shareholder

Ve R BOR

As a director and
shareholder

(2F = VI

As a shareholder
TE R IR

As a director and
shareholder

Ve = JBOR

As a director and
shareholder

YRR JBOR

As a shareholder
TE R IR

As a director and
shareholder

TE R RBOR

As a director and
shareholder

YRR R

As a director and
shareholder

VE Ry B BOR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES (Cont’d) W R BT RN ()

Mr. Cheung is the chairman of the Company who is principally responsible SRPGAE S AN W I - T A T A B2 1 SR
for the Group’s strategic planning and management of the operations of the F) S P R AR o B RS B A
Board. His role is clearly separated from that of the managing director, Mr. KC IR e A 2 TS Vi I 43 o B S A T 2
Chan, who is principally responsible for the Group’s operations and business AT G 8 SRR

development.

In addition, any significant business decision of the Group is to be AN AL AT R EFS R H
determined by the Board. A director who has interest in the subject matter g o i 55 BT sk L S IE AT TR AR
being resolved will abstain from voting. In view of the above, the Board WEAS T AR S - Bt Fali &5 TH > ERERR
considers that the interests of Mr. Cheung in other companies will not Ry RIS HAL A W) 2 M g S B AR AT
prejudice his capacity as director nor compromise the interests of the Group IS AT ] K TR SR A
and the shareholders of the Company. 2 A A A R 2 o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2009, none of the directors of the bR bESchkEs & oh » RZEENFE=H =1+ —
Company or their respective associates was interested in any business apart ~ H > AR W) TE B SE 2 TN M AT
from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to compete, either ] BEL A A (] SE T 2 ) e T
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group. WL 2 25 (RAE RS IR A1) h A HE RS o

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES o 00 B By i 2 2 BE A

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or R b SCHRR 2 A > A ] BHAT AT B B 2 ]
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of A AT 0] IR T AE ST S AT A 22 B - Sl A
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or UNEIE iy o) L NN/ R SR RN RPN
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. In addition, none B8 2 B s sm M 4 o et > MEMGE
of the directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right SRS Z B+ /UK LT 2 T oA R
to subscribe for securities of the Company or had exercised any such right AN AR I AT AR RE A B 2 R AR AT 6 A B
during the year. BERF)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE w2 kA AR

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “Connected Transactions bk I 3C[ Bl # 22 5 K Fp A8 BRI 28 By | i R
and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and in note 47 to the A TR EM 47 BB F A > EAFEESH KR
consolidated financial statements, there are no contracts of significance WA AS G BEATART IR [T A > AR 24 ) AT ] B
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which NER I A W /N o 3 e R e R R
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or PR ERRE A AT R EH -

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  BrdE A7 o e 2 v b

DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive AN A CARTE TR 3.1 3 A 45 57 JF
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 AT HE S O ST A R AR R o AR
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non- AR TR M SL I AT E S S S L e
executive directors are independent.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions undertaken by
the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2009 and up to the date of
this report are set out below:

(a) As stated in the announcement dated 7th December, 2007, on 28th
November, 2007, Donson (International) Development Limited
(“Donson”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into several agreements in relation to:

1) disposal by Donson of its entire interest in Guangzhou
Panyu Lotus Golf & Country Club Co., Ltd. (“Panyu
Golf”), Guangzhou Panyu Wei Di Si Golf Property
Company Limited (“Wei Di Si”) and Guangzhou Lian Chui
Property Management Company Limited (“Lian Chui”)
(the “Disposal™) to B i 7 B sl E A R A A (%
B 177 #4°), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability, which is an investment holding company controlled
by the Panyu Municipal Government, the PRC, for an
aggregate cash consideration of RMB20 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$22.8 million) as set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements;

(i1) the co-operation between Panyu Golf and Donson in the
development of a parcel of land within Guangzhou Lotus
Hill Golf Resort (the “Development Agreement”) in which
the Group will have the right to share 65% of its residual
value. Under the terms of the Development Agreement, the
Group will provide a loan of RMB40 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$45.5 million) to Panyu Golf for use in the
development project as set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements; and

(iii)  the lease of Guangzhou Lotus Hill Golf Resort (the “Lease
Agreement”) which comprised golf course and golf
clubhouse within Panyu, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
the PRC by Panyu Golf to Guangzhou Donson Hotel
Management Limited (“Donson Hotel Management”), a
subsidiary of the Company, for three years commencing
from the date of the Lease Agreement entered into between
Donson Hotel Management as lessee and Panyu Golf as
lessor for the lease of the Guangzhou Lotus Hill Golf Resort
on 16th April, 2008 at an annual rental of RMBS5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$5.7 million) renewable at
the option of Donson Hotel Management at the successive
terms of 3 years up to 20 years.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED  Bizs 5 R ¥ GRS (42)
TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(@  (Cont'd) (  (#)
By virtue of the fact that % E 1l is controlled by the Panyu H A 7 B T 2 7 B TH BRI o T
Municipal Government and &M 1 & B AR A 7] (“% BR JEE N T e R i e AR A D (T 7 B R 1)
#), a company incorporated in the PRC which is a substantial Ts— WA B GRS 2 AT BT
shareholder of Panyu Golf, Wei Di Si and Lian Chui, is also B TR B - R Ko R 2
controlled by the Panyu Municipal Government, % & #5# and W IR BT BON FER > B
7% B ikii7 are therefore connected persons of the Company. &S YR PN/ A F YN
Accordingly, the disposal of Panyu Golf, Wei Di Si and Lian doo B s AREE BRI 14AF
Chui and the provision of the loan of RMB40 million constituted AR B ARk - el ROHE R
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of DA B AR R ¥540,000,000 70 8 500 1
the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Lease KA Z BREAL S o g E LRSS
Agreement also constituted a continuing connected transaction for 14A % > Tk T BT 228 5
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the IRME AR A A 2 R R 2S5y - Bk
above mentioned transactions are set out in the announcement dated R S T S o e S < s S
7th December, 2007 and the circular of the Company dated 17th AEHZAMRANT A —FF
January, 2008. The Disposal was completed on 6th March, 2008. The JUE—H-F-EHZ@EK - thEFIHD
Development Agreement and the Lease Agreement were entered into HRBENEZANHTER - AEH
by the Group on 16th April, 2008. A ERNAFE A 4N H R R 8

e W

(b)  As stated in the announcement on 28th April, 2008, ITC Properties  (b) w0 H ¥4 —FF /\4EWH —+/\H
Management Limited (the “Tenant”), an indirect wholly-owned /N (10T R NN P i B o < o
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (the I ) P b A A IR A (R
“Tenancy Agreement”) with Island Town Limited (the “Landlord”), N D) BLER BLAR B BRA A (TR ]) 2
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanny Holdings Limited I 4 4 I JE s R A e A BR ) (T 2
(“Hanny”) for renting Unit 3102, 31/F., Bank of America Tower, E ) FIr —EREwWE (TR ) > L
12 Harcourt Road, Central Hong Kong, for the period from 28th FARAEHPIREBE 1298 E B RIT
April, 2008 to 27th April, 2011 with a fixed rental of HK$311,340 313102 % > I FFN
per month and management fee and air-conditioning charges of EMHA AN REE X ——4FI0
HK$23,927 per month. The annual caps for total rental and other AZ+tHIE AES®EAMEE
charges payable by the Tenant to the Landlord will not exceed We311,3400C > EHE L= EE A
HK$3,900,000 for the financial year ending 31st March, 2009 and 23,9270 - BE _EENFEZH
HK$4,200,000 for each of the financial years ending 31st March, s el & IS5 S S N iU A T S
2010 and 31st March, 2011. E SR 2 A A S Ho A 2 AR AR B

PR AN 8 4 75 5 3,900,000 7T B E
FE—FIEZH =+ —H R - F——4F
= H =1 —H 1k BB S A
AHEHE4,200,0007C ©

As at the date of the Tenancy Agreement, Hanny was indirectly A B SRBLE A A A FE
interested in approximately 16.72% of the issued share capital of the AT A 16.72% - L > F£ES
Company. Accordingly, the Landlord was a connected person of the AN 2 BN o FAI A T
Company. The Tenancy Agreement, which will be carried out on a — i B TE SRR T A AR AR VR A
continuing basis and in the ordinary and usual course of business of 17 o AR B BRI S 14A 14 R UA
the Company, constituted a continuing connected transaction for the AR Z R G o

Company under Rule14A.14 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company confirmed KN F 2B AT E H MR Lk
that the above continuing connected transactions have been entered RrA B 22 5 JI IR AN ) H B R
into by the Company in the ordinary course of its business, on normal TR rp g — o 2 DA AR LS
commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement B3 5 2 Wi 2 W3k w58 - FZ 5K
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the BEATEH . BfFAARN IR 2
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. W -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b)

(Cont’d)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the
Company have performed certain agreed-upon procedures on the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagement to Perform
Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
reported that the continuing connected transactions (i) had received
the approval of the Company’s board of directors; (ii) had been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and (iii) had not exceeded the annual cap disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 7th December, 2007 and 28th
April, 2008 respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31st March, 2009, the interests and short positions of any substantial

shareholders or other persons (not being directors or chief executive of the

Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which have

been disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO and have been recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position

(i)

B 3L 22 By B K B R 22 5 (A7)

(b) (#5)

R8T B RES 14A 38% » AN HIHZ
SR AR ph s R S A
T i H B RS 4 FU) 55 440095 [ 3t B4
ROEAT I ER )Y 2 B0 | Bt bl
B A T T o 2
BB ST (AN F S
Eritb e 5 (i) IR 2SS 2 M
BRI 5 Me(iii)f MR AS A w) H
11 e e e < o o Ry & IS ol = [
FE/NAENA Z+/\NHZ AP 2
HEJE R -

FRIBOK

REFFAF=ZH=1—H  EEBOREH
fil Nt GIE A A R E R EEATBEAR)
A% R ey B AR B B 0 v B AT AR RS 7 K
B R RIS XV IR AR 2 B 300 8 Z AL A )
1 I B R BR R AR 2 R AR B S 2 MO B R 1
336 M RUE A7 B 2 B i 2 i IR
T

Wa
Interests in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (1) A 2 ] 7 R T (E 7 1 0.01 7T 2 2
2

Approximate

percentage of the

issued share capital

Number of of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares fiARAF B8 1T

JB S 44 55 R £y diie qE] JB A BERY 7 43 e

(%)

Loyal Concept Limited Beneficial owner 76,402,763 16.22
(“Loyal Concept™) Haea A (Note 1)
(Htat1)

Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.) Limited Interest of controlled 76,402,763 16.22
(“Hanny Magnetics”™) corporation (Note 1)
Z YR B (1)

Hanny Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 76,402,763 16.22
(“Hanny”) corporation (Note 1)
R AR AT BR A ) (185 BL)) Z YL MRS (1)

Famex Investment Limited Interest of controlled 76,402,763 16.22
(“Famex”) corporation (Note 1)
HBBEABRA R ([ HE ) TS (1)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)
Long position (Cont’d)

BB ()
W ()

(i) Interests in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (i) TR 28 ] 4 AR T (E 7 HR0.01 782 2
(Cont’d) W2 FEa (4E)
Approximate

percentage of the
issued share capital

Number of of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares iR AR B8

JBe 3 44 8 54 CETRMEUH JBe AR BES 43 We

(%)

Mankar Assets Limited Interest of controlled 76,402,763 16.22
(“Mankar”) corporation (Note 1)
TR BRER (BfzEL)

Selective Choice Investments Beneficial owner 36,593,400 7.77
Limited (“Selective Choice”) FHEEA AN (Note 1)
(Wi7E1)

ITC Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 112,996,163 23.99
(“ITC Investment”) corporations (Note 1)
TR RS (BfzEL)

ITC Corporation Limited Interest of controlled 112,996,163 23.99
“ITC”) corporations (Note 1)
TR SE R FA BRA ZPEL RS (BfzEL)

(4 ])

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Interest of controlled 112,996,163 23.99
(“Dr. Chan™) corporations (Note 1)
I I el (et 1) TR R A (BfaEL)

Beneficial owner 6,066,400 1.29
Eia e A (Note 1)
(Wi7E1)

119,062,563 25.28

Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse 119,062,563 25.28
(“Ms. Ng”) BB RE £ (Note 1)
A+ (MEk £ ) (BitaF1)

Stark Master Fund, Ltd. Beneficial owner 22,802,210 4.84
(“Stark Master”) Ha A A (Note 2)
(fit2)

Stark Investments (Hong Kong) Investment manager 37,234,836 7.91
Limited (“Stark HK”) FE R (Note 3)
(f7t3)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d) B33 =
Long position (Cont’d) WA (4)
(ii) Interests in the underlying shares under equity derivatives of the (ii) TR LN G R RERTAE T A IR N 2 A B R
Company (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) W2 s (FFE D il 5 R E 1D
XV#E)
Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital
Number of of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity underlying shares HARA T BT
JBe 3 A4 5% BB A H JBeABES v 43 Be
(%)
Loyal Concept Beneficial owner 103,347,228 21.95
JEETE/ ZEUN (Note 1)
(Hfit1)
Hanny Magnetics Interest of controlled 103,347,228 21.95
corporation (Note 1)
TS (1)
Hanny Interest of controlled 103,347,228 21.95
it corporation (Note 1)
ZHE RS (1)
Famex Interest of controlled 103,347,228 21.95
H corporation (Note 1)
ZHE RS (1)
Mankar Interest of controlled 103,347,228 21.95
corporation (Note 1)
TS (1)
Selective Choice Beneficial owner 9,792,099 2.08
JEETE/ PN (Note 1)
(Htat1)
ITC Investment Interest of controlled 113,139,327 24.03
corporations (Note 1)
ZHE RS (1)
ITC Interest of controlled 113,139,327 24.03
TR corporations (Note 1)
ZHE RS (1)

30



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
R E

Annual Report 2008-2009 43

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d) TR (4F)

Long position (Cont’d) WA (4)

(ii) Interests in the underlying shares under equity derivatives of the (i) TR S G R RERTAE T A IR N 2 A B %
Company (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) (Cont’d)

12 W at (GE 78 S i 77 R B AR DI 5

XVif) (#)

Approximate

percentage of the

issued share capital

Number of of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity underlying shares HARAF OBT

JBe 3K A4 1 55 BB H JBe AR BES T 43 We

(%)

Dr. Chan Interest of controlled 113,139,327 24.03
Bt corporations (Note 1)
TR RS (1)

Beneficial owner 761,920 0.16
AN (Note 1)
(Wt7E1)

113,901,247 24.19

Ms. Ng Interest of spouse 113,901,247 24.19
e+t T 4 (Note 1)
(Htit1)

Stark Master Beneficial owner 23,875,536 5.07
A A (Note 2)
(Htit2)

Stark HK Investment manager 36,093,775 7.66
HE R (Note 3)
(Htit3)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)

Long position (Cont’d)

(ii) Interests in the underlying shares under equity derivatives of the
Company (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. Hanny and Hanny Magnetics were taken to have interest in
179,749,991 shares (of which 103,347,228 shares relate to their
derivative interests) which were held by Loyal Concept, being a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanny Magnetics which, in turn, was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanny, the issued shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Famex, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Mankar, was the controlling shareholder of Hanny. Mankar was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment which, in turn, was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC. Famex and Mankar were deemed
to be interested in 179,749,991 shares (of which 103,347,228
shares relate to their derivative interests) which were held by Loyal
Concept. Selective Choice, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Investment which, in turn, was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC,
owned 46,385,499 shares (of which 9,792,099 shares relate to its
derivative interest). ITC Investment and ITC were deemed to be
interested in 226,135,490 shares (of which 113,139,327 shares relate
to their derivative interests) which were held by Loyal Concept
and Selective Choice. Dr. Chan was the controlling shareholder of
ITC. Ms. Ng is the spouse of Dr. Chan. Dr. Chan owned 6,828,320
shares (of which 761,920 shares relate to his derivative interest)
and was deemed to be interested in 226,135,490 shares (of which
113,139,327 shares relate to his derivative interest) which were held
by Loyal Concept and Selective Choice. Ms. Ng was deemed to
be interested in 232,963,810 shares (of which 113,901,247 shares
relate to her derivative interest) which were held by Dr. Chan, Loyal
Concept and Selective Choice.

2. Stark Master owned 46,677,746 shares (as restated taking
into account the effects of the Rights Issue and the Capital
Reorganisation) (of which 23,875,536 shares relate to its derivative
interest).

3. Stark HK was taken to have an interest as an investment manager in
73,328,611 shares (as restated taking into account the effects of the
Rights Issue and the Capital Reorganisation) (of which 36,093,775
shares relate to its derivative interest) which were held by Centar
Investments (Asia) Ltd., Shepherd Investments International, Ltd.,
Stark Asia Master Fund, Ltd. and Stark International.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31st March, 2009.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS R 95D/ 313/ 4]

For the year ended 31st March, 2009, our largest customer accounted for #E " EEAFE=A=+—HILFE > &K
12% of the Group’s total turnover and the aggregate amount of turnover &7 ({GANSE FAEERE 2 12% > AL LK
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were 34% of the Group’s &7 2 42 SE A F L A 48 [ 4045 2650 2 34% » A
total turnover. Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest & [H 71 K3 P 22 1% I 44U AE A5 A 42 190 40 5 1%
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases. DI30% -

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the BIE A TN EE A 1 T N
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued A A A B BEAT IRAS R 8 5 o AT 0] JBE SR 4
share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers. AR GE 18 T B R o B A TR A o

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S  Ji¥ - BB EIAA 62 L@k
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2009 and before the Capital #E “ETZHFE=H=+—HILFE L LR}
Reorganisation taken place on 16th March, 2009, the Company had ~ —FEZEL4E=H 75 H T A EALAT - A
repurchased a total of 609,135,000 ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at /%% 7 LA A8 A1 5 45 26,532,055 TN B A2 T & 4L
an aggregate consideration of HK$26,532,055, representing an average price [ [7] 609,135,000 & 35 4 A% - BD 45 % © B 0] %
of approximately HK$0.044 paid for each share repurchased. The highest  f/3F 32 {5} 413 #00.044 T © 3% % MWl 2 45 1%
and lowest prices per share paid for such repurchases were HK$0.058 and &% 15 M S ARAE 43 Il A s 50,058 ¢ M #5#50.033
HKS$0.033 respectively. All these shares were cancelled. JC o FT A % E IR R REE -

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries [ b SXHEF& & 4b > A2 5 8 HAT A7 B} & 23 )
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during A #ZE “FTJAE= A =+ — H ILFEE N IK
the year ended 31st March, 2009. el S R A FATAT B TR SR o

CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER 13 OF THE i H4E 13350 F Z #854r

LISTING RULES
The following disclosure is made by the Company pursuant to Rules 13.20 SR A S F AR L TR R 2R 13.20 B2 13224
and 13.22 of the Listing Rules: 1t 2 Bls -
1.  ADVANCES TO ENTITIES L 1) sk
In accordance with Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules, details of the MR i BRI A 13,2010 » AREEEIR =
advances to entities made by the Group as at 31st March, 2009, which FRIVE=ZH =+ —H ) BB (1
individually exceeds 8% of the assets ratio as set out in Rule 14.07 of AT R A TR RS 14.07 06 T i 51
the Listing Rules are as follows: ZERENRZ8%) ZFHEIT ¢
Attributable Percentage
interest held Interest of total assets
Entity by the Group Advances receivable Total A 0%
T AAR WA 2 HEA A 2 ok JE O B il HAK
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 (Note 2)

BT BT BT (Htit2)

Orient Town Limited (“Orient Town”)
and its subsidiaries
(Notes 1 and 3)
AT PR A A (T8 ) S LB g A 7]
(Hf7t13) 45% 1,076,188 56,182 1,132,370 31.6%
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CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES (Cont’d)
1. ADVANCES TO ENTITIES (Cont’d)

Notes:

1

()]

3)

The advances are unsecured; HK$908,000,000 of the advances is
non-interest bearing and no demand for repayment will be made by
the Group unless approved by the board of directors of Orient Town.
HK$168,188,000 of the advances is non-interest bearing with no
fixed terms of repayment.

“Total assets” means the total assets value of the Group of
approximately HK$3,581 million as at 31st March, 2009 according
to the Group’s audited consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March,
20009.

Pursuant to an acquisition agreement dated 29th March, 2006 for
the Group to acquire 40% issued share capital of Orient Town, the
Group undertook to advance to Orient Town by way of shareholder’s
loan in the amount of HK$885 million (the “First Shareholder’s
Loan”). On 30th March, 2007, the Group has exercised the right
to acquire further 5% issued share capital of Orient Town, as
a condition of which an additional loan of HK$93 million (the
“Second Shareholder’s Loan”) was advanced to Orient Town.
Loan to Orient Town amounted to HK$70 million was repaid in
2007. The shareholder’s loans were principally used for financing
acquisition of indirect interest in 14 parcels of leased land situated in
Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Macau and for repayment of shareholder’s
loan due by Orient Town to the vendor. Pursuant to another
acquisition agreement dated 25th January, 2007 for the Group
to acquire 8.7% issued share capital of, a shareholder’s loan and
interest accrued thereon of HK$39.6 million and HK$71.4 million
respectively (the “Acquired Loan”) due by Empresa De Fomento
Industrial E Comercial Concoérdia, S.A. (“Concordia”), an effective
59.5%-owned subsidiary of Orient Town, the Group undertook to
further advance to Concordia by way of an additional shareholder’s
loan up to HK$70 million (the “Concordia Loan”), of which
HKS$55 million was advanced to Concordia in prior year. The First
Shareholder’s Loan, the Second Shareholder’s Loan, the Acquired
Loan and the Concordia Loan have been approved in the special
general meetings of the Company held on 15th June, 2006 and 23rd
March, 2007, respectively. HK$70 million was repaid during the
year ended 31st March, 2008.
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CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER CHAPTER 13 OF THE

LISTING RULES (Cont’d)

2. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES
As detailed in the previous paragraph headed “Advances To
Entities”, the Group had provided financial assistance to affiliated
companies in the aggregate amount of HK$1,132,370,000 which
represented 31.6% of the Group’s total assets value as at 31st
March, 2009. In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.22
of the Listing Rules, the proforma combined balance sheet of these
affiliated companies, and the Group’s attributable interests in these
affiliated companies based on their latest financial statements
available are presented below:

Annual Report 2008-2009 4E

L B S 3R T 2 R BT (4

2. Tia) W OB 0 ) S = A 4R
FE G AR BT A T B
o AREEEC R A AR AR
5 1,132,370,000 7C 2 WHES 4R B > i
CERFNEZHE T BIEAREE Y
FEAME31.6% - RIE TR 13.22
6 > %S BN R ] HE 2B 2 R i
Bk R UE  SEWBA A2 %
5 P B R A R L S R
N2 A RERS AR

Proforma Group’s

combined attributable

balance sheet interests

iAo a e A AR

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T

Non-current assets IRy & 2,582,352 1,178,971
Current assets T & 232,284 143,508
Current liabilities By A K (624,777) (508,178)
Non-current liabilities e B A fE (2,124,530) (956,038)
Minority interests DU RE RS (61,130) (27,509)
4,199 (169,246)

EMOLUMENT POLICY T BOR

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to the existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31st March, 2009.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE e 38T

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate AN A B MR R KRB - ARAL
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by H T BR A0 A SE IR WL DR A A
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report, which is on 37TRAHZ AEERMEE -

pages 37 to 43 of this annual report.

AUDITORS A% B Vol

A resolution will be submitted at the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte A TR A e B B BT & T RIAT A AR A
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company. B2 PR AR IR E R R 2 -

On behalf of the Board REHESEE

Cheung Hon Kit EX3

Chairman RO

Hong Kong, 24th July, 2009 T XX NAELAZ A
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate 7 2\ ] £ Jj 4fi % &5 /K - 1> 264536 W 1 e 1R
governance practices and procedures and complying with statutory and & > A EE M EAEABE - DA IRE K
regulatory requirements with an aim to maximise the shareholders’ values i K [B] i S B 25 - M 4% & B I A 2 15 B B %
and interests as well as to enhance the stakeholders’ transparency and [ E % 4 H 1 o

accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES ]

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Company has continued #E " EEAFE=A=+—HILFE » &AA
to comply with the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance ) 4% 45 128 <7 & Wk Bt & %2 5 T A R Al 78 5% |
Practices (the “Code™) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the — TTAL I ([ _EATHLR 1) BiF 6% 14 Fr d A 2E 16 H
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the — #35FHI (T<FAI ) 2 57 AIMESC -

“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS w T B ER Y

The Company has continued to adopt the Model Code for Securities 77\ 7] 48 48 57 4%y b 7 45 1) B 8% 10 fT L Tl %%
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out 17 A& S HEFTRE 525 5 IO AR HE ST HIf ([ R HE<T
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding  HI |) 1 /& ¥ S AT 75 5520 5 Z 5P HEHI| o AR
securities transactions by the directors. Specific enquiry has been made with 2 & B WA &) 28 & HAE B S EH

all directors of the Company and the directors have confirmed that they have & FH ¥ ERE > &R K E ~F T LE=H
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the = - — H 1F4F i [ — 1 2 57 12 45 <7 JI] Bir 46
year ended 31st March, 2009. The Company also continued to adopt a code  TEHZ#E o 7/ & JR 4 48 57 49 A B ] AE e ak
of conduct governing securities transactions by employees who may possess  HUI5 B8 SR & Rl 2 8 BEITHE RS 2
or have access to price-sensitive information. SPHER] o

BOARD OF DIRECTORS N

Members of the Board are individually and collectively responsible for  # =% & il B f# Al J 3L [7] A & 48 2 K 348 i A
leadership and control, and for promoting the success, of the Company by 2\ &l > i 75 #8 48 45 J% B8 | 7 42 5] 26 75 A
operating and developing the Group’s business operations and implementing M A7/ 7] 2 EHE RS > HEB) A 2\ 7] 28 )
the Company’s business strategies. As at the date of this report, the Board ~ {Zh o ARG HI > HE b /\ L EHM
consists of eight directors which include five executive directors and three ¥ > & G5 L 24 AT ESE N =2 B I
independent non-executive directors. 1T -

The Company has a balanced Board composition of executive and non- 7N/ ) 55 35 € 45 B4 > i B 84T M IE8L
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors). With 473 % (AUIE M E AT E D) 4Ll » =& &
three Board members being independent non-executive directors possessing  F & i 8 A M7 E AT EF - B HALE
professional expertise and a diverse range of experience, the Board can 2 HL3E R I i 12 K855 > 25 6 ] A 200F H
effectively exercise independent judgment, give independent advice to the 7 JI B ~ [A] A< 2\ & 5 2 @ 18 M8 5 5% -
management of the Company and make decisions objectively in the interests 37 & 8 104 H 4 & A 2 ) K 4 Bl B o 4 il 7|
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The biographical details of %5 2 P7E o # H B BEE I N AERF 132
the directors are set out on pages 13 to 14 of this annual report. There is no 14 o & S €& p B MMM ~ 25 - K&
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the B¢ HiAth & kA B BIIR o

members of the Board.

The Board has delegated the Executive Board or Committee with authority ~#HEGE NI AT EH G LZEE > R T H
and responsibility for handling the management functions and operations 47 {8 & FLIk it S AT AN 7 H % £ EE 2
of the day-to-day business of the Company while specifically reserving — ## J7 & & 4T > 55 4% Bl B 25 T 51 B g5 00 [
certain important matters and decisions, such as annual and interim period 5 ({04F & K rh 3 BARS RS I e ~ LA
financial reporting and control, equity fund raising, declaration of interim &4 ~ HIR P AL E - BEIRAT R WIS 8
dividend, recommendation of final dividend or other distributions, decision  HAB4MIR - 2 HIARYE F i 451478 A 55 14A
regarding notifiable transactions and connected transactions under Chapter — F/H T /M 2 38 5 B B L 28 5 2 1R 7 DA %
14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules respectively and recommendation  k#EFT AN &) A AL sk & A5 (E R 40 BE) &
for capital reorganisation or scheme of arrangement of the Company, for the — F &L -

approval by the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year with at least 14
days notice being given to all directors. Additional meetings, if necessary, are
arranged as and when required. Directors may attend Board meetings either
in person or through electronic means of communication. A total of nine
Board meetings (including four regular Board meetings) were held during the
year ended 31st March, 20009.

The directors are provided with relevant information to enable them to make
informed decisions and appropriate arrangements are in place to ensure
that they are given every opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
the Board meetings. All directors have separate and independent access to
the advice and services of the Group’s senior management and consultants
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are observed and complied with.

The attendance record of each individual Board member at the Board, Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee meetings during the year under

A (A7)

AR A GFERDRITHNROITERG G ®
ERERHROTERGERBETRDO 14X
RSN > QA A2 > AN ) & i 98 o Iy
RSN 2 PRk o S a5 S LLSE T d
AR EEEGER - WEFTTNFE=NA
=t HIRFE S Aada B T RES
Tk BRI ER e g -

SR AN B R > DA A R E -
FHOA B E L RGN
TEREE T IMASE - SEERY LA
1181 1 48 75 A S I o A BN B e R R AR 2
R LB - ISR R S ERERF
VAR T & R B R4 o

TR AR A J7 B (o] A R A 2 ] A5 {1
EFGMAREFE  EUZAG LM E

review, on a named basis, is as follows: BEamsHZHER
Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend
R kAR R ik
Audit Remuneration

Name of Director Board Committee Committee
WA #Hlf HBRZRHA  HFWZRHA
Executive directors: HAr#EH
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman) SRS () 9/9
Mr. Chan Fut Yan (Managing Director) sk 1 SRSl A (o S AR AR ) 9/9
Mr. Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley wERE oA 3/3

(Deputy Managing Director) (il 3 HAFEHE)

(resigned on Ist September, 2008) (P ZFEE/AFEILH — HBHT)
Mr. Cheung Chi Kit RELE A 919
Mr. Lai Tsan Tung, David BRI 8/9
Mr. Ma Chi Kong, Karl RS WA 79
Independent non-executive directors: H oy AT HTF
Mr. Qiao Xiaodong (Vice Chairman) B/NFICH: () 5/9 1/4
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin TR A 7/9 4/4
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva LA 9/9 4/4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d) wHer (4H)

Chairman and Managing Director S & o SRt

The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director, held by separate I P ARSI W A4 R AT - H
individuals, are clearly segregated with an aim to provide a balance of power TR 0 W ) 43 > DASERRRE ) SOMRE 2 1A o
and authority. The Chairman is principally responsible for the strategic F R A AR AR T 2 SR AR DA R
planning of the Group and the management of the operations of the Board. FGg 2R o E R F A AR
The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the operations and business LI ST E 7

development of the Group.

Non-executive Directors FEHITES

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), every director RAFA R R 2 A m A (T A F A > %
is subject to re-election and retirement by rotation at least once every FH DB A R AT SR ERAT o JEL
three years. Non-executive directors are subject to the aforesaid retirement ITIE RN ST BB LDE - WARIEAS B
requirements and are appointed for a specific term of not more than three i = AR R E AT I RAT: o

years.

At least one of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate HRYE E TR I3 1006k - b — 2 S R AT
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management i HA G 7 B AR B R R R R
expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has PRB AN o AN F O S H EHATE
received, from each of the independent non-executive directors, an annual H& HRE LT E'J 313t S B A
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules ZFEMERE R A BELEE AL -

and considers them to be independent.

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of Directors RE - BIL L HEBRESR

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment and nomination of HHREBBARBMESF MRAFE LK
directors for re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting of the SR A s ) R SR A R E g o ARPE A WA
Company. Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the directors shall have the power from AN > 2 5 RER IRy S B IRF Z5 AT AT ] A1 s A
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as director either to fill H > DUEAHE S R 2 B A B
a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board who HRG MR E - WA BN S B
is subject to retirement and re-election at the first general meeting or first METATAR 1 YRR R 2l IR 4 R
annual general meeting respectively after his/her appointment. The Board BAE AT - SR e A PR A A L
should take into account of the candidate’s qualification, ability and potential ZEE - ARERBANF BT o R
contribution to the Company. A candidate to be appointed as an independent ERBSLIERATE R 2 iR 4 N LEMS &
non-executive director must satisfy the independence criteria set out in Rule TR RIS 3.1 35 T 8 7. B 3 AR R o A [ g 46
3.13 of the Listing Rules. During the year under review, no director was BEWA o M AEE o 2 BN E AR B 2 ARG
involved in fixing his own terms of appointment and no independent non- IR 37 AT ¥ 5 2 BT AN A B 2 S B

executive director participated in assessing his own independence. g3 e

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Company complied with REEEFAFE = =+ HIRBMEAF
code provision A.4.2 of the Code by receiving confirmation in writing from JE o AN E CBSF PR Z S RIS A 42
each of the non-executive directors (including independent non-executive o RIF AT E S (RSB AT S ) 2
directors) in relation to their renewed term of office so that every director, AT B 5 2 TR > IR
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement (AR R EAT NERATH) A2V E = Fin
by rotation at least once every three years and pursuant to the Bye-laws, at EARAL — 1k > AR BIAM A > A RCR
each annual general meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for BAERE L > AN EER 45} Z T H R
the time being shall retire from office by rotation such that each director shall ~ {ERAE > LAGE#% # 70 2 D45 = 4R R BRUE
be subject to retirement at least once every three years at the annual general ERGIERIT—IK -

meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a Remuneration Committee with specific written
terms of reference which clearly defines its role, authority and function. As
at the date of this report, the members of the Remuneration Committee are
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin (chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Chan Fut Yan and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva. With the exception of Mr.
Chan Fut Yan who is also an executive director of the Company, the other
members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
directors of the Company.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for all remuneration packages of the directors and senior management,
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy
on such remuneration and reviewing and determining the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee, which follow closely with the requirements
of the Code and have been adopted by the Board and are posted on the
Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee has been provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Remuneration Committee has
discussed and resolved the revision of the remuneration packages of the
directors and senior management and made recommendations to the Board
for its approval.

Details of the remuneration packages of the directors are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements. During the year under review, no
director was involved in deciding his own remuneration package.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has set up the Audit Committee with specific written terms of
reference which clearly defines its role, authority and function. As at the date
of this report, the members of the Audit Committee are the three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin (chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Qiao Xiaodong and Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva. Mr.
Wong Chi Keung, Alvin is a qualified accountant with extensive experience
in financial reporting and controls as required by the Listing Rules.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee includes reviewing the Group’s
interim and final results prior to recommending them to the Board for
its approval, appointing and reviewing the relationship with the external
auditors of the Company and reviewing the Group’s financial information
and the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which follow closely with
the requirements of the Code and have been adopted by the Board, are posted
on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee has been provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d) HREZHG (4

During the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Audit Committee held four BE_ZFEZNF=A=1T—HILHFENXN » F
committee meetings. During these meetings, the Audit Committee had BZEGEHERTUREEGER - N5
reviewed and made recommendations for the Board’s approval in respect of b BEEEGEHEMOBE ZEE/\FE
(1) the draft audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2008 ZH = B R B A iR IR
and the draft unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended ~ M #E “FZ/FEILH =+ H IEAMA 2k
30th September, 2008; (2) discussions on the change in accounting policies KC % A BB R AR 5 (2) B ) ) A B
and practices which may affect the Group with the management and the N B e AN AZ SR A T e S AR AR [ 2 & st
external auditors of the Company; (3) the re-appointment of external auditors R BRAE ) < S B HEA T Bl > (3) AT AMIEAX
for the shareholders’ approval at the Company’s annual general meeting S B DA AR B TR A 2 ) e SR AR R v &
and reviewing the fees charged by the external auditors; and (4) the internal g S AL BT 2 2 5 R () A F]

control policy of the Company. Z N FR B PEOR > I st S TE H 4R A S
S L

The Board and the Audit Committee did not have any differences of opinion BEZFZNF=ZA=1+—HILFE #HFf

during the year ended 31st March, 2009. i B A% 22 B il AT O -

FINANCIAL REPORTING Lips ik

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial S A0 2 05 56 w5 18] B 5 S T A S A S R
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of the state A FUEL N1 Hb S A 4 ] 22 BATS IR D0 B A %
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. In S5 AT 2 e AR BB B A B TAT o AR R
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2009, BETRFNFEZA =4 H IR EZ BT
the directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them RN > FEEOECHEGEIBORC EHUE
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and I 24 V(AR A AN/ S e e - N
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. FF o MR E AR B R o R
The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events A~ AT B N] R A AR T SR A KR 2 BE
or conditions that might cause significant doubt upon the Group’s ability B R B ) 2 S A B S AT AT RO W B
to continue as a going concern. The statement of the external auditors of S N/NEIPIN Y 72 T E S e S
the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the financial W5 ek 2 WA 2 B W OR A AR IR G 44 K
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report, which 45 SO AZ BT

is set out on pages 44 and 45 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION A% B Tl VN 4

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) were re-appointed by e B B BT G wHAAT ([ 58 ) R —FEN
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 10th September, 2008 as A T H BT ZRAURF R G > BRI A
the Company’s external auditors until the next annual general meeting. For HE By A3 W 2 SNSRI - AT 39 2 J JROR
the year ended 31st March, 2009, the total auditors’ remuneration in respect HAERTIE - MEZFEZNFEZH=1T—H
of statutory audit and non-audit services provided by Deloitte is set out R4 BE A ) Jr B itk e e I IR A% IR

below: W5 2 K BRI 4 AR AE g S an R
Services rendered Pt B A IR s Fees paid/payable
ot AR
HK$°000
T o0
Statutory audit fees 2 0E %A 3,931

Fees for non-audit services: IR

Ad hoc projects FeRIEH 1,833
Review of interim results 25 B R ) 2 A 743
Total auditors’ remuneration for the year A P S Vol v 4 A 7 6,507
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly
in respect of the controls on finance, operations, compliance and risk
management, to achieve the Company’s business strategies and the Group’s
business operations. The directors of the Company have adopted an internal
control policy of the Group, which has been developed with a primary
objective of providing general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of internal control and risk management. The Company’s
internal control system includes a well-established organizational
structure, comprehensive policies and standards, periodic reviews on the
implementation of the internal control systems for newly acquired businesses
and operational and financial controls on the acquired property investments
in Macau, the PRC and Hong Kong. Procedures have been designed to secure
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, to ensure maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication and to ensure compliance with the Group’s
accounting policies, applicable laws, rules and regulations. The aim of the
Group’s internal control policy is to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss rather than to eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems and achievements of the objectives of the
Group. The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group and has considered the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget. The Audit Committee has conducted periodic reviews on the
internal audit checklists and reports prepared by the internal audit manager
of the Company which are presented to the Board for its consideration and
approval.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS BB 2 A8

The Board always strives to maintain an ongoing and transparent G ) B ) A OR AR A
communication with all the shareholders of the Company and, in particular, 2 ¥ JEZ R > R I 8 IR OR & BRI R
use general meetings as a means to communicate with its shareholders and W IS 2L o A R R B IROR
encourage their participation. In respect of each distinctively separate issue KEZEZFEAEAFEN S > Zgd#e E
put forward for consideration at a general meeting, a separate resolution is FEAS IR 2 ANRRE - EFGEM O BEA
proposed by the Chairman of that meeting. The Chairman of the Board has NGV &% Ky N 9 3 8 K ST N - )
attended the annual general meeting and the special general meetings of AR b AR o AL ) BR A% 18 4% 4 B
the Company and was available to answer questions at the meetings. The JRCHROUEE A 04 2 A0 T B AR T R R
Company communicates with its shareholders through the publication of DN~ A R RO B A R S SRS RN
annual and interim reports, announcements, circulars and dissemination of R HALE R > 3255 BRI A2 7 4
additional information about the Group’s activities, business strategies and vl http://www.itcproperties.com ° W EE
developments. Such information is also available on the Company’s website: JUFE— A —HHT > %R TR K2 ) AN
http://www.itcproperties.com. Prior to 1st January, 2009, details of the poll HUE R HOR R R R 2 BT RE o AL
voting procedures complying with the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws are A B2 A R 2 38 oK AR A A BCR K & 2
included in the Company’s circulars sent to the shareholders of the Company RS o R SFRIEIIE Bk O —FF L
and in the proceedings of the Company’s general meetings. Following ] HBER) % > AQEERTT K
the recent changes to the Code with effective from Ist January, 2009, the i R N M N/NEI N N ZR N
Company held one special general meeting where notice of not less than 10 A 104 56 4 5 26 H i ER A N > TIHEAT %
clear business day was sent to its shareholders and the detailed procedures for B SR R C AL F 2 AR AL
conducting a poll was explained by the Company Secretary of the Company ARG EAEH AR - REREZFENFEZA
at the meeting. During the year ended 31st March, 2009, some resolutions put ~ — T—HIFFER > RIERERNRgREZ
forward at the special general meetings had been conducted by way of poll T R R ORI R B R 2 o AR P
and the poll results were published in compliance with the requirements of M A B AR B TR R 2 HLE T B SR A

the Listing Rules. &

By order of the Board REF G

Yan Ha Hung, Loucia AL

Company Secretary i

Hong Kong, 24th July, 2009 T XX NAELAZ A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T8 S A% BB i 47

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 3 H jas 45 [ 45 FR A &)

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED FpEA s A [ A B A W) B B R
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (7 F B 7 E M 7 2 A RZNA])

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ITC Properties 442 BLAlifT L 5 82 5546 5 154 B ATl il 4
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to  Hb = £ B A PR 7 ([ FH A A J) B HFHE A A
as the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 154, which comprise the consolidated ~ (Ftfl[ BAEM |) 2 45 & MHs R » Hha s
balance sheet as at 31st March, 2009, and the consolidated income statement, A _EEZNE=HA=+—H2Z245&E A&
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash R &K # E 5% H BIEFEEZ 4 FEG R - 46
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant  fif & 828K K45 A H &M 2R X FEGFHK
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. SRMEZE B Ho A B B 5 o

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED & 3aisi & W B R ARG 2 F4E
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true 5/ 7] 3 H /8 & B AR & W5 & 51l A € 4 i
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 2 7 5 4 45 i 15 M Il 2 B w5 <A IG5 ) 45 B
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong 2 #% i %€ 4 i K BB 111 /2 °F M 471 2 5% 55 ¢
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements A BB 3% 8 AT WG ~ Bl Ak E
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes 54 # K B8 1fif 28 - Hh 51 % 45 A W5 3 = Al
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the B2 RERFE I » DAl 45 & B4 5 e 3= S A7 1R
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial A ¥R Bk & a5 1 B B0 2 K S s Bk 5 284
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or A1 F 7l 5 2 & 5HEOR 5 KIREW FMEHR &
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making 2 @& {fF] o

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY B Wi 2 BT

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial — AT (1) EAT SRR IE AT I BAZ B L S 455 B
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a B FAE HE R - AITAOERE AR IECH 52
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for %4\ 5] 15 )45 90 i /4 AR (4F 24— {1 [ B2 ) 17 4%
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability % > §ifi /S /& HABATA] H /) o 2947 500 A w2 it
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit 4 2 [A 25 BT ] FoAth A R IE AT o] 26 75 422
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong  SZATAT & AT o AN4T B ML 48 & ok 6 ot Fili 2 & 48
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that i Z 7 #k 8¢t 4 HI M7 35 4% o 7 Lk HI| R
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 781732 <738 {5 K540 > I KR 8 K AT 28 4% > LA
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are & 3 i 2 45 & B H R £ 2 & A7 A AL &K
free from material misstatement. SRRt o

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about A% ¥ K BATHE ¢ DASEIUA B 45 & RS iR 3R
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The  FIf i 4 %6 M 75 &Kl 2 BALIRTE T E2
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 72 BB i 42 S il 2 JI B > 60 4% 514G B i 2K
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial — FF B # 5% 1 25 B0 45 & WA FS S A7 A 1 RS i
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, PRl 2 JE M o 76 7RG 3% 25 R B R > AN47 % %8
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and B B il 45 S K BB 1M 20 F- b 51 3 45 B 75 3
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order ¢ AH B 2 A il > DLk ot s & 2 AR
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not ¢ - {H 3l JF /5 360 55 8 7R 3 442 il 2 S R Bt R
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s i, o 4% 75 AU 45 575 % 25 Fr 4% i 2 & 5T BUR
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 2 & #i & FrfE i 2 Gratflist 2 S8 - DU
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates & 5B %E G WA i 2 S5 H 7= -

made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and ~ ARFTAH(E > ANFT A4S 2 A% IR 76 S 78 /2 AT
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. T b 2 A P A L PR LT o

OPINION HR

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair ~ ARFTER A » %545 G B R K E WIEE #
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2009 and of the  FA %5 ¥t 5 ¥ JI BB Bl Pt S e 5 4 [ it
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong ~ —ZFEZJUFE = H =+ —H Z BTBEGRT & &
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in £ H R # £ 5% H IL4EE 2 B EMBA SR E
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies  3lff E 4 & T i A 7661 ) A B 2 P 85 4 € %

Ordinance. S o

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu TER) o B EEBITT Fr R AT
Certified Public Accountants BT Al

Hong Kong B

24th July, 2009 SEZUEEA A
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

A T AR AR

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009)

(BREZZFIFE=ZH=Z1—HIEFE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 s 25 45 |5

2009 2008
“RENAE “ERENE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt EW T T IS
Continuing operations R R0
Turnover e
— Gross proceeds — BT AR SR AR 50 145,121 600,844
Revenue i 5 92,670 181,944
Property sale and rental income WS & KA A 25,751 81,792
Golf and leisure income [BLIESzVSEIETION 44,058 62,622
69,809 144,414
Cost of sales S A (25,726) (67,511)
Gross profit EF 44,083 76,903
Income from loan financing B E TR 21,772 31,789
Net (loss) gain on financial instruments S T H 25 O18) 6 A 6 (169,337) 76,382
Other income HAt A 7 33,995 73,206
Administrative expenses TT R H (133,113) (141,959)
Finance costs WA 2 8 (108,357) (109,933)
Impairment losses on property interests YI2ERE R 2 WA 1R 9 (146,712) (45,000)
Loss on disposal of an associate A F 2 e 21 - (39,486)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries R E A R 2 18 42 - (19,073)
Share of results of a jointly controlled entity FEALG— LRI BRI RS SESR 20 (212) -
Share of results of associates JEAG B v L4k 21 (4,404) (25,047)
Loss before taxation R Al e 45 (462,285) (122,218)
Taxation i IH 10 469 (3,475)
Loss for the year from continuing operations AR BEA B RS S 2
W18 (461,816) (125,693)
Discontinued operations TR B B
Loss for the year from discontinued operations AAEFEA B IR G 2
JEi 18 11 - (18,665)
Loss for the year ARAEFE G 12 (461,816) (144,358)
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2009 2008
“RENAE “ERFENE
NOTE HK$°000 HK$’000
iz BT BT
Attributable to: AL
Equity holders of the Company EN/NCIE T ETE S SN (461,816) (141,853)
Minority interests DB R A - (2,505)
(461,816) (144,358)
Loss per share (53104 T 14
From continuing and discontinued operations: 2k H f¥:%1 & JER BB 27 ¢
— Basic and diluted (HK dollar) — AR KM (W5 T) (1.20) (0.74)
From continuing operations: K H R
— Basic and diluted (HK dollar) — A K () (1.20) (0.64)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AR AR

(at 31st March, 2009) (A _FEMLFE=ZH=1+—H)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 s 25 45 |5

48

2009 2008
“EEMAE e AN
NOTES HK$°000 HK$°000
iz #W T T
Non-current assets JE B
Property, plant and equipment WIS~ BB A 15 186,224 178,543
Prepaid lease payments of leasehold land B et Y A L B IR 16 20,822 20,808
Premium on prepaid lease payments of &+ M AT AL &
leasehold land AH 2 Vi 18 17 111,558 114,294
Properties under development PRI 18 189,000 240,853
Available-for-sale investments AR E 19 37,892 94,570
Interest in a joint venture h— A G A 2 M A 20 44,759 14,745
Interests in associates BN F 2 fE g 21 134,809 135,503
Unsecured loans and interest due from JRE VST 5/ ] 2 AT A
associates B ALE 21 1,073,982 1,077,690
Debt portion of convertible bonds AR A& I 2 A ETR 23 36,320 51,120
Derivatives embedded in convertible bonds AR AR B 2
fiET AR 23 - 4,865
Deposits and expenses paid for acquisition W B b (R RE A
of a land use right e BB X 24 47,275 47275
Deposits and expenses paid for acquisition W B JE 2 ) A i
of subsidiaries JeBA 52 43 47,244 -
1,929,885 1,980,266
Current assets BB e
Inventories ey 26 3,143 2,161
Properties held for sale Giit/ES 539,388 252,903
Debt portion of convertible bonds RIS S5 2 A AR 23 727 =
Financial assets at fair value through N TAEFIR K FEA
profit or loss 15 > &Rl 27 176,552 11,957
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEMCHR R ~ e K
AR 28 503,148 514,795
Other loan receivables Al B AT K 25 208,727 243,133
Prepaid lease payments of leasehold land R - b P A5 AR B R 16 530 517
Amounts due from associates JREMAC It 25 4 vl T 22 2,172 2,154
Unsecured loans and interest due from JARE Wiz B 28/ ] 2 AR A
related companies 1S9 &)= 29 48,437 58,251
Pledged bank deposits C PP ERIT A7 3K 30 44,626 51,818
Bank balances and cash WATHR LB E 30 124,035 243,038
1,651,485 1,380,727




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
A E AR

(at 31st March, 2009) (A _-FEMLFE=ZH=1+—H)
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2009 2008
e 2 IS RN
NOTES HK$°000 HKS$’000
Mt #W T BT
Current liabilities By 1146
Creditors, deposits and accrued charges JEATHRGR ~ e K
JERTBH 31 72,047 70,392
Amounts due to minority shareholders JREAST B g 2 )
of subsidiaries A 32 395 890
Tax payable JREAR IH 11,856 13,252
Convertible note payables — due within — A N B HA 2 AT T
one year JREASS 3K TE 33 7,174 7,284
Obligations under finance leases — due —AE N B RE
within one year TR 34 90 49
Bank borrowings — due within one year —AERE W SRATEE 35 82,830 113,996
174,392 205,863
Net current assets - A 1,477,093 1,174,864
Total assets less current liabilities B AL B £ £ 3,406,978 3,155,130
Non-current liabilities Fi By 1 4%
Convertible note payables — due after I PAE &
one year JREASF I 33 1,328,913 1,236,559
Obligations under finance leases — due after — IR F 2 A&
one year LN 34 282 173
Bank borrowings — due after one year — AR B A 2 SRATH B 35 40,658 39,647
Deferred tax liabilities EREBHHAE 36 27,889 28,574
1,397,742 1,304,953
2,009,236 1,850,177
Capital and reserves JBe7AS B fiti i
Share capital A 37 4,709 30,955
Reserves it 1,997,342 1,812,043
Equity attributable to the equity EN/NTILE LSS DN
holders of the Company JREA HE A 2,002,051 1,842,998
Minority interests DBUR R AR 7,185 7,179
2,009,236 1,850,177

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 154 were approved and 5546 % 154 B it di 45 & M H ¥ % E)@:?Zﬁh
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24th July, 2009 and are ~ 4F-EH 10 H iy # S5 & bl Sz i 1) 8%

signed on its behalf by: S N AE A S
Cheung Hon Kit Cheung Chi Kit
R R B
Chairman Executive Director
EY3 HfTEH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009) (# % “FFAE=H=+—HIL4FERE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED £ #: 1 2 45 [ 5 KL A ]

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AR AR
Retained
Convertible ~ Share-  Available- profits/
Capital - loan notes based  for-sale (Accumul-
redemption  equity  payment investments Warrant ated Minority
Share Share Contributed ~ reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  Special Revaluation Translaion  reserve losses) interests

capital  premium  surplus  BURME WHBRHE R THRAE  reerve  reserve  reseve @BHE BEEA/  Towl SUEK  Total
Rok RO AARE G BORGKE G SEGA ARG WOGKE TR G ORMER) AW BB MGt
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
T BETT ERT N ¥ ERTx BN bETx ERTr BT kR BWTr T dbTr dETx

(Note)
Wit

At Ist April, 2007 REZFZLENA—A 8123 1,066,055 - LI24 368304 3296 3481 (8,908) 1795 10364 - 153005 1621639 50181 1,671,820
Exchange differences arising on HENER

translation of foreign operations EiER = = = = = - - - - 18580 - - 18580 3478 22088
Gain on fair value changes of Afith R AT

available-for-sale investments A - - - - - - M3 - - - - - M - M
Netincome recognised directly inequity  FABARERE B ERERL 2 FACA - - - = - - um = A - - 0%l 34 6640
Released on disposal of TR E A A R

subsidiaries (note 42) (42 = = = = = = = - 991) (21410) - - (2463 (43975)  (66438)
Released on disposal of available-for-sale i & ] it

investments bidciE b - - - - - - (6079 - - - - - (6079 - (6079
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - - - - - - (141853) (141853)  (2505) (144358)
Totl ecognised expenses forthe year  AAE B RS A4 - - - - - - (1638 T I C(W18) (6LL7) (@300 (05119)
Conversion of convertible notes SRS E 4832 268,001 - - (60589) - - - - - - - 248 - 48
Tssue of shares ikt 3000 165,000 - - - - = = = = = - 168,000 - 168,000
Expenses incurred in BRERRAZRL

connection with issue of shares - (5,114) - - - - - - - - - - (5,114) - (5,114)
Recognition of equity-settled TER AR 52 2 el

share-based payments NI - - - - -8 - - - - - ) )
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZFZNEZH=1-H 30955 1493942 - L124 307719 11638 (129000 (3.908) 804 1412 - 11152 1842998 7179 1850177

50



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009) (# % “FFAE=H=+—HIL4FERE)
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AR AR
Retained
Convertible ~ Share-  Available- profits/
Capital - loan notes based  for-sale (Accumul-
redemption  equity  payment investments Warrant ated Minority
Share Share Contributed  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  Special Revaluation Translaion  reserve losses) interests

capital - premium  surplus  BUKBE WHBRHE R WHEME  reserve  reserve  reseve @B BEEA/  Towl SUEK  Total
Rok RORM AARE G RORGKE G SVEGAE MORG WOGKE OB G ORMER) A BB MGt
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
T BETT kKT NI BN BRTx ENTr M ERTr T E¥Tx BT T bETr dETx

(Note)
(3t

Exchange differences arising on translation  #8 SNTET5 2 [ 5 £

of foreign operations - - - - - - - - - 2202 - - 2202 - 2202
Loss on fair value changes of Wk EREATH

available-for-sale investments EhERE = = = = = - (4D = = = = - (WD) - (H4413)
Net income and expenses recognised TR G E

directly in equity ALBARRL = = = = = - (M4 = - = - @ - @
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A {4t &gl (s

investments - - - - - - B3 - - - - - 5w - 53w
Released on disposal of available-for-sale i ] f £

investments g - - - - - - 4299 - - - - - 4299 - 4299
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - - - - - - (461816) (461816) - (461816)
Total recognised income and HEEE AR

expenses for the year et - - - - - -1y - - 2202 — (461.816) (446,691) - (H6691)
Rights sse with varrants e N6 N0 . . . . . . . T o0 o0
Expenses incurred in comnection with ~ BJRMEbA 2 B

rights issue - (3189) - - - - - - - - - - (23189 - (23189
Transfer on lapse of share options TR A = = = = - (4419 = = = - = 4418 = - =
Capital injection from minority JFEM R R

shareholders on incorporation B2 iy tiacs = = = = = = = = = = = = = 6 6
Recognition of equity-settled HER DA S T

share-based payments HZNIES - - - - - 5w - - - - - -5 - 5w
Repurchase and cancellation of shares B Rz 98 (6092) (20,587 - 6,092 - - - - - - - (609) (26,679) - (26679
Capital reorganisation (note 37e)) AR (Het37e) (113,020) - 11300 - - - - - - - - - - - -
At 31st March, 2009 REZFNEZA=A—H 4709 1,972,794 113,020 726 307,719 12,767 23 (8908 804 9674 34571 (452,338) 2,002,051 7,185 2,009,236

Note:  Special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal — Mf7F - A 45 Bl 7 45 A wIAR$E R — Jujuid

value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount 5 (o o A o S 2 ) 2 B A T (i B
of the share capital of the Company issued as consideration under the group AR R AT AR By ARE 2 I AS THI(E P #5226
reorganisation in 1994. o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
maBlailEx

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009) (#ZEZ=FFNFE=H="——HIL4F%)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 3 H jas 45 [ 45 FR A &)

2009 2008
e 2K 2 ZRFE )\
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REBH
Loss before taxation SRR AT e 18 (462,285) (140,325)
Adjustments for: FHEETEH
Finance costs W52 A 108,357 110,546
Share of results of a jointly controlled entity JARE Ao — T[] 2 i A S A 212 =
Share of results of associates JE A\ Bk N ) 2E AR 4,404 25,047
Bank interest income S|ATFE WA (4,676) (10,259)
Interest income on convertible bonds AR AR 2 FLB A (5,502) (3,036)
Interest income on unsecured loan JARE M — T B 7 A ) 2 AT A
due from an associate B A EIEA (14,417) (51,618)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 43 ~ BB et 11,507 17,569
Allowance for inventories 1 BB - 5,106
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIIR 5,313 1,801
Release of prepaid lease payments of T B et Y A L B T
leasehold land LYy 525 2,293
Amortisation of premium on prepaid lease T B et Y A L B IR
payments of leasehold land Tt A S 2,736 2,914
Equity-settled share-based payments PAIRHE S 3 2 AR TE X
expense itk B ST 5,547 8,342
Impairment losses on property interests Yy ERE RS 2 E TR 146,712 45,000
Loss on disposal of an associate A — [ 7 2 R - 39,486
Loss on disposal of property, plant B - BB S
and equipment P i 171 127
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries H B A B 2 548 - 37,644
Net loss (gain) on financial instruments St TH 2 3 E () 169,456 (71,772)
Operating cash flows before movements in KRt B EE BT
working capital KRB ST 4 T (31,940) 18,865
Decrease in other loan receivables At A B2 il D 14,569 31,682
Increase in inventories 17 & (932) (27,652)
Increase in properties held for sale = (39,691) (167,242)
Increase in properties under development Bt R EE R (2,268) (244,128)
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at Fe N TS IR Kt AR 25 2
fair value through profit or loss LRCE EE (Bahn) Wb (279,072) 62,586
Decrease (increase) in debtors, deposits and TEUCHE K ~ T4 M TR R IE
prepayments WD (3 m) 44,008 (43,677)
Decrease (increase) in unsecured loans and JARE T B8 8 ) P B R A
interest due from related companies FE kD (34 m) 9,814 (3,684)
(Decrease) increase in creditors, deposits and JEATHERK ~ 54 S RERTBH 2
accrued charges (70 B (2,761) 48,562
Cash used in operations A0 iy R B4 (288,273) (324,688)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BB s A A5 (1,498) (1,568)
Overseas taxation paid B4 S8 IE - (203)
Interest paid CASAILE (16,113) (22,855)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REBB R
ACTIVITIES BlETH (305,884) (349,314)
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2009 2008
“RENAE ZRTINEE
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
Btz BT BT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BYEEH
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash and cash Ut [ Rk & 2 &) (F1155% i i 1%
equivalents acquired) B4 BB 5 EIEE ) 41 (200,837) -
Loan advance to a jointly controlled entity AT BT — [ P ] 2 o) B (58,811) -
Deposits and expenses paid for acquisition of WAL A A ) A e
subsidiaries KB (47,244) -
Purchase of convertible bonds | YNE Y32 (33,750) -
Refundable earnest money paid O AT TR (32,670) (25,600)
Loan advance to a joint venture B ERT— FEJA %:/ \ ) (29,629) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment AW ~ A e st (15,635) (39,151)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments WA Tt (5,631) (63,258)
Advance to associates BT WA (18) (2,086)
Investment in associates RS AT ZRE 2) =
Proceeds from redemption/disposal of FE ], s T R
convertible bonds RGeS 57,000 44,975
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HAEEHERE
investments RGeS 17,896 226,428
Refundable earnest money refunded SR W] TR AR & 10,000 =
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits O KR SR T A7 s 2> (3G ) 7,192 (11,035)
Interest received SIS 5,722 9,331
Dividend received TR 2,501 1,131
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYZE - B R
and equipment RGeS 974 188
Net proceeds from disposal of associates T A B BT A5 O B AR - 136,607
Advances to associates BT WA - (81,409)
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and cash Hh B BT 2 B (TR BT B
equivalents disposed) Bl KB EEEER) 42 - (56,310)
Acquisition of associates WS R o A - (45,507)
Deposit and expenses paid for acquisition of AT e fe R A
a land use right B % - (5,809)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING  8:% 38 (9i4€) i 3
ACTIVITIES B&EH (322,942) 88,495
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2009 2008
“RENAE ZRTINEE
HK$°000 HK$’000
b3 T BT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES [:3ee 3
Proceeds from issue of shares BEAT Ay P A5 2K E 650,059 168,000
New bank and other borrowings raised BG AT R A 20,247 5,741,188
Repayment to a former shareholder AT — Mg A E 2
of a subsidiary — 2 AR (58,758) -
Repayment of bank and other borrowings TERRSRAT B A & (51,327) (5,668,618)
Share repurchase and cancellation T[] % G B R Ay (26,679) -
Expenses paid in connection with issue of shares #5477 B 2 B2 (23,183) (5,114)
(Repayment to) advance from minority RAF a5 A /D B R
shareholders of subsidiaries (R B (517) 13,493
Repayment of obligations under finance leases {7 fil & fH B R 4% (59) (23)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING S O 14 B A
ACTIVITIES 509,783 248,926
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH B RBEFHEH
EQUIVALENTS WA (119,043) (11,893)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRWH—HZB &Rk
AT 1ST APRIL B&SHEHHE 243,038 254,622
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE A B2 ) 2 5
RATE CHANGES 40 309
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=A=1—HZ3%&
AT 31ST MARCH, BB S AN -
representing bank balances and cash T ERAT 45 B S B4 124,035 243,038
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1. GENERAL 1. — ¥R
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company AN By A E B o AL 2
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange BB BRA T HA i E WA R
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the Gy T BRA R ([ B2 BT 1) ETi o A
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, Church Street, 22 F) Z T M kS R ik 2% Clarendon
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of the House, Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Company is Unit 3102, 31/F., Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Bermuda > A2 7 32 B85 26 B 7 7%
Road, Central, Hong Kong. s H BRI A 1295 55 B4R AT Hh 0 31
1#3102% o
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Hong Kong %A BAES W3R T LAAR N T T RE R M
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. MR o
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal KNFBBETERAT - AEBZ T
activities of the Group are property development and investment BEET A AR - pEE N RAEFN
in Macau, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong (M ) e s i ) 2 us e 3%
Kong, development and operation of golf resort and hotel in the PRC, HE 7 I B R AR R T R Bk R
securities trading and investment and loan financing services. In prior A G - B E E LA E KR
year, the Group discontinued trading of motorcycles and manufacture B o A AREE SR EE E
and trading of medicine and health products, details of which are set FOEL M B N B R N R
out in note 11. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in PRI AR RE L - HEZEME AR Z
note 49. TSR B 549 o
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. RO i B 846w 7 A s 0 5 ¥
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) ([ 78 48 S0 25 90 A Y 10 )
In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments TAAAEE > A4 E E B A s e T A
and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong N ([EBETIAE ) B2 A5
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are BB AR 2 AERT MR R (58 & v A%
or have become effective. e UER D) o
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets BHHEFHEAEORE BN EEMEE
(Amendments) it BA T
TR (ERTA)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements Btk (FPE TR IR
ZEE) -2
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined i (BRI Bl Bk g el 199t
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding ZEG) R4 EENGREEZ
Requirements and their Interaction PR~ RfRiE A
HUE R 2
Z Rtz
The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how PR A0 T e 1 B i Y S e 3 e
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting i 4 T 52 40 A g A T O A e et
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior ] 2 SE 45 B BAT5 IR 00 /28 A A ] K%
period adjustment has been required. 2o [RIY > MEZEAE R A R A o
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Cont’d)
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but

R RO B 68465 i 7 4 ok At o i S
([ el B o e 1) (A7)

A5 B 0 R £ LA DA LA A v
R B AT R ARG RTHER ~ B RT B

are not yet effective. Ak o
HKFRSs (Amendments) ~ Improvements to HKFRSs! Bt BA T e ) Bl B 2
(E7TA) et
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs 2009> T B e R CRBNER I
(E7T4) sk U A 2 ot
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements? B et UEflsE 198 RFIH e
(KR1E5T)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs? Tk aFHENSEREE  fEERAS
(A&1E5T)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial BETHEAET A R B R
Statements* (A&1E5T)
HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and B EFEALE S ATz ER TR
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation® eAbALHEN! TR A A AR 2
i
HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged Items* B EFEAE3 0% A EREIHE
(E7TA)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, T B e R B AT ~ 4[]
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or SR A GR RS E
Associate’ R 279 (BRI A) NG Z A
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Vesting Conditions and Cancellations? B s T R ) L GE
AL CHEN)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations* T s B e R E it
S39E (RAERT)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)  Improving Disclosures about Financial Bt BA T e ) WEAHEM TR
Instruments? TR (ERTA) PR
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments? BT R BB
i858
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 & Embedded Derivatives’ ik (BB R REfTE TR
HKAS 39 ZEE) - RRY
(Amendments) B artEd]
3938 (B7TA)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes® Btk (HPR B R E2 R &P RalEle
ZEE) 2139
HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Btk (HPR TR AHEERNEZ
Real Estate’ ZHE)-REEISHE R
HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in Btk (HPR TR 2R BN A2
a Foreign Operation’ ZHE)-REH65 B
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Btk (HPR TR 2R WA ARSI
Owners* ZHE)-RERIR EE
HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers® Btk (FPR B ARG 2 R R PR EE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. JRE JH 5B ) B 28848 5 7 WS BV % it o v 1)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Cont’d) (Fﬁ#&ﬁﬁ%ﬂi el ) (A7)
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009 W EENFE—H—HE jZZJﬁF}ﬁiZA
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods ﬁzrﬁﬂfﬂﬁi)& v B S 5 E L
beginning on or after 1st July, 2009 BSURBERT ARSI » HIR ZF T IJULE
B H — H B AR BG4 BEH T AR 2
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009, 1st 2 ME-ERENFE—H—H - ZFFTIE
July, 2009 and Ist January, 2010, as appropriate tH-HERZZF—-FF—-H—H (&
G L) B2 A% B ik 2 4F 13 3 TR A=
xl(
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009 3 N_ERNFE—H—HRZEHEZ
A 2 A 5k
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009 4 HERENFEL A —HERZ BRI
@E,ﬁﬁ F"]élziﬁl
g Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June, 2009 ¢ R EZERIEANA =T HRZ B R
Z@F EHFBEJCDJI
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist July, 2008 6 NFER/NFELH - HRZEHEZ
4 B2 ) Ak
C Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October, 2008 7 R EERNFE+HH—HERZZRIRZ
IR A5k
g Effective for transfers on or after 1st July, 2009 8 E e <2y SR s Rl = W L
A
The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s EUCEE H AR A H — H
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition date A% > RIER AN s B RS 2 1 55 3 5
is on or after 1st April, 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the (#AE%T) Al RE s 20 B A 4 B 2605 5
accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership interest 1}? ZEEHEM o HUSE IR 2798
in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate that the (BRABTT ) 15 5 28 7 4 [ A [k o 2 ) 22
application of other new and revised standards, amendments or %ﬁ% BE)Z OEHEE o AN FHE
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the TR > A BT S AR s T HE R
financial position of the Group. 1B 5T S R AN G ) A4 [ ) SE 4 % B
T R VU R B
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX 3 Fiy o
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the R 40T ST BT S g ORI a4
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which T EI AN EFEA - 4565 5 HhE
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies TORRAREE S8 AT AR Y o

set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in SEAE SRR T ¥R W e AT & AR
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued i 2 7 Wb WA 5 Sk 45 HE RV A S o W
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements Gh o GEA BB IRER AR s ITRE S5 b
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the TR B R T s s mGRB)) BRUE 2 78
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong s o

Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation GR ki

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial SR M IR EE A DA A B A 7
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company B CLH B AR 2 PR o &
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the RN T HEA P E — B 2 A s
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as LR 2 RETy > SN 8 i 47 At EL VR B A
to obtain benefits from its activities. il g 5 R4 A0 25 AR 2 T R o

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are T A Wi il 2 R N AR T
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date B Y B AR R H B B 2 B AR A H
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Bk (B DL 2 ) FEASR G AR -

57



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 3 U 265 A P

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009) (#ZEZ=FFNFE=H="——HIL4F%)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 3 H jas 45 [ 45 FR A &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is
able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including building, held for use or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress) are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EREHBOR (A1)
Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) W ~ MG (A7)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, W2 - B SRR A (BRI LARSN) 2
plant and equipment other than construction in progress, over their Prg TR E A =T AR - 3l % i E)
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated LAl S AR 6% (B A% DA L AR 1 L A
residual value, using the straight-line method. MEH TG
Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment R TREREYE - W > 7
in the course of construction for production or for its own use TR EvE S REAESAR -
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any e AR DABRUAS 11 R 2 w2 Tol B e 48
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified G o B AR ST e B F e > 7
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when = LFREGEH B AW - WK%
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, Bl o W R EE PERLE &k > H
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the 785 B s 5 SR NIE B LA ) 2 E i
assets are ready for their intended use. FHA IR o
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected DLRICE TR S R A 2 6 A % T e A A
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the R A B R E AR 2 B E
term of the relevant lease. BAARI (AR 5 2 ) 47 8% -
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon Wi~ B M E B A S EUE TR
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise HARF T 5% A AN A A R AR
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on TEH 4 RF A IR FERR o K IETERERZE R
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between W JIT 8 A A o] 82 e (DA 65 A5k I T
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is FHHLEZIE H MR (A M 2 22805100 1T
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which AR RZIH H A 2 A R R
the item is derecognised. A e
Prepaid lease payments of leasehold land FHEE L M FE A A B K
Prepaid lease payments of leasehold land, which represent up-front AT K T 4 T A 5 R 5 2
payments to acquire leasehold land interest, are stated at cost and AR > TR ARSI - IR
released to profit or loss over the period of the lease on a straight-line HATHITE 3B 4 A 2 LA R 6 o
basis.
Premium on prepaid lease payments of leasehold land FH T - b T A5 AH I A O = ¥
Premium on prepaid lease payments of leasehold land represents TG 1 b TE AT FH B 30008 2 Y 18 38 PR
premium on acquisition of prepaid lease payments of land use rights 88 o Jog 2 ) T WA 6 - b P R R4S AL
as a result of acquisition of subsidiaries, which are stated at cost and ERIEZ W8 TI ARG IR -
released to profit or loss on the same basis as the related land use B A [ 1 4t {58 PR RE A /] 2 FEHEAE $8 45
rights. RS
Properties under development Bk
Properties under development for future sale in the ordinary course TE Hw 2ER M AR o AR B AR 8 5 %
of business are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. It B R P ) SE R A B T SE SR TR
comprises the costs of land use right and development expenditure AR E FIHR o A B & AH AL 45 L (5 A
directly attributable to the development of the properties. BE A B 8% A B S B AR A 2

JREBA S NA o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled operations

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled operations,
the assets and liabilities arising from those jointly controlled
operations are recognised in the balance sheet of the relevant
company on an accrual basis and classified according to the nature
of the item. The Group’s share of the income from jointly controlled
operations, together with the expenses that it incurs are included
in the consolidated income statement when it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transactions will flow to/from
the Group.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a
jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the jointly controlled entity.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EREHBOR (A1)

Interests in associates (Cont’d) TR A 2 WERS (AF)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated Wi N W) 2 SE A % E B i DAME A
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method ERIEFTA NS 55 G MBS RN o 7
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates BHEAR 1k - RIBE A R ZBE TR
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for A (S A 45 [ A A 4% R A G T /A )
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the B TR E SR AT AT ek (B 18 1 3R )
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s WAEAT A WU E B R A S S B A
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that BfER o AL B EAS T A 75 1E
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, A A B L LA B2 A W 2 M AR
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group (AT A | 40 BOASSE B sZ
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional AT BB FFEI 2 R L) IR A
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the SR AL FERR LA — S 1R o A
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or 45 9 o 7 M AL AR A1 s TR BRI Bk o NI
made payments on behalf of that associate. A A T AR 3R R N T T E AR R

S B RE FAL BB R AR A f5 o

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the TREAGAR - AT AT A G2 [ R A AT R
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost E - AEKSARAEZ A TFIREZE
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit BFUER H WSO AR A R IRR A 48 6 PR o
or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits A [ B LA AR N AT RS
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the Sy Wee > 15 4 S BLAC AR [ A A BB A
relevant associate. A 4 B o

Inventories Pty

Hotel inventories and other inventories are stated at the lower of T8 5 A7 & B A A7 8 T e A B vy 5
cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted B 2 AR AR o AR DL A T
average method. WESE -

Properties held for sale RAL/ES

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net B W S0 AR % v 5 B B 2 AR
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to FHAIR o AIEELTHE ) 2% BN E
professional valuations or directors’ estimates based on prevailing S R IR BT I DAL TS E o

market conditions.

Financial instruments SRt T R

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the ik 4 B B % 5 LB A #ESC 2 5T 4
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to T o B4R A 8 e A R R A
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and EEeMAR SHMEEREMA
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction B LN TEFTE o RIS a7
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of A 7E T4 R AR (R A “F-(EL A R B
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial TSR RS 2 5 Rl G A KA A RSN
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss T B FE AR 2 38 5 LA > W15 R
(“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the RN A 4 Rl 7E B84 Pl B 6 (F% 7 1
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial L) ZATE B 4 Rl 2 sl mil A i
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition (H2 8 R D0 2 A BB o PRl g
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or N TES IR KRt A SR 15 2 4 Rl &
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. a4 il AR T B B A 2 2 o AR B

5 1 4 AR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that

the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EREHBOR (A1)
Financial instruments (Conz’d) ST H(4)
Financial assets (Cont’d) BB ()
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d) TSR K st AR #5 2 S G E (48)
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be B RS D > AIEEEE B 2 &
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: B DLV RS EE o AR G fERR
Iy 4 &) 43 7 #4228 “F-{H 51 iR K st A48
5
e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement o G R B o A ORI AR T
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or fERR ] B th R — B2 A 5 8k
» the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets o Gl E AH AR A Al Bl Al
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its ARG BE 25 - AR
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance PR B2 1 I 7 JeR o P A R
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment W > 0T (E L A P R Al L
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided KB > TS E R I 5% 2k E
internally on that basis; or INEBER AL 5 Bk
e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded o ERRIEAEAMMEE ML bk
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract ARMETHZ GHH AT
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL. T 75 Y 1 JU) 565 39 558 70 i B

mEHEH (EERARE) #1755
HAFEAF ARG Z &ME

FE o
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial IRVIIETERE Z A4 AH » A TE
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value BB B A 7 2 4l & E DL F{E
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. FHE o AP AR E) (e IR M B A
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend 4 TERR o FAME R R R R 2 H 4 1T
or interest earned on the financial assets. BN EL 4G 7% 55 4 il 78 T 2 BT
BB K AE o
Loans and receivables BRI BRI
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed AR T B SR B T NI 48 A R T 4
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 18 2 [ 2 s 15 8 &R 2 AT E &
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans RUEE - VB ERESLEEA - &
and receivables (including debt portion of convertible bonds (see X EMCHIE (L3 nT R R 25 2 AR
accounting policy below), debtors, other loan receivables, amounts WO (FEZ M T X2 @ FtEoR) ~ Elk
due from associates, unsecured loans and interest due from related AR~ HC At RE ORI - RESCER A
companies/associates, pledged bank deposits and bank balances BRI~ MEA BN | B A R A
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest AR L ANE ~ BRI ERAT A3 DA
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy SRATEE R B4 B LVE R AIE I > 3%
on impairment loss on financial assets below). 0 8 A ol AT AT ik A ek (S 4R B
(FEZ BT 3CA Bl <6 A& 2 A s 18
EHIBOR) o
Debt portion of convertible bonds AR RS AR
Convertible bonds held by the Group are separately recognised as AKE [ BT R A 2 AT R B 5 T AR
a debt portion and derivatives embedded in convertible bonds. On B A5y B 4R IR 25 N & 2 A A TRy
initial recognition, the debt portion of the convertible bond and the BHAERR o NG FERR IR > Al R LA 25
embedded derivatives are recognised separately at fair value. The AR RN A TREA B A
debt portion is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the A BHAERR o FAHAR AR » & 4
effective interest method. 1 R B R SR S AN T 2 -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. In all other circumstances, derivatives embedded are
not separated and are accounted for together with the host contracts
in accordance with appropriate standards.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EREHBOR (A1)
Financial instruments (Conz’d) ST H(4)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) 2l T D 1 (A
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could T A MR EENS » BEZE
include: BB E AT REALES -
»  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or o BEAT N TF 5 7 7E B B B
B
. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or o EATEIER IAF B EHALE 5 5
e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or o [EFNA N HEML A BT A TS B
financial re-organisation. A -
For certain categories of financial asset, such as debtors and JRRE M R 5 At Wi R S B A
other loan receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired IE AR A W AE 2 25 T 5 ml g A
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective A% i e 8 I AT W E R A o MER
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables WA 2 5 IBLIL (R 78 15 v] L 46 A 4R
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, B 2 A A O AR B~ AHLA T E R AR K
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past Z 90 H 5 S sl i sk 2 1B 2
the credit period of 90 days and the repayment date of other loan H A 2 U > DA R B R A AR 2
receivables respectively, and observable changes in national or local W B 2 4 B sy 58 551K 300 I B ek
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables. 5 o
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss DA S A S 2 e Rl EE T S
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that 1 5 A7 AE 518 78 0 R I G A | B
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the {H > HIU(E 5 18 A 18 45 B A fERE -
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future S e A R T 1 B 42 ) i PR R S R
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. B2 A% BB B2 B E 2 =85
= o
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the T SREENS > SREE IR
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception T {8 B4R W R 1R D > HE R R
of debtors and other loan receivables, where the carrying amount K S HAth R i B R R A > HLARTEIE TS
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the 75 5 B AR H O D o IR H
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit 2 VT {38 ) i 48 2 TR A0 R o iR
or loss. When a debtor or an other loan receivable is considered 1S R A B R At R A R K AR 2 R i
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. ] > HI BEEE A AR E sy o HAR I
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited RS 2 SEF AR IR A -
to profit or loss.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent T DA BH A B (2 e Rl EE T S
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease ik 25 & A% 10 R Dl (L Js 1B BB e > > T
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment B2 80 T B M B (B B TR ME R AR 0t
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is A2 HIAW S > RISEHTERR 2 W E
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount TRIA 8 A MR ] o PR DR (EE H &
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed FEE 2 TR T (L AS 75 6 408 i 2 S 48 fie 5 il
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not {HIFA 2 HEEH A -
been recognised.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not ATt AR AR 2 U R AR AN
be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in TA BE A% 3 [ 7 18 5 AR ) o A U (EL RS
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in TR SR AT 2 AT ART 2~ {5 18 0 L 422 1A i

equity. AR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors, amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries, and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible note payables

Convertible note payables issued by the Company that contain
both the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible note payables and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible loan notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible loan
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component, representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible loan notes equity reserve until the embedded option
is exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible loan
notes equity reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible loan notes equity reserve will be released to the retained
profits (accumulated losses)). No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EREHBOR (A1)
Financial instruments (Conz’d) ST H(4)
Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d) A 1 R ()
Convertible note payables (Cont’d) A I SR AT R ()
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible note LA T A 0 S S 4 IR A S TELAH Bl 2 28
payables are allocated to the liability and equity components in Ty LA T3 4% B 4% 3R 3E 2 1) 43 BE 451 4 il
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs Z A IRASTER S o BLRAHR 43 46 B
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity. G MATI BRI AR o BEE
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in fRHR 3 4 BR 2 28 5 LA T st A AR
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the oy Z HRTEE > M7 5 AT 46 i S 4 AV K
period of the convertible note payables using the effective interest TH 2 AF J5R B I S 18
method.
Equity instruments A TR
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the AN ) BT AT A T B3 2 W 15 3K
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. THIN R B IR T ARSI -
Upon repurchase of the Company’s own shares, the respective shares AR IR AR 0 F A B 2 IRy I A B
are subsequently cancelled upon repurchase and accordingly, the O3 A B 1] 458 7 DA GE 8 > AA R Z B
issued share capital of the Company is diminished by the nominal BEAT WA I G 2 A [ TR 1 AH EAFE S it
value thereof. The premium paid on repurchase is charged against the W o HEAT I R IRF O AT 2 U6 (B AR A
Company’s share premium account. An amount equal to the nominal Z IRy i B HR AR o — S A 1
value of the shares repurchased is transferred from retained profits i [ S 043 TG (L 2 SR el R B i ) (2R
(accumulated losses) to capital redemption reserve. TR ) e 5 AN i [ 445 o
Warrants PR RS
Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by the exchange B A2 A AT DA BE B A R AR S ]
of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s own AR B 7 BRI A T B T 45 2 38
equity instruments are classified as an equity instrument. WER B A RATH -
The fair value of warrants on the date of issue is recognised in equity A M HE RE A AT H A 2 ST (R HE A
(warrant reserve). The warrant reserve will be transferred to share (FRILMERE ) TRERR o R ICRERE fti M
capital and share premium upon exercise of the warrants. Where T T R S A (ol A el A A % e
the warrants remain unexercised at the expiry date, the amount i A8 o iR SR AR e T 30 1 R
previously recognised in warrant reserve will be released to the AT - A A 8 M % A e R 2 &2
retained profits (accumulated losses). BN RER B EA (R5HER) -
Derecognition AL R
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash i 1 A BB 4 O i 2 ME R
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred > B Al e A A B
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards LT 45l E R HE 2 A DR B O LB
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial Kl > R4 - R 4 AU E o
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum REC I TERE A o IR
of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain B 2 o5 o A AR AR R A E ik
or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in R BB M2 A -
profit or loss. i ARFERR o
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified FiRER A > HRAARHTTHZ
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The TR EAEEBAT - BN Bk I R £ 1k
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability TERR o #¢1b TR 2 4 Rl B {5 JE T (L B
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in CL A ml AT AR 2 22 T 18 MR A
profit or loss. iR o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Revenue in relation to hotel and golf club operations are recognised
when the services are provided.

Golf club annual subscription fees are recognised on a straight line
basis over the subscription period of one year.

Golf club membership transfer fees are recognised upon approval of
the transfer by the management committee of the golf operations.

Building management fee income is recognised on a straight line
basis over the relevant period in which the services are rendered.

Sales of securities investments are recognised when the related
bought and sold notes are executed.

Sales of completed properties are recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EREHBOR (A1)
Leasing (Cont’d) M ()
The Group as lessee RIE[FEZAFAN
Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Yol EFL B R 2 6 e A BH b6 1y
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at Z N TR 8 AR AR B A R B 2 TR A
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding HERBARLEEEE - HAAANZHRE
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as ARG EEARRIERMERE
a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between HRAE o FH A AT KR H R B s
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve RAAZ R W> 2 AR Al A
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. R % S AR A R AR AT L [ 2 B
Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss unless they oo WESEH HE A E PR > B
are directly attributable to qualifying assets in which case they are FEEFAGEREREN > TEZFI
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy on T AT B A A A T A R R A
borrowing costs (see below). ZEEHEOR (RN 30 #REA -
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss EEME B RNA B E
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits BEIN BRI - ERFT LB EME
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating 2 B A R R AR 2 N AL DL
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease on R Sy A B S D o

a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies i

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, A 45 {181 4R VB R . B R AR
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that DLZE M T B LAS U (O ot
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional 12285 T LA ELThRE 11 s (BN EC Rl 4
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in Z R EARIRYE 2 ) 35 by H e
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on W2 MERFOER o RS EEHH » LIS
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary GIME 2 BWIHE DA H 2 [ERE
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates B o LAANEF A I 4 A T (E 51 B
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at Z B WEIEH DU E AT 2 HE IR
fair value was denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at Z MEREHIRE o DUAMNERA AT
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. A IFEHIHE R T E R o

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, EEE NI AR E G IE B
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit JEE A TR 5, 25 A 2 A T R A 4 ik
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences 7o EHTRE LI TEYR 2 I
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair TH H P74 2 T 5t 22 R I INFE AR
value are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange R (G T A = Bl () Tl I
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in TR 2 I B TE P A AR B 52 R
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in Ah s R MIE BT o R 5822 BN H R
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in HE £ N HERR o

equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and others providing similar
services after 1st April, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based payment reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will
be transferred to retained profits (accumulated losses).

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are measured
at the fair values of the goods or services received, unless that
fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the goods
or services received are measured by reference to the fair value of
the share options granted. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognized as expenses immediately. Corresponding
adjustment has been made to equity (share-based payment reserve).

70

St

T EHHEOR (A7)

AN ()

MBI G EMBIRRM S » AL
NEBZEERARYELSAEH
E R0 Ay A SR 1B 2 25 &5 (BN
W) o A B B S Bl 4F T T 2 R 3R
HSE > B IE 0T ME S B R -
RUCTEBLT - RIS 22 5 8 H 2 BE
3R o i A R S0 SR (A0 ) FERR B ik
A2 BSLERGY (R ) o A R FE 56,
ZERRN R2 A AP E5 & W I TE 4 4R
R -

DAIBEAD 7 e S0 2 22 5
LIRS LR GB35 X5
AOELXHAENH —HERTERA R
FoAb SR AR 2 At 2 B
) SESRERISEC ] e P
{0 TA 78 X 2 T A AR 5 2 O YR B
JE S TH] DA T R S > TR A (LA
17 B FERRE ST ) T e AR ESE m

RBEEE B > AL G T LB T
T A B B B PSR B 2 A o At
SET A B ) (W) Z R BN R AR R
HERE > Sl 36 DU G 5 ZE Bt SCAT il 4
HARRET R

T B IR AT i ey - AR A T DAL
BT S ARK fth 45 it W 2 < TN 0 = L
7t 8 o 6 R BC R B Y 1% i 62 i
A T i H AR AT - R AR A
B 5 5 B S ARH {2 < UMY
2R EE R (RFHER) o

BT BLRE R, ] 2 B R

A B ik RS AT 2 B
PR wh SO B 2 > F{ERHR > BRIF
AVEARRER MR > MI2E T2
S B 2 O Y- (ELA T B o SR
LA o PTEICR B SRS 2 A F
{0 B RFRERE 25 BH 32 > MEAR (DUBeq o 5%
BESCAHA) AR AR RE R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 3 U 265 A P

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009) (#E _“FENE=H=1—HIL4FEE)

Annual Report 2008-2009 4E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. HREHBOR (A1)
Borrowing costs i BB AR
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction B R - ERSEE S ERE
or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the FEZAE R MA YR EAR > RS
cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases B T A o B KB b A]
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or FEARANEEEST H R s B 5% 5
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of A B IR ARG o fEFFE S E
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is ARG G B A 2 ST IR IR AR 4
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. HRTHRE . B AE A S BB R

EAR ZAERA IR o

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period It A A i 5 A g A G 7 A T
in which they are incurred. 4 THERE o
Impairment losses on tangible assets BB v A 15
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts REFEAH > AEFESEAREEE
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication ZHRME > DUHEE A & B RBUR %55
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable HE B E R o MR IEE E 2 AT
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, Wi ] B BEAS SRR L AR I (E > 5% &
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. R T (L 1% ol 22 JFE P i ] < % o UMH
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately. IR Ry
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 0 9ok (L s 4R L AR B [ - ) s TR T (1
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its A1 2 HAETT Z G wH T i ] 4
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does MERZ 38 N 2 B T (E A 75788 3 R 4R
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had AR NI A A58 7 i R A T Y (L 17
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A 146 78 2 R TR (B » I (s 1R 8 [l @ BT IR
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately. TERR 2 A o
Retirement benefit costs ARARAEF B AR
Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans are F 5 OB R R s 4R 2 RO
charged as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling i 54 £ ik 75 4 L e =2 3t 2k Ry 51 /3 B
them to the contributions. X e
Taxation LA
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable JIT A5 B BA =7 8 AT IR S0Bd TE K 3 SiE ol
and deferred tax. THZ HaF0 o
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. FRAT IO B000 VL T i AN A R SR vk A
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated FTOA o MERRBL I A BLAR A 48 45 R I ik
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense Yo AN IR o T ER R IS 646 o Ath 4
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes JE 2 L sl AT F B A 5 B S > I
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for H RN 645 U 75 3B BUA e fn B 2 TH
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or H o AEEZBATBHAMIRLH
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. H T e ok B PR LA 2 B RO o
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying 0 SIE A TE ik B A TS R R N
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial B R T B 5T B E SRR e A BT AR A
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of JEBL L 2 2R > AR AEERA
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability RIEFVHR o 78 2B TH A 8 — M & st
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all A FE SRR Ry 25 B e R o 17 AR A A T
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised B T T AE H ERRE S vk ) DA B
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available AN 2 T R 2 A IR RERR o A T RS
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such IR B P2 R A RS R B
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference T A SR & 51 A 2 32 5 (EHS A BB
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a Hh) HAbEE KA > RIS Er iRl iz s
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction e KA -

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Allowance on other loan receivables

As at 31st March, 2009, the carrying amount of other loan
receivables, was HK$208,727,000 (2008: HK$243,133,000). The
Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its borrowers and
adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the borrowers’
current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review of their
current credit information. When there is objective evidence of
impairment, impairment loss is determined based on the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. If the financial conditions of the borrowers
of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances may be considered.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d) 4. AR AHE 2 PR 3 - 2R ()

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale investments G R = e T T

As at 31st March, 2009, the carrying amount of the available-for-sale Mo EENE=ZH=1—H > aJftH
equity investments was HK$37,892,000 (2008: HK$94,570,000). B A 2 B T R 2% W% 37,892,000
The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities are JG (= F /A« #5194,570,0007C) °
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline AL A AR R 5 2 P E K B
in the fair value below original cost. The determination of when a R IR FL IR A A IRe > A4 [ i o2
decline in fair value below original cost is not recoverable within a O BRAE o 287 Al i 2 A PR A
reasonable time period is judgmental by nature, so profit and loss A FRIRE A AT AR A A A Sl S s 48
could be affected by differences in this judgment. T Ja PR > DR ik ) B R 48 AT

DAFH 7 RE TR B 2 25 BT 32 51 5 28 o

Estimated impairment on properties under development/ BRBE B EZ A EHRAE
properties held for sale

As at 31st March, 2009, the carrying amounts of properties under M oEEZNFE=H=1+—H » &R
development and properties held for sale are HK$189,000,000 and W2 B A B W 2 2 MR THI (B Tl 2 Vs T
HK$539,388,000 (2008: HK$240,853,000 and HK$252,903,000) 189,000,000 7T J% i #5539,388,0007C ( —
respectively. In determining whether impairment on properties FF)\AE 15 1240,853,000 70 S 5 B
under development/properties held for sale is required, the Group 252,903,0007C) © fifE R
takes into consideration the intention of the properties for use/sale, EYERGTEWE  AEEE R
the current market environment, the estimated market value of the L ERE R Bk
properties and/or the present value of future cash flow expected to UL~ AT TE K SO R AR
receive. Impairment is recognised based on the higher of present AR R B o WH 2 R
value of estimated future cash flow and estimated market value. If the MR 51 2 A B 46 Tk &2 B Al = i {1 v
market environment/circumstances changes significantly, resulting HzmE o MR & WA &
in a decrease in the recoverable amount of these properties interest, KEESE > T 45 R A% AR 2E 2 nl i nl
impairment loss may be required. R > RIZELE RSN E R o
Income taxes Pt Bt

As at 31st March, 2009, no deferred tax asset has been recognised on MW EENE=ZA=1+—H > AR
the tax losses of HK$700,389,000 (2008: HK$517,627,000) due to [ N i - A S
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the #5700,389,000 7G ( —~FF)\4E :
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits 517,627,0007% ) i VEL e 15, e o A 6 I
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. B o MR AT TE B R A B B AR T

AR 2 75 A 2 400 A 24 di 1) BB R
A S R ] LA
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5. REVENUE 5. Wtk
Revenues include revenue from property development and Wit GLEE ) 258 AR B R A - ST
investment, golf and leisure operations, loan financing income, RBR B H 26 - BRI ~ FF
dividend income from investments held-for-trading and net gain on EEBEREZ B BWA X HERFEE
disposal of investments held-for-trading. BRE Z I FFHE
Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts received and Wi i 8 AR T BIE B BF = B G B R 6
receivable from third parties, net of discounts and sales related taxes B A A BE T AR O e B R i 3T 2 AR
for the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year, for both o AE AR 2 s (B RR A AR
continuing and discontinued operations, is as follows: ST I R RAE ST ) Z T R
2009 2008
“RBNAE ZRTINEE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T T
Continuing operations PR R
Loan interest income BHA B A 21,772 31,789
Sales of properties SHEIZE 17,901 76,619
Hotel operations S aTIPAS 14,563 18,852
Green fees, practice balls and car rental T - GUEER K
income A 10,738 19,895
Food and beverage sales SHEE Y AR 10,639 12,698
Rental income B HA 7,850 3,270
Golf club subscription fees and handling fees = 8 JSEBR & & 2 K F 48 7 5,993 8,174
Pro shop sales HEE R 2,125 3,198
Dividend income from financial instruments 4 @l T 2 B St A 970 1,131
Net gain on disposal of investments HEREEEREZ
held-for-trading T3 ) 119 4,610
Building management fee income A R TR - 1,708
92,670 181,944
Discontinued operations TR R R
Sales of medicine and health products BB T R - 115,741
Sales of motorcycles S PEFEE - 17,567
- 133,308
92,670 315,252
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6. NET (LOSS) GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. AT H2 8O ) &M

Continuing operations

TR IR 2205
2009 2008
e 2 Ko RN
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
(Decrease) increase in fair values of: IS T 2 AE (D) B
— investments held-for-trading —REEERE (114,477) 9,608
— derivatives embedded in — ] AR S5 B 2
convertible bonds i TE (3,247) 1,944
— equity-linked notes — JREAS G T4 - 710
Impairment loss on available-for-sales AL EREL
investments WE R E (53,037) -
(Loss) gain on disposal of available-for-sale & A] fik Hh & 4 & 2
investments (M58 Y6 ) (4,299) 60,752
Gain (loss) on disposal of convertible bonds i AJ #5552 3 A1l (548 3,103 (2,373)
Dividend income on available-for-sales At ERE 2
investments BB A 1,531 426
Dividend income on investments FEEEREZ
held-for-trading R A 970 705
Net gain on disposal of investments LEREESREZ
held-for-trading T3 119 4,610
(169,337) 76,382
7. OTHER INCOME 7. BN N
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
FREUR B FeFe B R bt
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEBE ZEFTNE ZRFAME ZETE BB ZFR\E
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt ko wRT W Tc BWTa W
Bank interest income HATRIEA 4,676 10,168 - 91 4,676 10,259
Exchange gain, net HE 5 e 1 4 2,841 2,732 - - 2,841 2,132
Interest income on [E i eive
convertible bonds FIEBA 5,502 3,036 - - 5,502 3,036
Interest on unsecured loan T — A A )
due from an associate SEFCAR R 2 AR - 27,942 - = - 27,942
Other interest income (Note)  FLAFI A (4ff7#) 14417 23,676 - - 14417 23,676
Others Hit 6,559 5,652 - 876 6,559 6,528
33,995 73,206 - 967 33,995 74,173
Note:  The interest income is receivable from a shareholder of an associate Mitat - RS A B B i — R S FD —

since HK$281,150,000 of unsecured loans due from an associate
was advanced to the associate as the shareholder did not provide its
portion of the loans. Details are set out in note 21.
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. g5 dii]
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
FERBRG TR GBI A
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

s £ 2N S /K S S 91K S IS e S 9[% e S ON -
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
wHTL  EWTC  wWTx  wW T #lTE  ERT

Effective interest on convertible A [ 24 e < 2 E

note payables ZEBHE 101,414 97,681 - = 101,414 97,681
Interest on bank borrowings AN AR N RS
wholly repayable within ZRITE S
five years ZAIE 6,919 11,416 - 613 6,919 12,029
Interest on obligations under B EREZ
finance leases FIE 24 8 - = 24 8
Interest on unsecured loans from: 28 B N 51|45 )y 2 &4
BHZAE -
Minority shareholders of WA R
subsidiaries B - 734 - - - 734
Related companies BT - 94 - = - 94
108,357 109,933 - 613 108,357 110,546
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY INTERESTS 9. LIES Erea T

Continuing operations

TR B XD
2009 2008
ZEFRMAF ZEENF
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T EHTT
Impairment losses on: TS H 2 R R
— prepaid lease payments of leasehold land ~ — FH & - b B S AH B 3k TE 12
and premium on prepaid lease LB - Y 5 L B R
payments of leasehold land (note 16) Z U ME (M aE16) - 45,000
— properties under development (note 18) — BRI (K FE18) 54,121 -
— properties held for sale (Note) i E i 92,591 -
146,712 45,000
Note:  During the year, the directors conducted a review of the Group’s Bt - N EHRALE E Y
properties held for sale and determined that certain of the assets FTE B8 - Sl DRI AR B8 7 A (L R 7 )
were impaired, due to decrease of open market values based A LR Pl A R ) A S 2 A (R
on the valuation report conducted by RHL Appraisal Limited, B BT EA BTN R i 2 45
an independent valuer. Accordingly, impairment losses of THEECIE o B - C R
HK$92,591,000 have been recognised. 92,591,0007C 2 W H k548 ©
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10. TAXATION 10.  Biw
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
FRERB R R R BA
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

“RBAVE CFTAE ZRBAE CIRAE CRRAE CERAR
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
wWTE  WWTC wWT BWTc W T WRTe

Current tax: ALEFERIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax A FI B - 1,509 - - - 1,509
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B 2EF71361 229 833 - 558 229 1,391
229 2342 - 558 229 2,900
Overprovision in prior years: A F4F B B A -
Hong Kong Profits Tax A B (13) - - - 13) -
Deferred tax (note 36): TEALBIIA (Ff5E36) -
Current year AL (685) 1,133 - = (685) 1,133
(469) 3475 - 558 (469) 4,033
On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the B EENENH SN H » BWSL
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from 2008 SEUT ARG R ) > 7%
17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009. TR RGBSR B 17.5% AR 2
Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008: 16.5% » A -FZ/)NER _FEXIFHE
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. PR R AR R o (R - AR BE
ToH5AF Al R B Vi F1) 2 16.5% (—
TR\ T 17.5%) FHH -
No tax is payable on the profit for the year for some of the F A JRE Lo T A1) 9 DA T 4 B B A5 e 48
subsidiaries arising in Hong Kong since the assessable profit is R GKE > BCER B B 2 R A A R A
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward. Hong Kong tax A 2 i R AR ZERRBL o A Us B I R A5
losses carried forward amount to approximately HK$677,940,000 ik 4 7% W5 % 677,940,000 06 ( = FF )\
(2008: HK$511,706,000). 4 #EW511,706,00070) B AR
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates At W) A [ A 2 BT T A B D
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. EHE R AT RFHE o
The newly promulgated Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “New LA 2 rp N BREE AN ([ AR ) 4
Law”) of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are effective TSR ([H ALk ) it T )\
on 1st January, 2008. In February 2008, the Ministry of Finance and —H—HA R - RZEENFER -
the State Administration of Taxation issued several important tax A # B Bl RAB  K R L A TR
circular which clarify the implementation of the New Law and have BOBS 4B K > DLV BB v it R
an impact on certain of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. Under the 7 o Sl 3 A 4y R T e B R A A
New Law, the Enterprise Income Tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries R o IRIBHIBIE » AEE D
in the PRC was either reduced from 33% to 25% or increased from R} A T 2 B R H133%18 £ 25% » 5L H
15% to 25% progressively from 1st January, 2008 onwards. The ZRENAE—H— BB H 15%H
relevant tax rates for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC ranged F25% o AL B 2 v B BB 4w AH B
from 18% to 25% (2008: 15% to 33%). Bi% i 18% £25% (—FE/N\FE 1 15%

233%) [ o
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10.

11.

(BREZZFIFE=ZH=Z1—HIEFE)

TAXATION (Cont’d) 10. BLHE(E)
The tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss per AAE FERLIE (F4K) S BLAR A AR 3R
the consolidated income statement as follows: B2 BIR R
2009 2008
“EEMAE ZEREINE
HK$°000 HK$°000
#WTL BT
Loss before taxation: FRBLRT 1R
Continuing operations RRAE RS TS (462,285) (122,218)
Discontinued operations FEHRAE 0 2 - (18,107)
(462,285) (140,325)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate TR BIBL%16.5%
of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) (ZFRNGE 1 17.5%) i B ZBUH (76,277) (24,557)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ANAT AL B 3 2
for tax purpose Pl 15 5 2 51,472 47,703
Tax effect of income not taxable THHABIA Z
for tax purpose BB 5 2 (7,107) (18,601)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AR AT B B Rp 2= B
differences not recognised Pl 15 5 2 32,622 7,768
Utilisation of deductible temporary & 1 Se A A fERR 2 T 4Bl
differences previously not recognised W HRE 25 (158) (9,887)
Tax effect of share of results of a jointly JARE Aok 2 ] 2 o) S T
controlled entity and associates ES a2 762 4,383
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries A A R R [ 458 7
operating in other jurisdictions Kt Ji A R B R AN 2 5 228 (1,770) (2,776)
Overprovision in previous year A A R R A (13) -
Tax (credit) charge for the year AAEFEBLIE (F5HK) S (469) 4,033
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11. FEFF R B EHS

On 27th February, 2007, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its entire 100% equity interest in Tung Fong
Hung Investment Limited (“TFH”) (together with its subsidiaries,
the “TFH Group”), which carried out all of the Group’s business of
manufacturing and trading of medicine and health products, together
with an assignment of the outstanding loan owing by TFH amounting
to HK$99,728,000 to the acquirer. The disposal was completed on
31st July, 2007, on which date the control of the TFH Group was

passed to the acquirer.
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11.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Cont'd) 1. FERERE R ()
On 31st March, 2008, the Group disposed of its entire interest B E/NE=ZH=1+—H > AEH
in King-Tech International Holdings Limited (together with its 1 A L SO R PR R A PR ) (R[]
subsidiary, the “King-Tech Group”), which carried out all of the HLRf g N F — DA A T ShRESEE ) 2 &
Group’s business of trading of motorcycles to the acquirer. The M A R B R A m AR E
disposal was completed on 31st March, 2008, on which date the PEFLELZERS) T o TR
control of the King-Tech Group was passed to the acquirer. EE)NFE=H = —HER > mAE
B 7 5 HE A T B 2 R RE SR A R H e
W77 Frp o
The loss for the year ended 31st March, 2008 from the discontinued BME L NE-H = +—HIE4E
operations is analysed as follows: PISE ST -3 P T
o
2008
—EFF)N\E
HK$°000
BT
Loss from discontinued operations: A B IR SE A
Profit from manufacturing and trading of medicine 21K B 843 [ B 5 5 45 [
and health products operation TS 7 i 2E 755 2 Tk A 1,266
Loss from trading of motorcycles operation A 1 B AL R ST 2 k1R (1,360)
o4
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations: R JE R A A FE TS 2 1
Loss on disposal of the business of manufacturing Hh B R T R T
and trading of medicine and health products (B E 7 ) ot | (18,577)
Gain on disposal of business of trading H AL B SRS
of motorcycles Z W 6
(18,571)
(18,665)
Attributable to: FHI AL
Equity holders of the Company EN/NEIL SRS DN (18,596)
Minority interests W R A (69)
(18,665)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Cont’d)

The results of businesses of manufacturing and trading of medicine
and health products, and trading of motorcycles for the period from
Ist April, 2007 to the respective dates of disposals, which have been
included in the consolidated income statement, were as follows:

11. JEReBIRE RS (F)

T 7)) 2 AR -

Medicine and

HoZFTELFENA-HEREAZHE
FOA R > S I O 4 A B E
SEWS MR B AL H B (C WO AR A R

Health Products Motorcycles Total

TR A BB PEFEHE H5k

1.4.2007 to 1.4.2007 to 1.4.2007 to

31.7.2007 31.3.2008 31.3.2008

R LA ZRB LA ZRR L

WH—H% H—HZ MH—H%

R LA BN\ ZEENE

tA=+—H Z=Z=A=t+—H =H=+—H

HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000

T T T

Revenue Wi 4 115,741 17,567 133,308
Cost of sales FHE A (77,496) (16,518) (94,014)
Gross profit EH 38,245 1,049 39,294
Other income H At A 967 = 967
Distribution and selling expenses 3-8 &% 8 & %5 il (25,580) = (25,580)
Administrative expenses TTE A (10,833) (2,408) (13,241)
Other expenses HAh 2 (363) = (363)
Finance costs W5 B 2 (612) 1) (613)
Profit (loss) before taxation BB HiT i A (e 1) 1,824 (1,360) 464
Taxation BiIE (558) = (558)
Profit (loss) for the period/year 7,47 [H] % 7] (fE54H) 1,266 (1,360) (94)

A SR I I R AL B S5 2 B G i R

The cash flows of the discontinued operations contributed to the

Group were as follows: B

2008

e = A2

HK$’000

T IS

Net cash from operating activities B TS TS 2 B 1 AR 29,777
Net cash used in investing activities PG EHS T FE 2 Bl TR (822)

Net cash from financing activities PG SETS BT AT 2 B 4 1 AR 846

29,801

RITALEB R EEIPRHER 2 &
7 2 4 A 2 B T (E SR Y 42

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the TFH Group
and the King-Tech Group at the dates of disposals are disclosed in
note 42.
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12.  LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12.  AEEEH
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
FRER R R A B
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

“RBAF CZTAE ZRBAE CIRAR CRRAE CETAR
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT BT EWTx BN T Bl T BT

Loss for the year has been arrived 4% 4F- B JE1H
at after charging (crediting): REISGINE

Auditors’ remuneration % BT
— current year — AR 3,265 3391 - 262 3,265 3,653
— underprovision in previous  — AP ERE
years AR 666 138 - - 666 138
3,931 3,529 - 262 3,931 3,791
Directors’ emoluments (nofe I3a) % B4 (Hf7£132) 18,222 25212 - - 18,222 25212
Other staff costs: Hoftn B T -
Salaries and other benefits Fre SO A AR A 35,037 39,754 - 16,338 35,037 56,002
Equity-settled share-based LB HESS L)
payments expense to e ¥ A
employees =P 1,465 2,498 - = 1,465 2,498
Retirement benefits scheme RIRAEAE I fk
contributions, net of forfeited ~ FUFRE YLk
contributions of HK$253,000 #1253,0007C
(2008: Nil) (ZEZTN\H
%) 1,699 875 - 893 1,699 1,768
Total staff costs BT A 56,423 68,339 - 17,231 56,423 85,570
Less: Amount capitalised in W MRS
intangible assets EAZFIH - = - 17) - (17)
56,423 68,339 - 17214 56,423 85,553
Cost of inventories recognised /7 & MA R
as an expense, including BB > At
impairment loss on properties  #5192,591,0007C.2
held for sale of HK$92,591,000 &4 s [kt
(2008: Nil) (ZEFNE %) 107,416 55,690 - 90,121 107,416 145,811
Depreciation of property, plant 473 + ## 2
and equipment BTN 11,507 15,688 - 1,881 11,507 17,569
Release of prepaid lease TR - H A A
payments of leasehold land FE R 525 2,283 - 10 525 2,293
Amortisation of premiumon ~ f& THITESIFE
prepaid lease payments of R 2 i (g
leasehold land 2,736 2914 - - 2,736 2914
Total depreciation and amortisation 742 X #8444 14,768 20,885 - 1,891 14,768 22,776
Allowance for inventories B - - - 5,106 - 5,106
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - R
plant and equipment kA JEH 1M 110 - 17 1M 127
Net exchange (gain) loss T S2. (Wi 2 ) s 4 1 (2,841) (2,732) - 25 (2,841) (2,707)
Allowance for bad and AR
doubtful debts 5313 1,441 - 360 5313 1,801
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID 13. ol S0 O 4 % dpe i T L

INDIVIDUALS
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (a)  HEMAE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2008: EATERERT JLAE (R E 4 -
twelve) directors were as follows: TR HEES BT
Other emoluments
JE o
Discretionary
and
performance  Equity-settled
related  share-based Contributions
Salaries incentive payments  to retirement
and other payments expense benefits
benefits MERE  DURHESS schemes Total
Fees Hak FEBE  DRHER BAFIA  emoluments
e s e B aREBs MalE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T M BWTx w% T #WTe #ETx
(Note)
(i)
2009 “ERNE
Cheung Hon Kit RIER 10 2,880 - 1,198 12 4,100
Chan Fut Yan B 10 2,640 - 699 264 3613
Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley ~ #5i & 4 1,019 - 188 5 1,216
Cheung Chi Kit el 10 1,800 - 499 90 2,399
Lai Tsan Tung, David (“Mr. Lai”) B (5% ) 210 1,762 - 299 12 2313
Ma Chi Kong, Karl Fasl 10 3,000 - 899 12 3921
Wong Chi Keung, Alvin FhE 120 - - 150 - 270
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva L 120 - - 150 - 270
Qiao Xiaodong UV 120 - - - - 120
644 13,101 - 4,082 395 18,222
2008 “ETNE
Cheung Hon Kit RIEMR 10 2640 2500 1,670 12 6,832
Chan Fut Yan Bt 10 2400 1,750 978 240 5378
Wong Kam Cheong, Stanley HiRE 10 2,002 334 406 12 2,764
Cheung Chi Kit e li 10 1430 500 644 7 2,656
M. Lai bt 240 1,695 250 357 12 2,554
Ma Chi Kong, Karl 1l 8 2516 334 1,072 10 3,940
Ho Hau Chong, Norman mE: 5 - - 72 = 71
Lo Lin Shing, Simon B 5 - - 36 - 41
Wong Chi Keung, Alvin TER 120 - - 215 - 335
Kwok Ka Lap, Alva L5 120 - - 179 - 299
Qiao Xiaodong B/ 19 - - - - 19
Chui Sai Cheong EHE 102 = = 215 - 317
659 12,683 5,668 5,844 358 25212
Note:  The amount included performance related incentive Mt . e REE SRR
payment which is determined by the performance of the BEEFENE=H=+—
directors for the year ended 31st March, 2008. H LA 2 R B E 2 &R
BIHENTEAL -
No directors waived any emoluments during the current and TAASAE BE RO AT AR BE - NI AT
prior years. ] 25 S 4 o
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID 13. o 0 4 B dme N L ()
INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

(b)  Highest paid individuals (b)  EEHMAL
All five individuals with the highest emoluments in the TR > A8 4R [ I 3 2
Group were directors of the Company for both years whose AN i BA N F
emoluments are included in (a) above. = HiesEn & X(a) °

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five TARZWAE > AN 4 (3]SI 48 1] 44 de e B

highest paid individuals, including directors and employees, as an ML (BGRB8

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for A 5 SBD I A B0 A A 45 [ 1 2 5 &)

loss of office. AR A A 1

14.  LOSS PER SHARE 14.  HBokE#

(a)  For continuing and discontinued operations (@  RAFFHERIERERE R
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AN ) ERE £ A N AL
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is g PR A T 4 A 48 T i HR DA
based on the following data: S

2009 2008
“RENAE e AN
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T
Loss: e -
Loss for the year attributable to EN/NEI ERESZ E DN

equity holders of the Company and AN A4 B jeq 48 &
loss for the purposes of basic and SR K

diluted loss per share R 1R 2 1R (461,816) (141,853)
2009 2008
BB e = IN-2
Number of shares: A EE -

Weighted average number of ordinary i 5 45 i 54 K
shares for the purposes of basic and #5485 2 578 it

diluted loss per share (Note) TIRESE- 35 B (Bt ) 383,880,132 192,654,235
Note:  The weighted average number of ordinary shares for both BFEE - A AR N HEAT Ak IR R A
years has been adjusted for the effect of the rights issue and WAWRZ R WA

capital reorganisation during the year. T 4 2 35 728 I o HE 1 34 B

HOAEH TR -
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14.  LOSS PER SHARE (Cont'd) 4 ERER )
(b)  From continuing operations (b)  RAFFEREER

A ) 8 BOHE i 4 A B A
A A A S g IR A
B R 45 IR DL B R

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity
holders of the Company is based on the following data:

MR AR 5105 G

Loss is calculated as follows:

2009 2008
e 2 IS “EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#WT L BT
Loss for the year attributable to AN FEIRERR A ARG
equity holders of the Company AAEJE 1R (461,816) (141,853)
Less: Loss for the year from W R A IR T
discontinued operations AAEJE 1R - (18,596)
Loss for the purposes of basic and FHEAR B R R
diluted loss per share from B IR A R A W e 1R
continuing operations 5! (461,816) (123,257)

Jit 1 22 3 B B b SR 2t w3 A
TE A FBe A K {0 Js 48 P R
FAIA] -

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted loss per share.

R e 58
WEHE - FTE/N\E=H
= — HIEE A A IR
2B 2 AN IR SR A N
fihi e 1E 1 518,596,000 7T M _E 3C
R MR E NNE i |
Az aEsE > B2 2%
JNEZH=+—HIH4EERA
RS 2T 2 SR
R R 5 R 0. T -

©) From discontinued operations ()
Basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operations
is HK$0.1 per share for the year ended 31st March, 2008,
based on the loss for the year ended 31st March, 2008 from
discontinued operations attributable to the equity holders
of the Company of HK$18,596,000 and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

P 5% 2 VB A2 0 8 B W% AR S R R
SR (I G R SYVE 33 ZEERIES
(BB AT o PSR e B b (il 2 —
FENF=ZHA=1+—HILFEMF) U
Lo i n] LR A o

The calculation of diluted loss per share for both years has not
assumed the exercise of the share options and warrants (for the year
ended 31st March, 2009) and the conversion of convertible notes as
these potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive during both years.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. P& - B R
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and Construction
improvements and  equipment Motor in
Buildings Al machineries iR vehicles progress Total

Wy BRRE BRKGHE KRR T HRIR it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
BT BT BT BT MW Tx #RTx  #RTx

COST JiA
At Ist April, 2007 REFZLAE

MA—H 208254 51873 27,267 8230 7,208 37,823 340,655
Exchange adjustments T i 18,981 140 1,706 219 217 3,849 25,112
Additions hE 2133 400 10,068 2406 2938 21,368 39313
Disposal of subsidiaries e A )

(note 42) (Hiit42) (129,599) (51,786) (28315) (6,069) (3916) - (219685)
Disposals ik - (438) (1,096) (24) (233) - (1,791)
At 315t March, 2008 REZFENE

and st April, 2008 =A=+—Hk

“EZNEMA—R 99,769 189 9,630 47762 6,214 63,040 183,604
Exchange adjustments A% 2,830 8 410 108 135 1,688 5,179
Additions wE 5876 440 940 1,379 20 3389 15,844
Transfer LIt 37,751 = = 12 = (37,763) =
Disposals it (725) (35) = @) (1,161) = (2,198)
At 315t March, 2009 R-ZFNE

ZHEF-H 145,501 4,402 10980 5,984 5,208 30,354 202,429
DEPRECIATION i
At Ist April, 2007 REZELENA—H 9,353 35,642 11873 2,990 841 - 60,699
Exchange adjustments 5% 4,706 56 520 88 67 - 5437
Provided for the year AR 11,020 1,114 2,860 1,300 1275 = 17,569
Eliminated on disposal of HE B A R

subsidiaries (note 42) Wi i) (22,747) (36,322) (13915) (3.230) (954) - (77,168)
Eliminated on disposals R4 - (435) (949) @) (70) = (1476)
At31st March, 2008 RZFENE

and Ist April, 2008 A=A

“EZ)\ENH—H 2332 55 389 1,126 1,159 - 5,061
Exchange adjustments e i e 417 § 173 33 59 - 690
Provided for the year TG 6,389 1397 1375 1,110 1,236 = 11,507
Eliminated on disposals R4 (95) (35) - (177) (746) = (1,053)
At 315t March, 2009 REZFNA

ZHE1-H 9,043 1425 1,937 2,092 1,708 - 16,205
CARRYING VALUES R
At 31st March, 2009 REZFNE

EHESISSH 136,458 2977 9,043 3892 3,500 30,354 186,224
At 315t March, 2008 REFENE

ZH=+-H 97,437 134 9241 3,636 5,055 63,040 178,543
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15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 15, 3k - MR BEA (AT)
The above items of property, plant and equipment other than A SE - MO R E (R LR
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the BRAL) DA E SR N SRTE
following rates per annum:
Buildings 4% or over the remaining term of M 4% BHE T R 2
the relevant lease, if shorter AR
(O )
Leasehold improvements 33% or over the term of THEMZEHE 33% LA H
the relevant leases, if shorter GiER:E|
(O )
Plant and machineries 5% —15% VWS ] 5% —15%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% — 33'/3% B~ B RGRME 10%—33',%
equipment
Motor vehicles 10% —20% Fii:A 10% —20%
The carrying values of buildings shown above are located in: R TS LA R A A5 R EIE
W
2009 2008
- 2% —EFT)N\E
HK$°000 HK$’000
EWTL BT
— Hong Kong — & 4,454 -
-PRC — 132,004 97,437
136,458 97,437
At 31st March, 2009, the carrying values of furniture, fixtures and AEENFEZH=+—H - AEH
equipment of the Group included an amount of HK$357,000 (2008: TR, ~ 5 B T S 2 HR T (B A 45 it
HK$215,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases. G TR S 45 7 2 K TH 6 357,000
TE(ZFF /A #EH#215,0007T) ©
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS OF LEASEHOLD LAND 16. ARSI A ALITKH
The Group’s prepaid lease payments of leasehold land comprise: AL 2 A B b AT SR A
1
2009 2008
e 2 TS —EFT)\EE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#WT L BT
Land use rights in the PRC on A B AR SR P A A 2
medium-term lease - b {35 A 21,352 21,325
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BRI A
Current asset T & 530 517
Non-current asset FEM BN A E 20,822 20,808
21,352 21,325
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16.

17.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS OF LEASEHOLD LAND
(Cont’d)

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Group disposed of
Guangzhou Panyu Lotus Golf & Country Club Co., Ltd. (“Panyu
Golf”), a 65% owned subsidiary of the Company, which held a golf
course and a piece of land located at Panyu, Guangdong Province in
the PRC as set out in note 42. Prior to the disposal of Panyu Golf,
the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the land by reference
to its fair value and identified and recognised impairment losses of
HK$30,681,000 and HK$14,319,000 in respect of the prepaid lease
payments of leasehold land and premium on prepaid lease payments
of leasehold land, respectively.

PREMIUM ON PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS OF
LEASEHOLD LAND

The amount represents the premium on acquisition of prepaid lease
payments for the rights to use land situated in the PRC on medium-
term lease as a result of acquisition of subsidiaries in previous years,
which is amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease
payments of the relevant land use rights.

The movement of premium on prepaid lease payments is set out
below:

16.

17.

AL M B AL KR (A7)

BEEE/NF=H=1—HIF%E
AL ] H B AR AR 659 M i 2 T
7 ) JE N 3 A 1L R R O BR EE (B
IR ([FHEESWREK]) -
FFatafiral » s%8 T — (R S REk
B Ke—g oz i v [ B R 5 7 B 1 L b o
A ER B SR RERAT - AEEES %
7% M2 NP ARG AT B £
S s TE AR - b 2 FH S A S At
R b2 R AT S U 1 4 ol 8 e I e
FR I 48 5 T 530,681,000 70 Mk T
14,319,0007T °

AL M A AL Bk o 2 it 18

% S R DR A 58 I 2 ) T s
fEA B P I B A 2 IR
REFE AT B H 2 Wi A8 - Ty BLAR B
o 3 2 A R LA AR R TE A ]

FAHEFIH G E 2 BT

HK$’000
T oo
COST BAR
At Ist April, 2007 W EELFNMNA—H 134,029
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42) SR A R (K E42) (14,761)
At 31st March, 2008 and 2009 RoRBIMER RZZIEZA=1+—H 119,268
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT 8 B AL
At Ist April, 2007 WZEELEMA—H 2,502
Charge for the year AAE FEHIBR 2,914
Impairment loss recognised (note 16) CU R I B G 18 (3t 16) 14,319
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42) R E A D (i ata2) (14,761)
At 31st March, 2008 RZEENFE=H=1—H 4,974
Charge for the year ARAEFEANBR 2,736
At 31st March, 2009 R-FZNE=ZH=1—H 7,710
CARRYING VALUES W i 1
At 31st March, 2009 R_ZFNE=H=1—H 111,558
At 31st March, 2008 AZEENFE=H=1—H 114,294
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18.

19.

20.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. BRI
2009 2008
ZEFE ZEENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
At cost: FEIA -
At 1st April AV H—H 240,853 11,296
Additions WHE 2,268 244,128
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42) L BT A D (B 42) - (14,571)
Impairment loss recognised (note 9) CL e RR I B e 18 (B 79) (54,121) =
At 31st March HERA=+—H 189,000 240,853
During the year, the directors conducted a review of the Group’s N> BRI R Y
properties under development and determined that certain of the TR - N AR K FIAT REE B A
assets were impaired, due to decrease of open market value based PR ) i 4 2 Ak (B 3R 25 9T s 2 B T (B
on the valuation report conducted by RHL Appraisal Limited. H BT R A A T O o
Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$54,121,000 has been I > ERERRS H554,121,00070 2 I (E
recognised. H o
Management of the Group expects the whole amount of properties 7 45 [ 20T TE A T A b M
under development to be completed and released to market after one W — R E ST (ZFFN
year (2008: after two years). & WAEAR) o
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. Wt ERE
2009 2008
ZEFFE —FT)\E
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Available-for-sale investments comprise: FJ it tH & &1
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong RS BT AR 5 5,764 18,631
Equity securities listed elsewhere AT Ty b2 AR 5 32,128 75,939
37,892 94,570
INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20.  R—HEEAEZHER

Jointly controlled entity:

In May 2008, the Group formed and equally owned a jointly
controlled entity, Keen Step Corporation Limited (“Keen Step”),
together with an independent third party at an investment cost of
HKS$1. In September 2008, the Group further acquired the remaining
50% equity interest in Keen Step. Therefore, the interest in a jointly
controlled entity was derecognised upon date of completion of
further acquisition. Details are set out in note 41(a). During the year,
the jointly controlled entity has contributed HK$212,000 of share of
loss to the Group.
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20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Cont’d) 20. R— W' A 6 2 b (4E)
Jointly controlled operation: I ] P ) S 5
2009 2008
e 2 9% 2 ZEENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
wW T wHT T
Interest in properties held for ISEX(R 9527 E P £
development 15,130 14,745
Loan to a joint venture BRT—MEEAR 29,629 -
44,759 14,745
In March 2008, the Group disposed of Panyu Golf, a 65% owned W EENEZR > AERBEAL
subsidiary of the Company, which held a golf resort known as AR 65% HE 2 2 B & /A 7 325 B
“Guangzhou Lotus Hill Golf Resort” located at Panyu, Guangdong FBR o 5% EFA AL R E SR
Province in the PRC. As part of the consideration for the disposal, A WA BT ML LS W R Bk R
the Group entered into a joint venture agreement to construct and K2 B IR AT o VB H g
develop certain residential units over a piece of land with a site W REEIT SIS G R
area of approximately 48,000 sq. m. within the golf resort (the 2 BR A K Py — 1 ﬂé 4 )
“Development Project”). The Group’s interest in properties held for ™ Tﬁj{\ /:RQFXTT [ mmﬁ%“ﬁﬁ
L : 48,000°F 75 K Z b b B K BH B
development represents its entitlement to share 65% of the residual A ([ BRIEH |) o A% E
value of the Development Project under the terms of the joint venture t T C B ) % o % ° @ N
agreement, Fo A 58 R 4 32 2 HE 2% 35 FUARE & B 1
e A KM A B2 JR JH F R (B 2 65% 1
35 o
In addition, the Group is obliged to advance an aggregate of RMB40 BeAh > A4 [E A B AT B A B R TE
million for use in the l?evelopment Project, of which approximately Hz N E#40,000,0007T - 72< 2 5 E ik
RMB26,044,0.00 (equivalent to HK$29,629,000) was‘ad\{anced by AR R BT 49 A R 526,044,000 T
the Group during the year. The loan is unsecured, bearing interest at (K45 M 109.629.0007T) © 82K
a lending interest rate of 5.4% of corresponding period as quoted by . o NG B T
the People’s Bank of China and will not be repaid until completion of Eiﬁ K?ﬁ%g E’ﬁég %gi‘gg 'ﬁ,f.;i%
the Development Project. In the opinion of the directors, the loan will ;é; n @ e o H 7;; /é»: y’m: &
not be repaid within twelve months from the balance sheet date and A@K R i e . ‘;/"‘AK/
is therefore classified as non-current asset. ﬁ* »H HH *iLBV—'—*@E B TR T Y
U5 IR E) HE o
21.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/UNSECURED LOANS AND  21. RABEAAZHRE MWREBEAWZ

INTERESTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

SCHCH £k B A S

2009 2008

ZRBHAE BT\

HK$’000 HKS$’000

il T T

Cost of investment in associates, unlisted FAHfE/A R 2 BEE A » JE bl 169,202 221,708
Share of post-acquisition losses JRE A Wi B e 18 (34,393) (86,205)
134,809 135,503

Loans and interests due from associates  FMEUSE 4/ ) 2 B & AE 1,130,198 1,077,690

Less: Loss allocated in excess of cost W BB G RAR 2 BT R

of investment (56,216) -
1,073,982 1,077,690
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21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/UNSECURED LOANS AND
INTERESTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

The loans and interests due from associates of HK$1,130,198,000
included an amount of HK$626,850,000 (2008: HK$626,850,000)
which is the unsecured, non-interest bearing and advanced to
an associate based on its agreed portion of advance stated in the
acquisition agreement. The imputed interest rate on this amount of
loans was 8% (2008: 8%) per annum.

The remaining balance of approximately HK$281,150,000 (2008:
HK$281,150,000) is advanced to the associate as a shareholder
did not provide its portion of the loans. The amount carries interest
at rates ranging from 5% to 5.25% (2008: ranging from 5.25% to
7.75%) per annum.

In the opinion of the directors, the amount will not be repaid within
twelve months of the balance sheet date and was therefore classified
as non-current asset.

Before offering any new loan to associate, the Group will assess the
associate’s credit quality and the usage of the loan by the associate.
The recoverability of the loan is reviewed throughout the year. The
whole loans to associates are repayable upon request for repayment,
so the balances are neither past due nor impaired and have no loan
default history.

Pursuant to the Empresa De Fomento Industrial E Comercial
Concérdia, S.A. (“Concordia”) acquisition agreement, one of the
subsidiaries of the Group further undertook to advance to Concordia
a shareholder’s loan of not more than HK$15,000,000 (2008:
HK$15,000,000) after the completion of the Concordia acquisition
agreement.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 85% of the total
unsecured loans and interests is due from only one associate which is
a private company located in Macau. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has monitored the repayment ability
of the associates continuously.

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Group entered into the
following transactions regarding the associates:

(a) The Group acquired 8.7% of the registered capital of
Concordia, a company incorporated in Macau, which held
the leasehold interests of 14 parcels of land situated in
Estrade de Seac Pai Van, Macau. Upon completion of the
acquisition, the Group’s effective interest in the registered
capital of Concordia increased to 35.5%.
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21.

RBEA AR BB AT
SEHLIN B A B ()

JRE i B N T 2 B R KR v B
1,130,198,000 JG 2 4 #5 ¥ 626,850,000
J6 (R )NAE - #57%626,850,000 7T )
ZEIE > A E B AR - R R
S e T o T 2t 22 AR A AT T
— AT o AR R R IE 2 Al 5
RIS (RN gJH) -

B A — 45 5 BRI 4 A {3k L R A
i 4 5281,150,00070 (- /4 ¢
s #281,150,000 70 ) & B 3k AT F %
BN T o ARN > E A 5 )
F525H (EE)NAE - HF525)E
7.7508) Z FRFRGHE -

EHERS > HNZEREAGRGH
FE A+ =R H AR - o8 Ik
B EE -

A AT W SRR BT > AR 4 LI
AFAG I 8 T 2 A5 BRC B DL R A
R AR o A B 4F B 1 6 3 B 4
R AT EIRRE - Wi ARl 2 TR B
IR ZORER > A BRI R
BME > HBEBE R E o

HR PR AR B e A A PR 7 ([ A= 1)
WA T e o AN R [ — M B A ) —
HEARGE > T 5 U AR A T R AR 1) B
A A AN 22 A Tk 515,000,000 78 (%
F\AE 515,000,000 ) 2 BEHEE

E
wA °©

FH A 85% 2 A8 SEHIE 41 65 3R I A1) S 4 ¢
H—MHEE AR (BRI 2 AR
Fl) o SASE T A AR o B
B AE SR A4 I R R A
W N R Z IR AEE ST -

BE_EZZNF=ZA=1+—HILF
FE o ALEET LTI B E AR Z

5

(a) A HE B i B R 8.7 % wE M I
A5 %N A kA ST
A AL R P PR S B 22 14
W B 2 M RS o R 58 AR B
1% > AN B2 A W A G R B AS 4
A2 BB RS 1 %535.5% °
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21.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/UNSECURED LOANS AND  21.  JABEE A vl 2 Hidk  HEBOB % A vl 2
INTERESTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) AHE G £k B L (A7)

(b) The Group disposed of its entire 40% equity interest in (b) A £ H i & H i More Profit

More Profit International Limited (“More Profit”) together International Limited ( [ More

with the shareholder’s loan due to the Group amounting to Profit J) 4= ¥ 40% HE % % [] #5

HK$260,412,000 at an aggregate consideration amounted to #5260,412,000 7G 2 JE AT A 4 [F]

HK$350 million, to Get Nice Holdings Limited (“Get Nice™), JBEHR BT A A R A PR )

a company incorporated in Cayman Islands and listed on the (M58 1) (— A B 2 B s 5

Stock Exchange (the “Disposal”). The Disposal resulted in a L VAR IR ' R S E/

loss of the Disposal of approximately HK$39,486,000. Al) o AACE A 7350,000,000

T(THEFEIH]) - MEFHE

PR #)HE %539,486,000 T Z B

18 o

A [ 37 B RO AL
A TR IR BE R A7 BR A | &%
50% IEHE > A7 B I HOR B RE
11542 o i eI 2 s 7 2 M 4
IRHEERERLE -

(c) The Group disposed of its entire 50% equity interest in Jean- (c)
Bon Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited through
the disposal of TFH as set out in notes 11 and 42. The
carrying value of the interest in this associate is zero upon
disposal.

At 31st March, 2009 and 2008, the Group had interests in the
following major associates:

S CEENER FFEAF A
S H AR T B R

FHEAHELT
Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value of
Place of ofissued and  issued share capital
Form of incorporation/ fully paid indirectly held
business operation Class of share capital by the Group
Name of associate structure 31 Ve shares held (iR 774 AAWFAZ  Principal activity
BEAIAR FHRMER  BRNE Bt e B i WRBAWH CROBATELHE 2R
(Note 1) %
(i1
Best Profit Holdings Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1,000 315 Investment holding
Limited Ei A Eil ik 81,0007 (Note 2)
EEERARA SEHER M)
Concordia Incorporated Macau Quota Capital MOP100,000,000 355  Property development
Bk EiaL ;A M At A 1"1100,000,0007 HESTS
Orient Town Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary HK$700 45 Investment holding
EFARAT i g5 ik L 70078 (Note2)
SEL ML)
Orient Town Project Incorporated Macau Quota Capital MOP25,000 45 Property project
Management Limited S AL i A T [M825,0007C management
EFEAEHARAR YEERER
San Lun Mang Investimentos,  Incorporated Macau Quota Capital MOP100,000 315 Investment holding
Limitada a L #r it A T 100,000 (Note 2)
M S A A AR REER M)
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21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/UNSECURED LOANS AND

INTERESTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)
Notes:

1. Quota capital represents the Portuguese equivalence of registered
capital as Portuguese is the official language of Macau.

2. The principal activities of their subsidiaries are mainly property
development and property project management.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year
or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates is set out below:

21.

TR A ﬁZﬁ%ﬁ/ﬂ?l&ﬁ%’A
AHE G £k B R, (AT
MRt -

1. i 75 2 Quota capital Bf! 5% it &
D) % ERRMZ BEHEES °

2. FLME o 7l 2 2260 o W) ek
B2 H A

ERWBIASE E A A > R
CEAY vk p S U S
HRBE > SO A B E
EEWG - %%.%Z%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ\ﬁ’ﬂﬂéﬁ*&/\
FER SRR ITR -

A SR BB o 7] 2 S B R R S
W

2009 2008
ZERNAE TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
b3 T e B
Total assets Y AR A 2,814,636 2,662,736
Total liabilities BB (2,749,307) (2,585,912)
Minority interest DB SRR 2 (61,130) (64,384)
Net assets as recorded in the books AR AR B 5 R 2 G TRHE
of the associates 4,199 12,440
Group’s share of net assets of A 2 [ B A 8 ) O V(L
associates (Note) (HfzE) 134,809 135,503
Note: Ktz
The Group’s share of net assets of associates include a fair value adjustment 7 4E [ JEA\G B N ) A VR (A A A = AR
for premium for the interest in leasehold land of the associate upon the AT i B A ) A A 2 IR B S N R AR

acquisition of additional interest in the associate in prior year.

M 2 i (B A L ST EL R

2009 2008

“RZNAE —EER)\E

HK$°000 HK$’000

W T BT

Revenue A - -
Loss for the year KA E1E (8,241) (54,201)

Group’s share of loss of associates A B EAG W A )

for the year AAEJE 1R (4,404) (25,047)

92




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok o B 85 R M

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009) (# % “FFAE=H=+—HIL4FERE)

Annual Report 2008-2009 4E

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/UNSECURED LOANS AND 21. RBEAFIZHER MBS A2

INTERESTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) eI £k KAV ()
The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of A A ) 4% 1 e R L IR A i A D R
certain associates. The amounts of unrecognised share of losses of o MEARFEEIE > REFHRMHERZ
these associates, extracted from the relevant management accounts of AL 5% 25 W4 w5 4R S48 (T 8k B 3%
the associates, both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows: e N T 2 MBS AR H ) Iy -
2009 2008
ZRRNAE TEER AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T 5k o T
Unrecognised share of losses of AAE R MERR A
associates for the year Wit/ w18 - (2,451)
Accumulated unrecognised share of BT R MR IEAS
losses of associates R /NG R (2,451) (2,451)
22.  AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 22, MEHBOBE AR
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one 2 B AR - RS B A A
year of the balance sheet dates. B RR -
23.  DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND  23. WA 2 £U R0 A K vl 488t Al 27
DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS b3 =2 A2k T ]
Embedded
Debt portion conversion option
B B B R
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZRFME ZEZAE ZZZUE FTNF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

T BT T T BT T

Convertible bonds issued by: RIS

AT

Get Nice (note a) HEUT (Kt ita) - 51,120 - 4,865
Wing On (notes b and c) K (FifFtb Kc) 37,047 = - =

37,047 51,120 - 4,865

Analysed as: Vax: V-2

Current Eh 727 = - =
Non-current FEVLED 36,320 51,120 - 4,865

37,047 51,120 - 4,865
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23. DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND  23. W 3JB4i 2 2 £0 18 35 0 I v 4 ) % 2%

DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS B 2 A A LR (A7)

(Cont’d)

Notes: BEE

(a) The convertible bonds issued by Get Nice (“Get Nice Bonds”) with (a) AR FLEIA - Gl AL
the principal amount of HK$100 million was issued to the Group as BEAT AR 4 % £ 75 %5 100,000,000 7T 2
part of consideration for the disposal of More Profit in September AR SR ([ &5 0655 1) > VRS it
2007. The Group was entitled to convert the Get Nice Bonds into £ More ProfitZ U E o A4
shares in Get Nice at conversion price of HK$0.901 per share. The i HE A B B i 85 0.901 JC 2 S HRAE
maturity date is 20th September, 2010. A5 LR SO T A U e o S

HA—F—FFENHZ+H -

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Group has disposed of BE-FZTZ)NFE=H=1+—HI
the Get Nice Bonds with principal amount of HK$43 million. During R REH B ERGHE B
the year ended 31st March, 2009, all the outstanding Get Nice 43,000,000 C Z &5 il 5 - B2
Bonds with principal amount of HK$57 million were redeemed at ZENFE=ZHAH=1T—HIEHFE -
100% of the principal amount outstanding together with the accrued A 4 2% W 1 57,000,000 7T 2 JiT A
interest thereon calculated at 5% per annum, resulting in a gain on T SRR R R R R 2
redemption (by the issuer) of HK$3,103,000. 100% 4 4 ZA B8 [] (% [R] DA AR R 5

JEEHEZABAE) > (H#iT g
A7) JE ] 7 AE 5 893,103,000 00 2 Vi

H o
(b) The 2% convertible bonds issued by Wing On Travel (Holdings) (b) A A — 44 M8 S5 = 7 i IR | Ak &
Limited (“Wing On”) (“Wing On Bonds™”) with an aggregate i (FE) A7 BRA R ([ 7k %2 1) 8847
principal amount of HK$45,000,000 was purchased during the N 4 HEE F U 145,000,000 70 2 2 JH
year from an independent third party at total consideration of AR R ([ 257 ) > AAUE
HK$33,750,000. The Group is entitled to convert the Wing On £y 33,750,000 70 o A 45 [ A5 4
Bonds into shares of Wing On at an initial conversion price of 2 )26 S8 40 A8 1 1 v 15 0.79 76 (A]
HKS$0.79 per share (subject to adjustments), which was subsequently T ) 1 Ak L S R A Ak U
adjusted to HK$0.339 as a result of rights issue by Wing On on 3rd > SEARE A R R EN\FELH
July, 2008. Unless previously converted or lapsed, Wing On shall = H R 2 AT A AR T W 5 s s
redeem the Wing On Bonds on 7th June, 2011 at 110% of their 0.3397C ° BRE i ol S50 4h
principal amount. KEFA ZF——4FANH L HER
AEFL110%E P K Z AL -
(c) Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, an executive director of the Company is also a (c) AN R AT HE AR R S AR IR A K
director of Wing On. LHEE o
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23. DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND 23.

DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(Cont’d)
The Group classified the debt portion of the convertible bonds
as loans and receivables and the embedded conversion option is
deemed as held for trading and classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition. The fair values
of the embedded conversion option on initial recognition are
determined by the directors of the Company with reference to the
valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited, a firm of
independent professional valuer using Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model. Details of the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model in the valuation of the conversion option embedded in
convertible bonds as at the following dates are as follows:

Y B 5 2 A B B vl B 27
B 2 A A LR (A7)

A S B AT AR R 2 AR 1 1A
B R R SRR o T A T R 8 4
RERUERAE B R 0020 TR Rp 28
AR IRIE AT EIEE MG E - K
M A R R A ) AP e AR R 2 A
B> ITHALNFEES L EEFEA
MR R (— KBS (A 7)) A
7350 — &F 7 i S (A AT 2 A
{ELT 52 o AT 51 30 At ] 4 e i 0%
Wi 27 < T L 3 2 {6k P AR ) v — T AR
Hr S0 hE E (B O AT A (2 R

W
Redemption
date
12th August,
31st March, 2008
2008 TR
“ETNE —EE)N\F
EHZE4—H AH+ZH

Get Nice Bonds i

Closing price at date of valuation {8 H #8128 W HHK$0.59 70 W HHK$0.495 70

Conversion price Si R HEHEHK$0.901 7T HEIEHK$0.901 75

Expected volatility (note a) TAFHBE (B 7Fa) 53.43% 46.25%

Expected annual dividend yield TEFHF AR A 2 4.39% 8.081%

Risk-free interest rate (note b) e B A 26 (B Eb) 1.385% 2.1%

Purchase

date

JE
7th August, 31st March,
2008 2009
“EENF — BN
JANALEH ZA=Z1—H

Wing On Bonds KGR

Closing price at date of valuation {8 B A Z Ui e #HHKS$0.05570 HE B HK$0.0255¢

Conversion price SR (E HEHHKS$0.339C  #EHKS0.3395¢

Expected volatility (note c) TEFTH R (K 7tc) 66.342% 88.677%

Expected annual dividend yield TG R i g % 2.405% A EiHIN/A

Risk-free interest rate (note b) R\ B R (Bt D) 2.712% 0.762 %

Notes: Mt -

(a) Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility (a) TA R RS DA (A H 1910 H 45
of the price return of the ordinary shares of Get Nice over 910 days D I 114 JRE SRS ] S s s 7
from the valuation date. JE ©

(b) The risk-free rate interest was based on the yield of Exchange Fund (b) A o o 1) B R DA A E R 4 B 2R
Note. BRIy o

(c) Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility (c) TE TR UG (E H AR S69 H K

of the price return of the ordinary shares of Wing On over 569 days
from the valuation date.
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23.

24.

25.

DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND  23. W 3B 4 5 2 £ 0% 36 0y B v 460 IRt 4% %7
DERIVATIVES EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS Pt i A 2 A A B ()
(Cont’d)
On initial recognition, the fair value of the debt portion of the A e RRIRE > A R i 5 B A
convertible bonds was determined using the prevailing market Z N TR AP F R B W] e R 5
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The effective interest Z BT R RIS 2 o RS AR
rate to the debt component of Wing On Bonds is 17.51% (2008: 9% TR Z BRI R By 17,51 (—FFE N
to the debt component of Get Nice Bonds). A EE IR AR A 9JH) o
As at 31st March, 2009, the Group has concentration of credit risk as A EFNAE=ZH=+—H » AREHH
all of the convertible bonds held by the Group was due from Wing BHEPE RN » JREEAREEESG 2
On, which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and a related party A AR S5 50 B i (LA A I 28
of which Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, an executive director of the Company B BT R B — A RE AL > AN AR
is also a director. As at 31st March, 2008, all of the convertible bonds ITHEFRBEBC AN KL EE) o
were due from an independent third party. REEENEFE=ZA=+—H > franfi
AR B — 256 =T o
DEPOSITS AND EXPENSES PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A 24. )ik - Hi 4 J B © A 432 4 B B S
LAND USE RIGHT
The amounts represent deposits and expenses paid for the acquisition FBHEBRER S R LF
of a land use right in the PRC for a total cash consideration =8 = 2 H i ek M —
of RMB50,964,000 (equivalent to HK$57,980,000) under an TE A o 3] 2 1 o A AT 2 1 &
acquisition agreement dated 22nd March, 2007. MBS > g AR B e AE A AR
50,964,000 ¢ ( #H 55 i # M 57,980,000
JG) °©
OTHER LOAN RECEIVABLES 25, HAbHEBCEE K
2009 2008
ZRBHAE TR )\AE
HK$°000 HK$°000
i1 T S TH
Fixed-rate loan receivables TE R R 13,133 13,133
Variable-rate loan receivables 77 SRR 195,594 230,000
208,727 243,133

The whole amounts are repayable on demand or within one year.

The following is an analysis of the ageing of other loan receivables at
the balance sheet dates:

2 10 T 34 70 4 R SR — 4 N E
.

LA 75 FCALHE A SRR 4 0 2 et
G

2009 2008

2 9/K 2 “EL)\E

HK$°000 HK$’000

#WT L T

Within one year —4EN 68,317 93,500
More than one year, but not I —4E > B AR

exceeding two years 30,776 144,998
More than two years, but not R AR > H D = AR

exceeding three years 109,634 4,635

208,727 243,133
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25.  OTHER LOAN RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 25. Ml REMCEEK ()

At 31st March, 2009, the Group’s fixed-rate loan receivables of ATEBZNE=ZH=1T—H » KEH
HK$8,498,000 (2008: HK$8,498,000) carried interest at 8% per 2 7B BB B30 158,498,000 (&
annum and were secured by 40,000,000 shares of a private limited VA - #E18,498,0007T ) DL AEF| 28
company incorporated in Malaysia, with a nominal value of JE S > S DL — TR RS 2 P 2R T AR
RMO0.25 (equivalent to HK$0.53) per share. The remaining fixed- S 2 FA N BR 2 T 2 40,000,000 A% 4
rate loan receivables of HK$4,635,000 (2008: HK$4,635,000) were B T8 {8 75 A 74 i 0. 25 70 (AR 45 A s
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”), which is not the 0.5370) Z A VE R o Hage BREIL
functional currencies of the relevant group entities, carried interest at 3K 194,635,000 70 ( = FF )\

3% and were unsecured. All the fixed-rate loan receivables are due M4 635,00000) T3 LAETT ([ 25T ) &5
within one year. {8 (35 Tolf JF AH B 4 B B S 2 e &

W) o DIBEFHE o B KAk B
A€ BEMCE R — 4R B -

At 31st March, 2009, all variable-rate loans were unsecured, carried MW _EENFE=H=+—H > ITEF
interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate, Hong Kong Prime Rate plus 1% B A AR > 3 A 1 R
or 2% per annum and are repayable within one year. The effective B T U B A R AR A R 1 B2
interest rates are ranging from 5% to 7.25% per annum (2008: 7.25% JEFEE > WA —EREE o BEA
t0 9.75% per annum). A TAER RS 7258 (—FF N

HE L A PAERERT 25 A9 7505 ) o

Before offering any new loans, the director will assess the potential = H RO B AT > e A

borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits by the borrower. ZHBEGEERIAEBRANZEE

The director will continuously assess the recoverability of other B o G R RRAN A B B 2

loan receivables. The whole amount of other loan receivables are AT IR B o P A E A R A B R A

repayable upon request for repayment, so the balances are neither TR MR > WA R NI 4 A 3 IR 28 ik

past due nor impaired and in the opinion of the directors they have no {8 > HL2E 58 By % 55 s E I I X R

history of loan default. B o

The Group’s has concentration of credit risk in the above loans as SRR F PN e e Sy I |

five borrowers accounted for 76% (2008: 95%) of the total other loan = B AL AR B R A T6% (—

receivables as at 31st March, 2009. TEINAE © 95%) > i A~EE [E wl bl B

AT 4 P B AR o

The borrowers mainly consist of one listed company in Hong Kong ERNFEGHE—HEFS LA R X

and several private companies. In order to minimise the credit risk, B FA NN 7] o AR 45 [0 78 g 70 el A1

management of the Group monitors the repayment ability of the G & JEbE > B —HERERANZEK
borrowers continuously. AT o

26. INVENTORIES 26. #1

2009 2008

“RFNAE ZERBENE

HK$°000 HK$’000

#®WTT T

Finished goods B 906 341

Consumables THAES 2,237 1,820

3,143 2,161
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27.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT  27. A AEBIME RS AHR 2 S0 E

OR LOSS
2009 2008
“RFNAE —ERENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#®WTT T T
Investments held-for-trading: FRERERE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong i AP N e 174,897 9,245
Equity securities listed elsewhere A T T 2 A TE 1,655 1,756
176,552 11,001
Financial assets designated at fair T8 B H N THES IR K A 15 2
value through profit or loss: R ¢
Equity-linked notes JEeAS ) 5 - 956
176,552 11,957
At the balance sheet date, all financial assets at fair value through REEEH > T VA TES R & FEA
profit or loss are stated at fair value. The fair values of listed B2 SR EHUATESR - b
securities are determined based on the bid prices quoted in active T 76 75 2 AT 5 4 BRI BT 55 57
markets and those of the equity-linked notes are based on fair values 2 BB o A SR A
quoted by the respective issuing banks or financial institutions. ToHe g SRR T B R R A A TRz
A PETEE o
The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that S DAAH B 5 1 HE T ik W (.
are denominated in currency other than functional currency of the ZARSE T A TE SN IR R AR 2
relevant group entity are set out below: SREEESINT
2009 2008
- 2% ZET)N\E
HK$°000 HKS$’000
#wWTT T
Japanese Yen H [l 1,116 1,756
USD ESH 539 956
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28.  DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 28, MEMOhK - 5 B AT K
2009 2008
“ BN e =92
HK$°000 HK$°000
#W T BT
Trade debtors JE WS 5 2 Bk 10,748 27,685
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W R A (5,336) =
5,412 27,685
Refundable earnest money (note a) A TR & (M ika) 388,461 365,791
Other receivable (note b) HAbJEUSCEKIE () 19,120 23,659
Other debtors, deposits and HoAbRENSCRER ~ H24 J
prepayments TEA FIE 90,155 97,660
503,148 514,795
The Group allows credit period of 90 days to its trade customers. KEBGTHESEF ZE8HE90
H o

The following is an analysis of the ageing of debtors net of allowance DL 75 MBS MR R (IR R SRR 4) 72

for doubtful debts at the balance sheet date: A H Z WRES AT
2009 2008
2 9/K 2 —FT)N\E
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T BT
0 - 60 days TENTH 864 16,977
61 — 90 days ANt—HZ+H 431 124
Over 90 days L H 4,117 10,584
5,412 27,685
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess the A 52 T B % R T BT > AR IR AL
potential customer’s credit quality and define credit limits by ZHEFZWERYE > WEEZEFH
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. FEMR - £F 0E S8 g 5EET
16% (2008: 61%) of the trade debtors that are neither past due nor WRAGET © 16% (—EZ I\ 61%) i
impaired have the best credit rating. S 400 B BB B IRk L B s

ZAGEwTk o
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28.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)
Included in the Group’s trade debtors is an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$4,117,000 (2008: HK$10,584,000) which are past
due at the balance sheet date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. The average age of trade debtors is 135 days (2008:
120 days). The ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not
impaired is as follows:

28.

BR34BTk ()

A1) e s A ] A JRE A B 2 B THT AL 7
4,117,000 70 ( =B )L © i
10,584,0007C) » #Z & REC A A5 HE A F
) o A 4 ST R I (E R R o A
45 9] MR 0 75 U 55 A5 R R5 A A o] S5
i o MENCR S MR T4 REE A5 135 H
(CFE AR  120H) o BHERBIE
Z BN B IRk 2 IR # s

2009 2008
e 2 53 “EENE

HK$°000 HKS$’000

EW T T T

Over 90 days Lt A 4,117 10,584

The Group has provided fully for general trade debtors due over 2
years because historical experience is such that these receivables that
are past due beyond 2 years are generally not recoverable.

ASEH C b i i i 2 4 2 — R
Oy PRk A A B o i R A 1 A
BUR > 2 E 24 B EUIR K
—BANEET AN [E]

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows: SREHRIB M 2 RS
2009 2008
ZEFRME ZET)\E
HK$°000 HK$°000
#WT L T
Balance at beginning of the year EW AR - 3,315
Exchange realignment [ b, oA 23 305
Impairment losses recognised FEMCGRIETERR 2 B RE 18
on debtors 5,313 1,801
Amount written off as uncollectible R £ AN AT A ] R OE - (992)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries B O 2 D R - (4,429)
Balance at end of the year ARG R 5,336 -
Notes: MEE -

(a) @) In June 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and an independent third party (“Vendor A”) signed a
non-binding letter of intent with a view of negotiating a
possible acquisition from Vendor A of 50% of its ownership
and interest in certain land located in Macau which was
initially intended for redevelopment purposes, at an initial
consideration of HK$495,000,000. Upon signing of the
letter of intent, an amount of HK$10,000,000 (2008:
HK$10,000,000) was paid by the Group as refundable
earnest money.

100

MOEERAENA » AR
) — ] 4 g 2 ) B —
S =D ([EHH )
G EL R B E > L
T 7 AT RE DA 45 QA v
495,000,000 JC > [ B J
P o i JEL A7 7 R P 5 F
M2 50% A HE T 4=
B+ S S A
B oo AERFT R M ER o A
48 [ B2 32 A1 510,000,000
JE (O FFUE -
10,000,0007% ) 1E % Al T 3
R
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28.  DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 28, MEWCIREK - He4 B wAT Sk (A7)

Notes: (Cont’d) Mtat - (4E)

(a) (ii) On 28th December, 2006, 21st March, 2007 and (a) (ii) W EENE T A
17th February, 2009, further amounts of refundable —t+NAH > ZEEELE=
earnest money of approximately HK$170,000,000, A=+ —H R _EZNFE
HK$160,191,000 and HK$12,000,000, respectively, were “HE+tEH > REEBRE
paid by the Group through Wing On, a company whose Ik 2 (— [ H e 003 1 Wk 22
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange for the negotiation B BT 2 A ) kR Al
of possible acquisition of ownership and interest in REMC R LA B 2 W 2 2
properties located in the PRC. Wing On undertakes to WA HE K HE SR - 4 Rl —
refund the earnest money to the Group in full upon request AT AT TR S B A
of the Group. Up to the date of this report, the negotiations W 170,000,000 G -
have not yet been concluded. & 160,191,000 7T K # H

12,000,0007C ° 7K %7K st 8
A AR [ BRI R BUR R
A HHA > G BHAERE R

(iii) On 18th January, 2008, the Company entered into a (iii) AEENE—H N
memorandum of understanding with an independent thirty H > A F) 2y i nl 58
party with a view of negotiating a possible acquisition i — [ g e A B e R A
of the entire issued share capital of a company which is s — iR L A F 2 &
proposed to hold and develop a land in Vietnam. Upon B AT R B AL
signing of the memorandum of understanding, an amount =7 RTSL S R o 2
of HK$15,600,000 was paid by the Group as refundable SRR TR kAR 0 ARE
earnest money. A further amount of HK$20,670,000 was S AT U 115,600,000 G4 £
paid by the Group during the year ended 31st March, 2009. ATRENES - HET

EENF=H=+—H1
AR R [ HE— 2 SO A
#5120,670,0007C °

(iv) On 29th October, 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the (iv) WEFERELETH T
Company paid HK$10,000,000 to vendor with a view of H o AN F 22 %A
negotiating a possible acquisition of ownership and interest G Rl G RS
in properties located in Hong Kong. The amount was fully EWZWMEZ AR
refunded to the Group during the year ended 31st March, HE 42 > 10 O S AT
2009. 10,000,0007C = #XH A

EEREAE=A=+—
H 1k 4F R OB 18 T A 4R

[ o
The refundable earnest money mainly concentrated on vendors of Al RS S EERE = HEE
3 projects and over 80% of total refundable earnest money are in ZEJT o W] TR R R AR
relation to one project. The Company has continuously assessed the 80% A H —fHIHH o Al f7 4457
recoverability of the money invested and the progress of the project ity O 4% ¥ 22 SR T 2 M R R % T
and the vendors have no history of loan default. HZHERE - BRI IGREE# -
No formal agreements in respect of the above possible acquisitions B H 51 > MR bk
have been entered into up to the date of this report. In the opinion A RE HEAT 2 WS 5T 7 AT ] 1E 2
of the directors of the Company, the possible acquisitions may or oo ANHIER L o WREHEITZ
may not materialise and are fully refundable, therefore, the above S R Y5 HLAT T R EeE#E >
refundable earnest money is classified as current asset accordingly. I b T AR R A R A T
B o

(b) The other receivable represented an amount due from the vendors in (b) HoA EWCRIB G i BN
respect of tax indemnity given by the vendors pursuant to the sales F A A N B A )T RT 5L 2
and purchase agreements for acquisition of subsidiaries in 2006 and B e A B 5 E 2 BEIE AR
2007. Z MEET T HOH
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29.

30.

UNSECURED LOANS AND INTEREST DUE FROM
RELATED COMPANIES

The amount represented loan to a subsidiary of Wing On (2008:
Wing On and one of its subsidiaries). The principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 (2008: HK$51,000,000) is unsecured, carries
interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate plus 2% and repayable within one
year (2008: within one year) from balance sheet date. The effective
interest rate is 7.0% (2008: 7.2%) per annum.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as all (2008: all) of the
unsecured loans were mainly due from one (2008: two) related
company.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH
The pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. The deposits
carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 0.35% to 4.78% (2008:
2.9% to 4.78%) per annum.

The bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging
from 0.001% to 2.2% (2008: 0.01% to 4.5%) per annum.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash that
are denominated in currency other than functional currency of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

29.

30.

JEEVBC BRI 2 ) 2 eG4 £ ) A

AR A T — K % 2 Mg AR (.
T T )NAE gk 2 o H— B g A =)
Z B o W 1540,000,0007C (—FEE N
A 651,000,000 70) 2 A8 4 RA 4
FEA > F AU e B A M2 E 5
SR A5 R — AR R (RN
AR o BBAERIRST.08 (Z
LN T2H) o

A T AR S R o R AR A
(BT A - AR MR R Bk
AW (ZFF )\ E W) FEL
= -

CIEMaUTR BT RS KBl
LRI ER AT 17 335 T T 4R 47 DA R
AR 2 — B ERATRLE Z A7 3K » %
{7 3K 2 [ 78 4 A 2 0.35 B £ 4.78 i
(BT )\ 2 9JH 4. 78)H) A5 o

SRAT &5 Bk 2 AT AR A # h 0.001 JH &
2208 (L FENAE 1 0.01EFE4.5H) R
% o

3tz I LAAH B 45 B E A 2 T Re B A
Z A G T R AT SR AT A AR DA B R AT A4
BRI

2009 2008

— % e A2

HK$°000 HKS$°000

W T T T

USD FIT 26,226 31,975
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31.  CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 31 MEAFMRK - 5 BT B 5
The following is an analysis of creditors, deposits and accrued JEAT R ~ He s X ERTBE SO 55 H
charges at the balance sheet date: ZHTE
2009 2008
ZEEMAE “EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T BT
Trade creditors aged: JREAS & 7 Wk 2 M6
0 — 60 days ZE5TH 763 1,420
61 — 90 days At—ZJ1+H 447 355
Over 90 days LA 799 360
2,009 2,135
Other creditors, deposits and accrued HoAtREAT R - Hed K
charges (Note) JREFBH S (Mt 7t 70,038 68,257
72,047 70,392

MEH B M2 FHERMA60R A%
VR A o 755 R i LB R R i A A
IR BN AT -

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies to ensure that all
payables are within the credit timeframe.

Note:  Under the agreement in connection with the disposal of Panyu BifEE - AR B 3R S AT SR BR A 1

Golf, the Group agreed to assume certain assets and liabilities of
Panyu Golf with the net carrying amount of HK$14,924,000 (2008:
HK$30,423,000) which has been included in other creditors at 31st

ko ASSE M [R] RUR VSR B A ORER
5 T H TR % 1L 25 W6 15 14,924,000 7T
(= \AE 5 130,423,000 7T )

ZBERAR - ZEFER _FETI
A = AP A HABEAT IR

ES
K o

March, 2009.
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32. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS OF  32.  MEfFBH)E A ) A 3K 2k 06

SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. A A A ~ S S P EOR R -
33.  CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES 33 WHUBEIRREAT KR
(a) On 11th August, 2005, the Company has issued HK$1,000 (a) MW oEFEEZHENHA+—H > &
million unsecured zero coupon convertible notes due N T HEAT) 2 4 A e JB A i
2010 (the “First 2010 Convertible Notes”) at an initial #1044 70 (BEAR MY 3£ 37(c)
conversion price of HK$0.44 per ordinary share, which K 37(e) 3 All pir itk 22 A WL i
was subsequently adjusted to HK$5.675 as a result of T A i 4 T o 2 2 s S 675
the Company’s rights issue and capital reorganisation as JG) T #5 47 #5 %5 1,000,000,000 TG
detailed in notes 37(c) and 37(e) respectively. The First 2010 T T AR MR B,
Convertible Notes is non-interest bearing and will mature AR (M —F
on 11th August, 2010. The holders of the convertible note AETTHRRR B ) o SRt =&
payables have the right to convert the First 2010 Convertible — BN MR A AR
Notes into shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at any WA —E—FAENH +—H
time during the period from 11th August, 2005 to 11th F M o HEAT TR R A A
August, 2010. AR —FEZLAFENA+—H
FoR-FENHA+—HIEW
il o BRI EE — it =T —FA4F
A 4R R S S AR o A A T S
T {ELVE 1001 T 2 A AL
The First 2010 Convertible Notes, unless converted prior to %I 88 — it~ — T AR n] ik
the maturity under the conditions specified in the relevant SRR B AT A B R4 S
notes documents, will be redeemed at 110% of their principal Tk B 2 A A e - o HI I
amounts. AR GEZ 110% B R -
During the year ended 31st March, 2008, HK$111 million AN B EE37 () Tk - B F
of the First 2010 Convertible Notes was converted into E)NEZH =+ —HIEFE >
252,272,723 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share 5 1111,000,000 756 — it —F
capital of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.44 — R AE W] $ R BE R 4 50
per ordinary share as set out in note 37(a). As at 31st March, g e 3 408 I3 s M 0.44 7T S AR £
2009, HK$471 million (2008: HK$471 million) of the First 252,272,723 [ AR A W LA R 4
2010 Convertible Notes was outstanding. J% T (B 95 960,01 76 2 35 48 i -

s ¥ 471,000,000 7C ( — & E )\
4F 0 W H471,000,0007T) 25—
it =B — AR A R A EE R
EENE=ZA=+—H R
Ha o
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (Cont’d) 33, WIMRBCEIRHEATROE (4F)

(a) (Cont’d) (a) (#)
Upon full conversion of the outstanding First 2010 MR —FENE=ZHA=1+—H
Convertible Notes at 31st March, 2009 at the adjusted BBt ] R 2R
conversion price of HK$5.675 per ordinary share of Fo g I AS A ) e A v 4 B3 T (B
HKS$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company, a total ‘J%"é%o 017G 2 48 1 5 45,675
of 83,004,399 new ordinary shares, which would fall to be AR R A A B
issued by the Company upon the exercise of the conversion Uﬂ‘%?ﬁ‘ T 483,004,399 A% H
rights attached to the First 2010 Convertible Notes, would be WL > RN RERNE - F
issued. — LA ] 40 J S A i R A8

MEATAH IR B4 T A BRI AR o

(b)  On 8th June, 2006, the Company issued HK$60 million by HAEFENRENHNH > AR
unsecured zero coupon convertible notes due 2010 T 4% 4] 2 0 1A g A R
(the “Second 2010 Convertible Notes”) at an initial #0.447C (BEAR I M 5E37(c) 2
conversion price of HK$0.44 per ordinary share, which 37(e) 53 Al BTt 22 AR 8w AR % )%
was subsequently adjusted to HK$5.675 as a result of Hﬁzfiﬁﬁ’tﬂﬁﬁ i # 2 s ¥ 5.675
the Company’s rights issue and capital reorganisation as TG) > BT 60,000, OOOfEﬁA
detailed in notes 37(c) and 37(e) respectively. The Second :i’i iﬁ@éﬂﬁﬁzﬂﬂ&ﬁﬂ £S5
2010 Convertible Notes is non-interest bearing and will AR SE (56 =%
mature on 11th August, 2010. The holders of the convertible AETT MR EEAE ) o 2E it — g
note payables have the right to convert the Second 2010 — AR R I A S s
Convertible Notes into shares of HK$0.01 each of the M = F—EF)NH +—H F
Company at any time during the period from 8th June, 2006 W o HEAT T HRBCR SR A AN E
to 11th August, 2010. R BT ANFEANHNHE

F-FENA+—HYM > B
R o — it = — AR A R R
SRR SO 5 AR\ ) A R T (EL U

#o.01 T2 I o
Unless previously converted, the Company will redeem B A SR A > AR AR
the convertible note payables on the maturity date at the IR NS R SR A KoY
redemption amount of 108.3% of the principal amount of the PEA G50 2 108.3% 8 [7] 7] 4 i
convertible notes then outstanding. R
During the year ended 31st March, 2008, HK$42.5 million HE _EZENF=H=+—H
of the Second 2010 Convertible Notes was converted into 1E4FE > S8R 42,500,000
96,645,052 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share TLZ M B — B AR
capital of the Company at the initial conversion price of IR PR B ¥ 37(a) BT 4 4R V) 2
HKS$0.44 per share as set out in note 37(a). As at 31st March, S, H A A B S 60 0.44 0T S A 7
2009, HK$17.5 million (2008: HK$17.5 million) of the 96,645,052 B4 2 B e A 4 i
Second 2010 Convertible Notes was outstanding. T {E W5 #°0.01 7T 2 %E?Eﬁﬁ e

%17 500,0007C ( —FF )4

7 %17,500,0007C) z%ﬁ =
T FEM BB ZER —FE
JUE=H=+—H MRk o
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33.  CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (Cont’d) 33, WHBSERREAT KO (A7)

(b)  (Cont’d) by  (#)
Upon full conversion of the outstanding Second 2010 it —EENF=H=+—H
Convertible Notes at 31st March, 2009 at the adjusted O b A AT R 2
conversion price of HK$5.675 per ordinary share of Fi A LA ) A v A % T (B
HKS$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company, a total of W5 ¥50.01 70 2 % B s W 5.675
3,079,502 new ordinary shares, which would fall to be issued TG 2 A8 R e i A B e
by the Company upon the exercise of the conversion rights R 384T 6 453,079,502 1% 5
attached to the Second 2010 Convertible Notes, would be A ARNFIENE M _F
issued. — A e B P 4 %

MEATAR IR B4 T B B o
() On 15th June, 2006, the Company issued HK$1,000 (c) R EENEASHTRLAE S R

million unsecured 1% convertible notes due 2011 (the
“2011 Convertible Notes”) at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.70 per ordinary shares, which was subsequently
adjusted to HK$9.025 as a result of the Company’s rights
issue and capital reorganisation as detailed in notes 37(c) and
37(e) respectively. The 2011 Convertible Notes bear interest
at 1% per annum and will mature on 19th June, 2011. The
holders of the convertible note payables have the right to
convert the 2011 Convertible Notes into shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company at any time during the period from 15th
June, 2006 to 19th June, 2011.

Unless previously converted, the Company will redeem
the convertible note payables on the maturity date at the
redemption amount of 110% of the principal amount of the
convertible notes then outstanding.

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, HK$94 million
of 2011 Convertible Notes was converted into 134,285,714
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company at the initial conversion price of HK$0.70 per
original share as set out in note 37(a). As at 31st March,
2009, HK$906 million (2008: HK$906 million) of the 2011
Convertible Notes was outstanding.

Upon full conversion of the outstanding 2011 Convertible
Notes at 31st March, 2009 at the adjusted conversion price of
HK$9.025 per ordinary share of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company, a total of 100,387,795 new ordinary
shares, which would fall to be issued by the Company upon
the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the 2011
Convertible Notes, would be issued.
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N AT A AR g P 7 s
5 W 0.70 7T (B 1% H B 5E37(c)
Ke37(e) Al i 2 AN w AR B
T B A T AH T A 2 22 759,025
JC) > BT 1,000,000,0007C
R AR 2 1 E S S
AT R R B ([ T ——4F ]
A B |) o — R ——4E A
BB AR R R EEEE > 3
M = F——4 N H +JLH F
] o MEATA] M SRR AN
WEA B NENATHEE
ZF——4ENA LB
B R ot — & — — 4F ] R B
P8 SR T AR ) 4 B T A 7
0.017Z BEAy -

I 28 5 S Ak > AR wD IR
2 1 B 5 18 o S 2 ] R 22
PR R IE AR 58 2 1109 [ 1]
CIEZY &5

HE_FEZNE=H=+—H
IR > &% A 194,000,000
JCZ L — — A ] R B
BF 5 37(a) Fir 2t 42 490 5 50 e A
B I B 17 5 10,70 7T S 4R
134,285,714 & 48 0\ W) e A oh 4
% T 1 s 0 0.01 0 2 A AL o
# #906,000,000 7C ( & E )\
A HE%5906,000,0000T) 2 &
— 4RI R SRR R E L
FEZA=1+—HMRL% -

i —FEENE=A=+—H
T A A i R R
NS N R S TR =
0.01 G 2 %8 LA 159.025 L 2
A R B A B e > HIL
BT A 3£100,387,795 %8 i
B > AN R ZEA & ——4FET]
15 S T A S R A AT ol IR
BATH BB o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok o B 85 R M

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009) (#E _“FENE=H=1—HIL4F)

Annual Report 2008-2009 4E

33.  CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (Cont’d) 33, WIHRUBCEIRMEAT K (A7)
Each of the convertible note payables contain two components, £ i % 24 A OB AL & W
liability and equity elements. The equity element is presented in BB B IEATR Y o BEART 43 HA [ Al HR i
equity under the heading of “convertible loan notes equity reserve”. SRRIAGHEM JHT 250 B A o w] i
The effective interest rates of the convertible note payables are R 2 B AR A R A 25 5.85 L %2916
ranging from 5.85% to 9.16% (2008: 5.85% to 9.16%) per annum. JE(ZFEE N 585 E9.16H) A
o
The movement of the liability component of the convertible note A 5 S R AN R I A AR A A T
payables for the year is set out below: GBI N
2009 2008
“RFNAE RN
HK$°000 HK$’000
#®WTT T T
Liability component at the beginning AR Z AR SY
of the year 1,243,843 1,368,400
Conversion during the year AN A% - (212,248)
Effective interest charged (note 8) BRSPS (Mt Es) 101,414 97,681
Interest paid EAFALE (9,170) (9,990)
Liability component at the end R AR
of the year 1,336,087 1,243,843
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERERA BT A
Current liability T & 7,174 7,284
Non-current liability ) AR 1,328,913 1,236,559
1,336,087 1,243,843
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34. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 34. R AL R
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
AR AL Ak SARAL S R F B
2009 2008 2009 2008

e £ 2% e = Y s £ 7% - YN
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
wWTe wWTr  #W T #WT

Amount payable under finance leases: TR T B T 0H -
Within one year —4EN 120 67 90 49
In the second to fifth year B E A
inclusive (45 H R RI4F) 327 202 282 173
447 269 372 222
Less: Future finance charges B HERMEER (75) (47) - =
Present value of lease obligations T ERIEHE 372 222 372 222
Less: Amount due within one year W B A EE N
shown under current liabilities N EI 2 IR (90) (49)
Amount due after one year — AR B 2 RO 282 173
It is the Group’s policy to lease certain furniture, fixtures and AR AR [ 2 BUR B AR R RS A B A
equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is FARM, - B Kkt o EITIA 5
approximately five years. Interest rates underlying all obligations FAF o TAMEMREHTRIEZFEL
under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates ranging F59.11E 918/ (ZFF /N : 9,15
from 9.11% to 9.18% (2008: 9.15% to 9.16%) per annum. F916/H) A% > BRASEGHH B
E o
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the 7 B2 19 B AH RIS T DU AR A 22
lessors’ charge over the leased assets. FH VR4
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35. BANK BORROWINGS 35, BUTHTR
2009 2008
ZRBNAE e AN
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T T8
Bank loans, secured AR R K 123,488 153,643
The maturity profile of the above ARG R
loans and borrowings is as follows: FHAE AR
Within one year or on demand AN BT R E R 82,830 113,996
More than one year, but not —4EDL E AR A
exceeding two years 26,485 12,433
More than two years, but not WAERA (R =4E A
exceeding three years 13,073 12,837
More than three years but not —AEDL BRI A
exceeding four years 1,100 13,254
More than four years but not POAF DL F AR AR
exceeding five years - 1,123
123,488 153,643
Less: Amount due within one year B B A FE T —EN
shown under current liabilities F| B2 FE (82,830) (113,996)
Amount due after one year — A F M 2 FIH 40,658 39,647
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558

BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 35, BUTEEE (4
Carrying amount
Contractual R 1A
Bank borrowings comprise Maturity date interest rate 2009 2008
SATIE B oS B4 H CrOpES “EFWE ZERRNG
HK$°000 HK$°000
T VST T
Variable-rate borrowings:
RS
HIBOR plus 1% secured HK$ Revolving HIBOR + 1% 1,898 1,844
bank loan (note) fEs B RATIF 3
it GRITIE </ Y5y) YL PREN
AR TSR AT R (M)
HIBOR plus 1.55% secured HK$ 30th April, 2012 HIBOR + 1.55% 39,605 51,690
bank loan (note) “E—-"FNH=1H s RATIR ¥
FUBSATR SR B 155 B 1558
BRI O R AT R (M)
Hong Kong Prime Rate minus 0.5% 26th July, 2009 P-05% 47,856 66,850
secured HK$ bank loan (note) “EFNFEEAZARH T B R 5 600,58
7 s B B R 2R3910.5
A RIS (M)
89,359 120,384
Fixed-rate borrowings:
TR
5.67% secured bank loan of 25th November, 2010 5.67% 13,651 -
RMB12,000,000 “EF-FEF—H-tEH 5678
5.67)% 2 N #12,000,0007C
AT B
5.31% secured bank loan of 10th September, 2009 5.31% 20,478 -
RMB18,000,000 ZEZENENLA TR 5318
5.318 2 N #18,000,0007C
AT R
7.47% secured bank loan of 22nd December, 2008 7.47% - 13,304
RMB12,000,000 “EFENEFZAZTZH 14
74782 N #12,000,0007C
AHARIT RN
7.02% secured bank loan of 9th September, 2008 7.02% - 19,955
RMB 18,000,000 ZZLNENLA LA 7.0
7.02% 2 N[ #18,000,0007C
AR B
34,129 33,259
123,488 153,643
Note: Interest will be repriced when HIBOR or Hong Kong Prime Rate Bt - RIS AR S A s SR AT IR 47 B ok

change.
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3s. BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 35. SATAG B ()
At the balance sheet date, the Group has the following undrawn REEEH ZIK%@ﬁU\Tﬂ%TEEXZ{a
borrowing facilities: R
2009 2008
ZEFRMAF —FT)N\E
HK$°000 HK$°000
#WT L BT
Floating rate FEHE
— expiring within one year — —4F A 2,190 17,150
— expiring beyond one year — —AFAR JE 13,702 222,406
15,892 239,556
The effective interest rates of bank borrowings are ranging from SRAT A B 2 B MRAE A % 2 1.35 ) 227,20
1.35% to 7.20% (2008: 4.75% to 8.06%) per annum. JE (TN - 475 E £ 8.06JH) K
& o
36. DEFERRED TAXATION 36. IEMEBLEEAM
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and DATR 25 AR 47 B R A 4R L RERR
movements thereon during the current and prior years: TURIER T A A s )
Accelerated Deferred
tax development
depreciation costs Tax
Ik WA losses Total
BLE T R %S BRE At
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

BT BT BT T T T

At 1st April, 2007 N=FELFENA—H 42,469 75 (1,935) 40,609
(Credit) charge to income N NG NE S

for the year (646) - 1,779 1,133
Exchange realignment [fEE e, 3 1,067 - 81 1,148
Released on disposal of 5 B A e e

subsidiaries (note 42) (Kfat42) (14,316) (75) 75 (14,316)
At 31st March, 2008 R-FZNE=A=1+—H 28,574 = = 28,574
Credit to income for the year RAERIATEA (685) = = (685)
At 31st March, 2009 REZFFZNAEZA=Z4—H 27,889 - - 27,889
At 31st March, 2009, the Group has unused tax losses of MEEENFEZH=1+—H » KELH
HK$700,389,000 (2008: HK$517,627,000) available for offset TP A 1S B R AR i P 2 o B B JA
against future profits. At the balance sheet date, no deferred tax i 15 2 W5 15700,389,000 76 ( —FF )\
asset has been recognised in respect of such losses. Tax losses of 4 W HK517,627,00000)  RA&SEH
HK$677,940,000 (2008: HK$511,706,000) may be carried forward ST A B e 4 R R A B T o
indefinitely under current tax regulation in Hong Kong and the *E}Tﬁ%—l‘%fﬁﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁ Tt 755 Jes 48
remaining tax losses of HK$22,449,000 (2008: HK$5,921,000) will 677,940,000 70 ( - Z VAR« i s
expire from 2009 to 2013. 511,706,0007C) Tiﬂifiﬁﬂ;ﬁ s ﬁﬁﬁ%T

75 i 15 7 522,449,000 7T ( &)\
4 HEN5.921,00070) I B E jLE
BB AR o
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37 JBeAR
Number
of shares Amount
Bty ¥ H &%
HKS$°000
T o0
At HK$0.01 each: BRI 0.010C ¢
Authorised: R
At st April, 2007, 31st March, REFELFENA—H
2008 and 31st March, 2009 TEENE=HA=+—HEK
CETBNAE=ZA=+—H 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: CEIT MBI ¢
At st April, 2007 R oEELENH—H 2,312,314,541 23,123
Conversion of convertible notes SRR MR B (i Ea)

(note a) 483,203,485 4,832
Placement of shares (note b) e B B A (M aEb) 300,000,000 3,000
At 31st March, 2008 RZEENFE=H=+—H 3,095,518,026 30,955
Rights issue (note c) BB (M 7Ee) 9,286,554,078 92,866
Share repurchased and cancelled W Il B sk SR Iy (7 d)

(note d) (609,135,000) (6,092)
Share consolidation (note e(i)) ety & 10 (Bt te()) (11,302,019,620) =
Capital reduction (note e(iii)) HIB A (it ediii)) - (113,020)

At 31st March, 2009 REFFMME=A=T1—H 470,917,484 4,709
Notes: Mt

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the First 2010 Convertible
Notes, the Second 2010 Convertible Notes and the 2011 Convertible
Notes with aggregate principal amounts of HK$111,000,000,
HK$42,500,000 and HK$94,000,000 were converted into
252,272,723, 96,645,052 and 134,285,710 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion prices (before
adjustment of Rights Issue and Capital Reorganisation) of HK$0.44,
HK$0.44 and HK$0.70 per share, respectively.

On 18th May, 2007, the Company entered into a share placing
agreement with a placing agent for a placing of 300,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at an issue price of
HK$0.56 per share (before adjustment of Rights Issues and Capital
Reorganisation). The placement was approved by shareholders in
a special general meeting held on Ist June, 2008. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$163 million would be used to finance the
expansion of the property portfolio and the existing property
development projects of the Group. The new shares rank pari passu
with all the other shares in issue in all respects.
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(b)

BE_ZXENEFE=H=+—H
IE4EE - A& BEE S A B
111,000,000 7C ~ ¥ 42,500,000 7
s 594,000,000 70 2 25 — it &
— AN R R i R
TAE ] R SR e = — —4F ]
1 B PR 43 Bl 4% 4 AR (i 47
AL AR T st A i A4 R i ) e e o R
0.447C ~ W M0.44 5T K HE¥0.70 T
S 5 252,272,723 I~ 96,645,052
J K 134,285,710 M AR/ ] 455 Bt 1 (L
WI0.0100 2 AL o

RoTEEFERATAH - AR
Bl — 42 T 65 QB ET ST % 00 T S o
ko TR AT E A B R 0.56 T (it
AT 3t B B e A T AL A R ) i
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75 15 163,000,000 7014485 1 1 2 A 4=
B A A LAY RIEE 2
F o B B3 A 45 T ¥ BEL At %
AT AN T2 AT ) S i 2 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok o B 85 R M

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009) (#E _“FENE=H=1—HIL4F)

Annual Report 2008-2009 4E

37.  SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 37, A

Notes: (Cont’d) MtaE o (FEF)

(c) In August 2008, the Company has issued and allotted 9,286,554,078 (c) W EFENFENA > KRN TA S
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to the existing qualifying FEA — B 1 = 8 136 Jse B 4 (A
shareholders pursuant to the rights issue on the basis of three rights T A% g 0 T B A T T 3 R 2%
shares (with warrants in the proportion of four warrants for every VY 73 58 B RE 78 ) 2 ME I i (T it
fifteen rights shares subscribed) for every share currently held (the B 1) > DA A A 5 B 10 7 0,07
“Rights Issue™) at a subscription price of HK$0.07 per share. The G o [ BUA G B AT K il
net proceeds of approximately HK$627 million were used as general 9,286,554,078 it 5 i T (B ¥ 15 0.01
working capital of the Group. The new shares rank pari passu with TCZ AL o TS K TE R AR A s
the existing shares in all respects. Details of the Rights Issue were set 627,000,000 7CH FVE A4 B — i
out in a circular of the Company dated 11th July, 2008. A o RN AE T A I B A

JBetry = A R S ML o BEBREAR R
AAFR AR —FTZNFELA+—

H Z 3R o
(d) During the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Company repurchased (d) BEEENFE=H=1+—HIL4F
a total of 609,135,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the JE o AN E A g A2 i A A AR AR
Company through the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration #) % & 27,000,000 7 (6145 28 5 1
of approximately HK$27 million (including transaction costs), ) i 11 609,135,000 % A 28 7] 4 Ak
details of which are as follows: B 0.0l e 2 B i - REIE
SIE -
No. of
ordinary
shares of Price per share Aggregate
HK$0.01 each BB IR RS consideration
Month of repurchase A5 B mifHH #0.0150 Highest Lowest paid
ik I ) Z WA R A AU A
HK$ HK$ HK$°000
ki i BT
September 2008 387,805,000 0.054 0.037 17,506
ZEE)NERA
October 2008 78,330,000 0.058 0.033 4,282
e = I
February 2009 143,000,000 0.034 0.034 4,891
“ETNEA
609,135,000 26,679
All of the above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. The A A 1 B ] R o G B
nominal value of the cancelled shares was credited to the capital JBeAry 2 Tt A A ol fte e > 4
redemption reserve and the aggregate consideration was paid out of FRAB RAAR A R 2 (it S AT
the reserves of the Company.
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed FEAE A > 7 ) O TR 2 ) AR A fg
any of the Company’s listed securities during both years. B S AT A ] T R
7 o
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SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

(e) On 30th January, 2009, the Company proposed reorganisation of the
share capital (“Capital Reorganisation”). The Capital Reorganisation
became effective on 16th March, 2009 after approval by the
shareholders. The Capital Reorganisation involved the following:

(1) every twenty-five issued shares of HK$0.01 each
were consolidated into one share of HK$0.25 (“Share
Consolidation™).

(ii) the total number of the consolidated shares in the issued
share capital of the Company following the Share
Consolidation was rounded down to a whole number by
cancelling the fractional consolidated share arising from the
Share Consolidation;

(iii) the paid-up capital of each consolidated share was reduced
from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.24 so
as to form a reorganised share of HK$0.01 (“Capital
Reduction”); and

(iv) the credit arising in the accounts of the Company from the
Capital Reduction was credited to the contributed surplus
account of the Company and the directors were authorised
to apply such amount in any manner permitted by the laws
of Bermuda and the Bye-laws and to make a distribution
to the shareholders from time to time, without further
authorisation from the shareholders.

Warrants

Pursuant to the Rights Issue as detailed in note (c), the Company has
issued 2,476,414,328 warrants to the subscribers of the rights shares
conferring the rights to the holders thereof to subscribe in cash for
2,476,414,328 warrant shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
at an initial exercise price of HK$0.105 per warrant share (subject
to adjustments) at any time during the period from 5th August,
2008 to 4th February, 2010. A total of 2,476,414,420 warrants (of
which 92 warrants with fractional entitlement were not issued to the
subscribers but have been issued and retained for the benefit of the
Company) and the exercise price of HK$0.105 per warrant share
were subsequently adjusted to 99,056,576 warrants and HK$2.625
per share, respectively, as a result of the Capital Reorganisation.

At 31st March, 2009, the Company had outstanding 99,056,576
warrants (after adjustment of the Capital Reorganisation), which
if exercise in full would result in the issue of 99,056,576 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each.
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37.  SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 37, A
Warrants (Cont’d) WO B RERS ()
The subscription rights attaching to the warrants are measured at fair % S5 R RO 5 JUT B 2 R R A A Uk e
value of approximately HK$34,571,000 on initial recognition and are FRIRE 2 A F-{E 49 W H°34,571,0007C » If2
recognised in equity in the warrant reserve. TE R R fett ff Hh AR 2y RO AR o
The fair value of the warrants issued during the year was calculated OB TR IORE RS 2 NP T B —IH
using the Binominal option pricing model. The inputs into the model AR e R G R o A
were as follows: HHEWTF
Date of issue 5th August, 2008 47 H TERE )\
JNHHH
Share price HK$0.064 JiefE #510.06470
Exercise price HK$0.105 T g #0.10570
Time to maturity 1.5 years 1) 441 1 1.54F
Expected volatility 75.58% TEFETHE R 75.58%
Expected dividend yield Nil TR 4
Risk free rate 1.981% 4 J g 1| 5 1.981)5
Fair value per warrant HK$0.0140 R RiER  ws%0.014000
NS
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of FHEFRRHE RS AP E R 2 SR
the warrants are based on management’s best estimate. RIHE LR 2 B AR EIES o
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38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Scheme adopted on 26th August, 2002 (the “Scheme”)

Following the termination of the scheme adopted on 28th February,
1994, in August 2002, the Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on 26th August, 2002 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to eligible persons and will expire on 25th
August, 2012. Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may
grant share options to the following eligible persons to subscribe for
shares in the Company:

1) employees including executive directors of the Company, its
subsidiaries and any companies in which the Company holds
any equity interest; or

(i1) non-executive directors of the Company, its subsidiaries
and any companies in which the Company holds any equity
interest; or

(iii)  suppliers or customers; or
@iv) consultants, advisers or agents.

Share options granted should be accepted within 28 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of share options.
The exercise price is determined at the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares on the date of grant of the share option; or (ii) the
average closing price of shares on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of shares on the
date of grant.

There is no specific requirement that an option must be held for
any minimum period before it can be exercised but the directors are
empowered to impose at their discretion any such minimum period at
the time of grant of any particular option. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the directors at their
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years from the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share options
under the Scheme may be granted when aggregated with the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under all the other schemes (the “Scheme Limit”) is 10%
of shares in issue on the adoption date of the Scheme. The Scheme
Limit may be refreshed by a resolution in shareholders’ meeting such
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes
shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of such
shareholders’ approval. However, the Scheme Limit and any increase
in the Scheme Limit shall not result in the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
under the Scheme and other schemes exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. No person shall be granted a share option,
within 12-month period of the date of grant, exceeds 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of grant.
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38.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 38. BB (4
The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TREREES - EE RIS EE T
options held by directors and employees and other participants, and FrE AN R RS ERE RS > DACAAE
movements in such holdings during the current and prior years: FOMATAF A B2 H) -
Number of share options
TR H
Adjusted
exercise  Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
price at at at
per share 142007 Granted  Forfeited 142008 Adjustment Expired  Forfeited 3132009
Vesting Exercisable B R-FRLE during during REFFNE during during during R-FFAA
Date of grant proportion period B WI-0 theyer  theyer  MA-H theyar  theyer  theyear ZfZ4-
ShAH RERR RN bR WAGE  ERRE ERSK  WREE AW FREE RREK kG
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(W) hiet1)
HKS
i
Employees andother B RS BAE -
participants:
15.8.2006 “RERENRTIA 0% 15.8.2006 - 14.8.2008 0315 1,900,000 - - 1900000 L3400 (3,013400) - -
ZRTVEARTRAE
ZETVEARTIA
0% 15.8.2007 - 14.8.2008 0315 1,900,000 - - 1900000 LIT3400 (3013400 - -
“ITLEAATRAR
ZEZVEAA IR
272007 ZRRLELAC TR 0% 27.7.2008-267.2011 1055 - 10,100,000 - 10100000 (6,636,764 ) - (2946200) 517,036
“ETMELACTERZ
ZF—EEAZRA
0% 217.2009-267.2011 1055 - 10,100,000 - 10100000 (6,636,764 ) - (2946200) 517,03
“ERNEEACTERE
i S i
Former directors HiES
(Note 2): Witz
15.8.2006 ZEENEARTAA 0% 15.8.2006 - 14.8.2008 0315 4,000,000 - (2250000) 1,750,000 586,000 (1,586,000)  (750,000) -
“EENENATRAE
ZEZVEAA IR
0% 15.8.2007- 14.8.2008 0315 4,000,000 - (2250000) 1,750,000 586,000 (1,586,000)  (750,000) -
“ZRARARTRRE
ZERVEARTIA
21.7.2007 ERLELACTLA 0% 217.2008 - 2672011 1055 - 2250000 - 2250000 (1404840) - (750,000 ) 95,160
“REMEEAC TR
“F—ELASRR
0% 27.7.2009-267.2011 1055 - 2250000 - 2250000 (1404840) - (750,000 ) 95,160
“ETARLACTLRE
ZF—EEAZRA
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38.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 38, JREVERNKE S (A
Number of share options
Wl
Adjusted
exercise  Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
price at at  Adjustment at
per share 142007 Granted  Forfeited 142008 during Expired  Forfeited 3132009
Vesting Exercisable Bk R-RRLE during during RFFAE theyear during during WEFFAN
Date of grant proportion period % WA-H theyer  theyer  MA-H  theyer  theyer  theyear ZA=1—H
Shn BEh AN flfl WAGE ARG RS WREE  FREE EREN  RRRE WREE
(Note 1) (Note 1)
Hit1) (hit1)
HKS
4
Directors: W
1582006 ZRENEARTAA 50% 1582006 - 14.8.2008 0315 9750000 - - 050000 5713500 (15463.500) - -
ZEEREARTRAE
EEMEA TR
50% 15.82007- 14.8.2008 0315 9750000 - - 0750000 5713500 (15463.500) - -
RFLEAATTAE
EENEA IR
2172000 ZRRLELAC TR 50% 21.7.2008-26.7.2011 1035 - 19500000 - 19500000 (18262920 - - 137080
ZERNFLACTHAR
“E——EEoAR
50% 21.7.2009-267.2011 1035 - 19500000 - 19500000 (18262920 - - 137080
“EENELACTLAE
I e 2 I

31300000 63700000 (4500000)  90.500000 (37783248 ) (40.125800)  (8:892400) 3698352

Brercisableatthe ~ FA(E
end of the years 26,800,000 1849.276

Weightedaverage ~ IMETH (R

exercise price 0315 1055 0315 9,758 NA 0315 10,099 1055
Notes: Mzt -
1. The exercise price and the number of share options outstanding 1. REEFRNF=ZH=—H 247
at 31st March, 2009 have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the {8 R ¥ AA T R I RE S H W A
Rights Issue and Capital Reorganisation. Jz WL S Je AN B 4H 2 B2 o
2. All former directors are no longer employees of the Group. 2e AHERECAHSAEEEER -
The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before A ) B T B S IR A ) E %5:
27th July, 2007, the date of grant of the options, was HK$0.67 Eg‘bﬁjjﬂ .—t‘b H -2 et B %
(before adjustment of Rights Issue and Capital Reorganisation), and 7%;'%0.67773£ﬁ/3 7@111%5&&5&?5 0 zﬂﬁ
o s = M2 A
the estimated fair value of the options granted was approximately %H”) E/‘?‘%Eiﬁﬂjngzﬁ A *@ﬁ‘
HK$15,269,000 at the date of grant. B H Wy Pl 2 615,269,000 ©
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 38. BMEAATHRS (E)
The fair values of the share options granted during the year ended AEE R NFE=H =+ —H R4
31st March, 2008 were calculated using the Binomial option pricing BEYZ W 2 B REAE 2 AT T 8- A —IH
model. The inputs into the model were as follows: AR ER A o s 2 A
HEWR
Date of grant 2 H 27th July, 2007
R
tH=+tH
Closing share price at P2t H R Ui T HKS$0.63
the date of grant HEM50.635C
Initial exercise price (before WIAEAT AR A HEAT LI B HKS$0.67
adjustment of Rights Issue Jie A i 4H A R i) HEH0.67C0
and Capital Reorganisation)
Expected life of options TEFT B IRE AR 1 to 2 years
— R AR
Expected volatility TEFH 59.03%
59.03)H
Expected dividend yield TR E = Nil
Risk free rate i i A1) 4.28%
4.28)8
Fair value per option (before A B I HE (L HK$0.2206 &
adjustment of Rights Issue CIAEEAT AL I B e A HK$0.2588
and Capital Reorganisation) oA AR W5 1:0.2206 7T &
#:10.2588 7T
The total estimated fair value of the options granted was T2 s W RO RE A A S (B AR > IR
approximately HK$15,269,000 at the date of grant. th H 4% 15,269,000 7T
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility TE T T B A A R A A A A
of the Company’s share price over five years. The expected life AEZ B EIER S o s R 2
used in the model has been estimated, based on management’s best T T AR 95 5 2 i 48 2 fiE AN ] i o
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions P~ A7 RR il B A AR 1B 2 B Al
and behavioral considerations. it o
As the fair value of the services to be performed by other eligible H 7 oA 5 s 2 B AR AR B RS 1Y
participants cannot be estimated reliably because it is not possible O PAE A A ] e w4 0 G A
to measure the fair value of the total remuneration package, the fair B2 N FEIARER] SEAARE - A B
value of such services is also measured with reference to the fair TS0 B IR AR 225 152 1 1) 0 P )
value of share options granted using the Binomial option pricing ONSPAE I BR A 3 SO RE e R R
model. "o
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38.

39.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$5,547,000 for the
year (2008: HK$8,342,000) in relation to the share options granted
by the Company, of which HK$1,465,000 (2008: HK$2,498,000)
was related to options granted to the Group’s employees which has
been included in staff costs as set out in note 12, and the remaining
balance of HK$4,082,000 (2008: HK$5,844,000) was related to
options granted to directors which has been included in directors’
emoluments as set out in note 13(a).

The Binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options are based on
management’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the convertible note payables and borrowings disclosed in notes 33
and 35 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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38.

39.

IBe B KAtk 2 B (7

AR AREE D AN TR 2
JIE M e 5 7 5 5,547,000 78 ( FEE N\
4F 0 HEHE8,342,00070) 2 B S ARER - 9l
B EE 12 BT 4 > H s ¥ 1,465,000 70
(BTN - #552,498,0007C ) T 5
FPA B THAZ ZTAEEER 218
JEHEAT B > T sl A0 B 5T 13(a) BT >
TRAS B 14,082,000 70 (- J\AE ¢
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. 4S@WITH
(a)  Categories of financial instruments (a) &M THASE
2009 2008
“EFNAE RN
HK$°000 HK$°000
#W T T T
Financial assets ALy A
Available-for-sale investments A i iH 4 37,892 94,570
Fair value through profit or loss &/ F-{E S HRI 7T A48 #7
Investments held-for-trading FHEHERE 176,552 11,001
Equity-linked notes JREAS 5 T A - 956
Derivatives embedded in AT AR R A 2
convertible bonds fiid LA - 4,865
Loans and receivables (including 3K S BB IE (6245 5 4 1%
cash and cash equivalents) BaSEEE ) 1,995,950 2,202,185
Financial liabilities L f
Amortised cost HHEBH LA 1,503,432 1,449,570
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SRR B H R SR
The Group’s major financial instruments include equity and A SR I = 2 4 i TR AL A A
debt investments, debtors, other loan receivables, amounts B 808  BEMORSK - Hpth
due from associates, unsecured loans and interest due from T B R AR S
associates/related companies, pledged bank deposits, bank - R T B
balances and cash, creditors, convertible note payables, Z AR B SAN S, ~ E AR
obligations under finance leases, amounts due to minority SRATAF K > SRATHNBR B4
shareholders of subsidiaries and bank borrowings. Details of JE PR~ T 4 P R A5
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. H -~ REALERYG - AT
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the 23 F) 2 OB R IR K SRAT
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. 8 o BoAF R TR Z R R AR

R B RE P B o BLULSF SRl TR
R IR 22 e P gt B AL 4 J e

Z ORI T3

Market risk 11755 I B

(i) Currency risk ) B R
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign AR T MY & 2~ F A
currency bank balances, which expose the Group DA AP s M 2 SR AT 46
to foreign currency risk. Management has closely Bk WA S WEUR B 50
monitored foreign exchange exposure and will TEmB - B HE O R
undertake procedures should necessary to mitigate BRI SRR - 3 AL
the currency risk. e L IRE PR IUD BR DA IR

LA R

121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 3 U 265 A P

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009)

(BREZZFIFE=ZH=Z1—HIEFE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 s 25 45 |5

40.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 40. EBTH )
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)  HWAESEBEE P AR R BOR (4)
(Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d) 55 B (4
@) Currency risk (Cont’d) (1) B (4
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign A B2 i $k i BB RASR
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary WolEz B EE &
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: WA B HRIEEL T
Assets Liabilities
03 fifit
2009 2008 2009 2008
“ERE CFTNE ZFRUE CTTNE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T BHTT W T BT T
USD ESn 26,226 31,975 - -
The functional currency of the respective group FAL R RE &

(i)

entities is Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s exposure
to the currency risk of USD is limited because Hong
Kong dollars are pegged to USD.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to loan to a joint venture, unsecured
loans from associates, debt portion of convertible
bonds, fixed-rate other loan receivables, fixed-rate
bank deposits, convertible note payables and bank
borrowings as set out in notes 20, 21, 23, 25, 30, 33
and 35 respectively.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate other loan receivables,
unsecured loans due from related companies and
bank borrowings as set out in notes 25, 29 and 35
respectively.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate and HIBOR.
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40.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 40. EBTH ()
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) WA P E AR R BOR (4)

(Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) 55 JE B (4

(ii)  Interest rate risk (Cont’d) (ii) 2R RS ()
Sensitivity analysis B SE ST
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined DA SRR 43 A T AR
based on the exposure to interest rates for non- FEfT A il T B 508
derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For H 22 1) 3 Ja g 2y ik Y T
variable-rate other loan receivables, unsecured loans o BEVE S H A RE UL
from related companies and bank borrowings, the LK~ B ] S A
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of asset R BBATREEM S
and liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was i 5% TEL 3 AT IRE R R
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point EHAZREREEE K
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest BRI 2 N R E
rate risk internally to key management personnel A o 1A ) (A BT B G A R
and represents management’s assessment of the N B B B A B
reasonably possible change in interest rates. SREA ) ] GEIE ) & BRAN

wEIRF £ 100 2 26 ) 14
s

If interest rates had been 100 basis point higher/ gl =R =T+, R 100
lower and all other variables were held constant, the BB o MBI A A
Group’s loss for the year ended 31st March, 2009 HAERE A > HIAREE
would decrease/increase by HK$1,221,000 (2008: Bh iR E - BEINAE
HK$1,325,000). This is mainly attributable to the “H=+—HLFE
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate s 18t D8 s
other loan receivables and bank borrowings. #1,221,000 T ( —FF

JUAE i 1,325,000
Jo) o WJTEFE Ml R A

SR 77 S A g B
S SRAT i 6 T Y A
SRR 2L o
(iii)  Other price risk (i) FABE RS R
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising A4 (4] T 35 R AT AL
from available-for-sale investments, derivatives B R AR A
embedded in convertible bonds and investments 2R TR R EEE
held-for-trading. Management manages this & E A 2 A ME
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments & R o BB A A A
with different risks. The Group’s equity price risk 5 B [ B A 1 2 4%
is mainly concentrated on listed equity investments B A MR o
quoted on the Stock Exchange. In addition, the Group AR ) 2 SR A B AR R
has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk 2 B v W 38 BT
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should B2 EHRARE - it
the need arise. oh o REBEAL— 0
Tl 7 2L B A A T B T2
i b B2 T 5% 75 i 3 e JEL
Fgr o
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40.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 40. EBTH )
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)  HWAESEBEE P AR R BOR (4)
(Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d) 55 B (4
(iii)  Other price risk (Cont’d) (i) FHABERS RS (A)
Sensitivity analysis B SE 7T
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined DL BURR B 4 A T AR
based on the exposure to equity price risks at et B 0 A 4
the reporting date. The exposure of the Group to (g hrea N TS
other price risk from the derivatives embedded in H A] 46 B AR 5 I A 2 AT
convertible bonds (note 23) is limited because the AT H (ME5E23) 2 Hith
amount at the balance sheet date is insignificant. fERE b A R > TR 2
& B 2 BN
JLIE o
If the prices of the respective equity instruments had il AF B B AR T2 2 (B %
been 10% higher/lower: T FRE10% ¢
. loss for the year ended 31st March, 2009 0 IR FFEE HiX
would decrease/increase by HK$14,742,000 BN
(2008: HK$2,008,000) as a result of the HE _EEILLE
changes in fair value of investments held-for- “H=1+—HI1E
trading; A E I s 18
WL K s
14,742,000 7T ( —
E= VI
2,008,0007T) 5
. available-for-sale investment reserve would . HRABE —F%
increase by HK$3,789,000/loss would hWE=ZHA=+—
increase by HK$3,789,000 for further H 1k 47 2 m] At
impairment as a result of the changes in fair ERE N TEHS
value of available-for-sale investments for B A — 5
the year ended 31st March, 2009; and WAE > AL B ]
N
5 O B s
3,789,000 7T/ 5
181 38 s
3,789,0007T 5 M
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40.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 40. SBITH )
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) WA P E AR R BOR (4)

(Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) 55 JE B (4
(iii)  Other price risk (Cont’d) (i) FHABERS R (A7)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d) TR PES T (7))

. available-for-sale investment reserve would . B R —EE
increase/decrease by HK$9,457,000 as a NE=ZHA=+—
result of charges in fair value of available- H 1k 47 B m] At
for-sale investments for the year ended 31st EH/EANTFE
March, 2008. SEE) > kB

e & Tk I 1

b i

9,457,0007T °
Credit risk vl

As at 31st March, 2009 and 2008, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet and financial guarantees provided
by the Group (note 45).

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical

locations is mainly in PRC, which accounted for 95% (2008:
75%) of the total debtors as at 31st March, 2009.
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40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk, other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with high
credit ratings, and the unsecured loans and interests due from
associates as set in note 21, the debt portion of convertible
bonds and derivatives embedded in convertible bonds as set
out in note 23, deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries as
set out in note 43, other loan receivables as set out in note 25,
debtors as disclosed above, refundable earnest money as set
out in note 28(a) and unsecured loans and interest due from
related companies as set out in note 29.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31st March, 2009, the Group has
available unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$15,892,000 (2008: HK$239,556,000), details of which
are set out in note 35.
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40.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 40. SBITH )
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) WA P E AR R BOR (4)
(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) B ()
The following table details the Group’s remaining 2R A AR ] 2 A Al AR
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non- THEKBNIAE o B IETAE 4R
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up AEMNE - FRITREALEER
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities JERRE BE H 2 &RA
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required BERIGBIE SR EEL - TR
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash CEREAE RGBS -
flows.
Liquidity and interest risk tables B & A KR R JE b R
Carrying
Weighted Total amount
average undiscounted at
effective 3 months cash 31.3.2009
interestrate  Less than to 1 year 15 flows REZFNA

MEESH  3months  ZMAZE vears  ARiBSAE =H=4-H
HHAR  PREMA —AE —gRAE REREE ZRM
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EWTL W wWTe  EWTL #WTx

2009 i 2 93

Non-derivative financial liabilities  FERTA: 2k A 1%

Creditors TERTHESR - 43462 - - 43462 43462
Amount due to minority shareholders i} /A 7]

of subsidiaries DY - 395 - - 395 395
Obligations under finance leases i & fH B4 9.15 30 90 kol 4“7 mn
Bank borrowings BATRE

~ fixed rate -E8 545 465 21,243 14,158 35866 34,129
- variable rate -#8 33 5,748 57,927 27,467 91,142 89,359
Convertible note payables HT IR SR 0.62 9,060 - 1551802 1560862 1,336,087

59,160 79,260 1,593,754 1,732,174 1,503,804
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40.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 40. SBITH )
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)  WAEEFEE P E AR RBOR (4)
(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) B G A ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Cont’d) TS A N R R R (A
Carrying
Weighted Total amount
average undiscounted at
effective 3 months cash 31.3.2008
interest rate Less than to | year 1-5 flows B-FENE
tET 3months  =fAHZE yeas  RREHBE ZH=1—H
EWRflE  SR=EA —  —FERE  REEE  JREE
% HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS’000
BT Wt T Wt BBTrx
2008 “FE\E
Non-derivative financial liabilities  FEA7 4 4 f 14
Creditors R iRk - 51,194 - - 51,194 51,194
Amount due to minority shareholders i} A 7
of subsidiaries SYBARAR - 890 - - 890 890
Obligations under finance leases Al &l E7RA% 9.15 17 51 21 269 i)
Bank borrowings BATRE
— fixed rate —ER 720 598 34,007 - 34,605 33,259
~ variable rate -8 4.05 6,065 71311 2,112 125,488 120,384
Convertible note payables R R 0.62 9,171 - 1560862 1570033 1243843
67,935 111,369 1,603,175 1,782,479 1,449,792
(¢)  Fair value © ATE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are S RVE E R AR E 2 A TE

J5LAT 577 g

PEAT IR R L
T 1 BV B T 5 h
ZEREEReMAH
(REFEMRETR) ZA
SR TS 43 Al 275 i 85

determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial L
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) with
standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively;

pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as input. For an option-based
derivative, the fair value is estimated using option
pricing model (for example, the Binomial option
pricing model and the Black-Scholes option pricing
model).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair

values.
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and JT R i % AT
EE 5 &

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial o S Ath 4 T T A LA

liabilities (including derivative instruments) are B (EEGETR) 28

determined in accordance with generally accepted SR T3 4% DA 4 U =

B W Iy B Ve 2 N R E
R A BR A T B B
AT 855 by 2 A A
AR R o 3 AR e
Ty e iR TR
B o NFETI R HE
S R R (o o — I X
1) e RS K KA
e — &F 0 i S A
) hwtf

EHRM > AR MBWER NPT
B 45 P 7 % < B4 LA R
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ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF  41.  ZRBON B E 2 ) i ok % 2
SUBSIDIARIES
During the year, the Group completed two acquisitions, being the SEIN > A [ 5E B E T (B =% %
acquisition on 2nd September, 2008 (“1st Acquisition”) and the JVAEJUA B 2 Wik (155 — TE i )
acquisition on 16th December, 2008 (“2nd Acquisition). Both K = EBENAE+ N H 2 W
acquisitions have been accounted for as acquisition of assets and (T35 AU 1)) o B A T B A B g
liabilities as the subsidiaries acquired do not constitute businesses. ) Sl A AR FRCES o S T A B 4 A i
W M B RIIIR o
st 2nd
Acquisition Acquisition
(note a) (note b)
BB B OB Total
(Bfita) (Bf#tb) st
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T o0 T o0 T
The assets and liabilities acquired JIT IS N o B £
are as follows: I
Properties held for sale HEYE 97,743 209,088 306,831
Deposits and expenses paid for W R Y
acquisition of properties held EYDE
for sale &35 20,477 12,077 32,554
Debtors JESCIR K 73 290 363
Creditors, deposits and JEATHEER ~ Hede I
accrued charges FEFTEA (936) (278) (1,214)
Amount advanced by the Group 2R AR [ A 5 — TE IS S R
before 1st Acquisition A2 FRIA (58,599) = (58,599)
Loan advanced by the Group AL B A B — TR A i
before 2nd Acquisition BAFZ B = (20,340) (20,340)
Amount due to a shareholder JE A HE B R TE (58,758) (199,006) (257,764)
- 1,831 1,831
Loan receivable by the Group TSR - TE W BE IR AT 4 8
set-off on 2nd Acquisition 2 AR [ RE I B = 20,340 20,340
Assignment of amount due to TS AT i ORI
a shareholder - 199,006 199,006
Net assets acquired and cash I AV M e
consideration - 221,177 221,177
Total consideration satisfied by: HRAE LT 505 XA
Cash B4 - 200,837 200,837
Loan receivable by the Group TSR — TR I RS R S 8
set-off on 2nd Acquisition AR R R = 20,340 20,340
- 221,177 221,177
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: it i A 3 4 V7 HH 1 48
Cash consideration paid BT Ea A UE = 199,006 199,006
Expense incurred for the acquisition W A B = 1,831 1,831
- 200,837 200,837

129




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 5 R M

(for the year ended 31st March, 2009) (#E _“FENE=H=1—HIL4FEJE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 s 25 45 |5

41.

42.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
Notes:

(a) On 2nd September, 2008, the Group acquired the remaining 50%
equity interest in Keen Step, which was previously formed between,
and owned equally by, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and an independent third party in May 2008 for the purpose of
the acquisition and holding of properties and was accounted for
as a jointly controlled entity of the Group (note 20) using equity
accounting prior to the 1st Acquisition, at a consideration of HK$1.

(b) On 16th December, 2008, the Group acquired the entire issued
capital of Pine Cheer Limited (“Pine Cheer”) for a consideration of
approximately HK$199,006,000 and incurred transaction costs of
HK$1,831,000.

The subsidiaries acquired contributed HK$810,000 to the Group’s
revenue and had a loss of HK$92,391,000 included in the Group’s
loss for the period from the date of acquisition to 31st March, 2009.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As detailed to in note 11, the Group discontinued its businesses of
manufacturing and trading of medicine and health products and
trading of motorcycles through disposal of its subsidiaries, the TFH
Group and the King-Tech Group on 31st July, 2007 and 31st March,
2008, respectively.

In addition, the Group entered into several conditional agreements
on 28th November, 2007, to dispose of its entire 65%, 64.83% and
65% interest in Panyu Golf, Guangzhou Wei Di Si Golf Property
Company Limited (“Wei Di Si”’) and Guangzhou Lian Chui Property
Management Company Limited (“Lian Chui”), respectively, which
are engaged in development and operation of golf resort and hotel in
the PRC to the acquirer. The disposal was completed on 6th March,
2008, on which date the control of these subsidiaries was passed to
the acquirer.
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) B — & S = O R BT AR
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JiF ) P 25 ﬁ%ﬂﬁ$$@2
L[] 42 ) B (BfFRE20)

(b) MoEENELHANE A
5] LA AR AE 49 7 #5 199,006,000 G 1
AJERABRA A (T B ) ZFE
BATICA > 3 A AL S A
1,831,0007T °

WA 2 I ) o A 4R [ A B R s
#5810,000 7T > i JE5 48 5 % 92,391,000
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FXELELA=ZT—HE-FETNE

=H =10 FE L E A A

FWOTALAE T S ShHE4E | > AR IR H s
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42.  DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 42. WEWEAF )
The aggregate net assets of the disposed subsidiaries at the dates of RENERHE R EMEARZFE
disposals were as follows: FEREEINT -
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
RERE  ERERE Total
X X Bt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T o0 T
Net assets disposed of: Bl EE
Property, plant and equipment LYIE- Y Y 111,501 31,016 142,517
Prepaid lease payments of FHE L HhFEA T
leasehold land LiEN=¢eL| 52,947 1,405 54,352
Intangible assets SIS = 430 430
Other loan receivables oAt U Bk = 30,314 30,314
Inventories ety 68 96,153 96,221
Properties under development R Y 14,571 = 14,571
Amount due from immediate JRE WA L B
holding company NGIE 0L = 1,138 1,138
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEUSBR K ~ 54 J FEA 3 E 5,534 39,834 45,368
Financial assets at fair value through YO AESNRR M st A
profit or loss 1R85 2 Sl = 2,500 2,500
Tax recoverable AT YA [ 5 I - 2,045 2,045
Bank balances and cash SATHE R Bl 3,862 81,629 85,491
Creditors, deposits and accrued charges  JEATHEIR ~ %4
R (6,389) (128,765) (135,154)
Dividend payable to a minority NG ¢
shareholder of a subsidiary JBEHR 2 S (2,665) = (2,665)
Amounts due to minority shareholders JREAST o B N ) 2
of subsidiaries JB SRR IE (521) — (521)
Unsecured loan from a minority ik g ]2 e B
shareholder of a subsidiary ARG Bk (14,115) (980) (15,095)
Unsecured loan from a related party EEN NG IR S (621) = (621)
Obligations under finance leases S B RS = (12) (12)
Bank borrowings HATIEE (17,573) (25,457) (43,030)
Tax payable JREAS i I = (270) (270)
Deferred tax liabilities AR SE T TE £ 1 (14,316) - (14,316)
132,283 130,980 263,263
Minority interests DB R 55 (43,471) (504) (43,975)
Translation reserve released R 52 1 F HE fit o (17,671) (3,801) (21,472)
Revaluation reserve released A R AR B (991) — (991)
70,150 126,675 196,825
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries H B [ N\ 2 R (19,073) (18,571) (37,644)
Total consideration A G 51,077 108,104 159,181
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42.  DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 2. WHEWBAYE)

Continuing Discontinued

operations operations
FERE  JRERER Total
e 2 XB A5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

T T oo T oo

Satisfied by: AR 23
Cash 4 22,173 20,000 42,173
Amount due from JRE M 5 B 2
the disposed subsidiary FIH (A
included in debtors, deposits MRaX ~ Wa K
and prepayments FfTHIEAR) 14,669 = 14,669
Other loan receivables HAth I Bk = 90,000 90,000
Interest in a joint venture (note 20) R—HEEAFZ
tesi (Wf7t20) 14,745 - 14,745
Expense paid for the disposal of B M A F
subsidiaries EAFX (510) (1,896) (2,406)
51,077 108,104 159,181
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEREEE 2 TSR -
Cash consideration BHeNE 22,173 20,000 42,173
Bank balances and cash disposed of CERATAE M RS (14,448) (81,629) (96,077)
Expense paid for the disposal of 5 B 2 )
subsidiaries EABIX (510) (1,896) (2,406)
7,215 (63,525) (56,310)
The impacts of the disposed subsidiaries of discontinued operation W B R R A T 2 (Y@ N AR
on the Group’s results and cash flows in the current and prior periods £ H AT SR A A T 2 2E 47 e Bl 4
are disclosed in note 11. T 2 R B EE 11 PR B R o
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43. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 43. B RIAbARE
2009 2008
“ BN “EENF
HK$°000 HK$°000
#W T BT
Capital expenditure contracted for but  FELA N4 H 2 B 5T AH K7
not provided in the consolidated AR A ISR R B G 2 EARB S ¢
financial statements in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant — W E Y - B A
and equipment 27,807 31,292
Other commitments: HAt &Y -
— acquisition of subsidiaries (Note) — SR T S5 2 ) () 210,400 -
— acquisition of a land use right — A s = b fE A (2 24)
(note 24) 5,000 5,000
—loan to an associate (note 21) — o] — [ B A F R I
(Wfit21) 15,000 15,000
— loan to a joint venture — o] — & & A AR IR 15,880 -
246,280 20,000
274,087 51,292
Note:  On 30th December, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company entered HaE: RZFFENFEFZH=Z1+H &
into a conditional agreement with Vincent Asset Holdings Limited 25 ] — [ B A ) B Sr 28 =
(“Vincent Asset”), an independent third party to acquire 100% equity J7 Vincent Asset Holdings Limited
interest in Charm Noble Group Limited (“Charm Noble”), Favor (T Vincent Asset J) #1372 A 16 14 Ih
Gain Group Limited (“Favor Gain”) and Adventura International & o R AARE S 15 10,000,000 7T
Limited (“Adventura”), for a consideration of an aggregate MR EEMARAR ([XE]) -
amount of HK$10 million and face value of the entire amount of IR B AR AR (T H ) &
the shareholder’s loans owed by Charm Noble, Favor Gain and Adventura International Limited
Adventura to Vincent Asset on the completion date of the acquisition (I Adventura |) = FBICHE > LA KRN
on a dollar-to-dollar basis. As of 31st March, 2009, deposits and WESE R H W358~ 144#% Iz Adventura
expenses amounted to HK$47,244,000 had been paid by the Group. % K Vincent Asset Z 4= 78 i 5 £
The Group has concentration of credit risk as the whole balance was K ESEH o R ZFFILE=J
due from an independent third party. The aforesaid acquisition was St —H o AEECT LA
completed in June 2009. Details of the acquisition were set out in a 47,244,000 76 2 #& 4x KB o
circular of the Company dated 18th February, 2009. Fi A & BRI B — WL =T

Tl A 45 (30 T 2 4R P E SRR - bk
WeHEEL A —FZ AN H B > 1K
[ EER T iy NN I = B o= =
FEHNHZ K -
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4.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 44.  BRRERIG
The Group as lessee AEEE Ry ARAHN
2009 2008
“RFNAE ZRTINEE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#®WTT T o0
Property rentals paid by the Group AL AR N LA R 45 JH A
during the year in respect of: W ERA A
Minimum lease payments 4 14,222 13,662
Contingent rents B SRFH 4 - 3,167
14,222 16,829

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

TREETH > AR BB W] 1 5
T ZH T B4R 1 300 2 R AR R
BATHORIEMT

2009 2008

ZEZIE BT\

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T o0

Within one year —A4E A 13,731 2,474
In the second to fifth year inclusive B FEHAE (EEE ERMAE) 15,020 1,524
Over five years AR TAE 11,404 10,302
40,155 14,300

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises and golf course. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of three years and rentals are either fixed or, in
addition to the fixed rentals, determined based on a fixed percentage
of the monthly gross turnover of the outlets, for an average term of
three years.

The Group as lessor

The property rental income earned during the year was
HK$7,850,000 (2008: HK$3,270,000). The properties which are
leased out as at 31st March, 2009 have rental yield of approximately
4% and with committed tenants with the longest tenure within 2 years
from the balance sheet date.
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44.  OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Cont’d) 4. BERERE )

The Group as lessor (Cont’d) AAEE A AN (4F)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for REEEH o REB NI R AR

the following future minimum lease payments: THEATRE S 54 -

2009 2008
“ BN “EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T BT
Within one year — AR 6,821 805
In the second to fifth year inclusive R AR (B E EWAE) 7,063 -
13,884 805
45.  PLEDGE OF ASSETS 45.  AEHG
At 31st March, 2009, the Group’s bank borrowings and credit MoFEZNFE=ZH=Z1—H > AEH
facilities from financial institutions were secured by the following: ZARAT 18 B B bl A TS A A 2 A5
il T 51 E AR

(a)  bank deposits of HK$44,626,000 (2008: HK$41,268,000); (@)  SRATAF 3K ¥ 44,626,000 0T (—
T F N i I 41,268,000

JG)

(b) legal charges over the Group’s properties held for (b) A E E R E S B
sale with a carrying value of HK$223,476,000 (2008: 223,476,0007C ( —FEZF /)4 : i
HK$231,818,000); #231,818,00070) Z 51 &)

S VEEARAT

(c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of (c) N FE SN IR FF AR 45 2 4

HK$1,116,000 (2008: HK$1,756,000). il 7 HE M 1,116,0007C (— &%

JVAE © #E%1,756,0000T) ©

In addition, at 31st March, 2008, the Group had bank deposits of BeAHN > R EENFE=ZH=1—H >
approximately of HK$10,550,000 pledged to banks in respect of AL [ #) 5 5 1510,550,000 7T 2 SR AT A
banking facilities granted to third parties. O TR1T - (ERBITIRTHE=
T7 A PR o
46.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 46.  RHRTH

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits AR LA G R B HEATARTEICE R
scheme which is registered under the Occupational Retirement PR I 5 e 481 ook 36 2R R R 1 5t
Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for eligible employees. # 1) FE A AL OR A A
The assets of the scheme are separately held in funds under the Wt B 2 B T 2 Rt NE L
control of trustees. IrBRTEA -

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement represents TiFERERTIGRZ BN » TiEA
contributions paid or payable to the fund by the Group at rates B8 B He % w2 T R W R P 3R )
specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there are employees e ARE N e R (] - = Ry
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the BT AL FRETR L o BRIk
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of AEFR] F DA AR A B B A 2 Ak o

forfeited contributions.
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46.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had no significant forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the retirement
benefits scheme and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in future years.

With effect from 1st December, 2000, the Group has also joined
the MPF Scheme for employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. The contributions to the MPF Scheme charged to the
consolidated income statement represent contributions paid or
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits schemes are to make the required contributions
under the schemes.

The total cost charged to consolidated income statement of

HK$2,094,000 (2008: HK$2,126,000) represents contributions paid
or payable to the schemes by the Group during the year.
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47. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. AR A L BN L3R5 K ek ik
AND BALANCES
Related party transactions FHEALRS
(a) During the year, the Group had the following transactions (@) A AR G B B+

with related parties:

EATLLT RS

2009 2008
ZEFEMAE e =92
HK$°000 HK$°000
Related parties Note Nature of transactions BT HEMT T
B A A Jipa ROHR
Associates:
W&
Orient Town Limited Interest income 14,417 51,618
EFARAF FEMA
Concordia Management fee paid 152 910
e AT T2
Orient Town Project Management fee received 120 250
Management Limited S E
FGUH HE A RA R
Other related companies:
A FHEL A -
Great Intelligence Holdings (i) Rental expenses and
Limited management fee paid 2,917 -
(“Great Intelligence™) FH A B S % B A5 HE 2
Wing On Interest income 3,660 4,677
P73 FEMA
Note: MtEE -
(1) Mr. Chan Fut Yan, an executive director of the Company is () AN F AT R R R

also a director of Great Intelligence.

Details of the outstanding balances with related parties are set

out in the consolidated balance sheet and in notes 21, 22, 23

A= IR £ Great Intelligence £
#H o

SLA BRI 2 1 R R A R
w1 O A AR Y

and 29. 512122 23%29 -
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEAE A B R

The remuneration of directors during the year was as follows: SENERZ BT
2009 2008
ZERMAE TEREBNAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T S T
Short-term benefits 0 HAAE A 13,745 19,010
Post-employment benefits Bl A2 18 A 395 358
Share-based payments AT 2045 3k 4,082 5,844
18,222 25,212
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47.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (Cont’d)

Related party transactions (Cont’d)

Compensation of key management personnel (Cont’d)

The remuneration of directors is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

(b)

Connected party transactions

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, Donson
(International) Development Limited (“Donson™), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into several agreements in relation to:

(a)

®

(ii)

disposal by Donson of its entire interest in Panyu
Golf, Wei Di Si and Lian Chui to J& JH 7 & &
B o0 E A BR A A (< B W 9 ), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, which
is an investment holding company controlled by
the Panyu Municipal Government, the PRC, for an
aggregate cash consideration of RMB20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$22.8 million) as set
out in note 42;

the co-operation between Panyu Golf and Donson
in the Development Project in which the Group
will have the right to share 65% of its residual
value. Under the terms of the Development Project
Agreement, the Group will provide a loan of RMB40
million (equivalent to approximately HK$45.5
million) to Panyu Golf for use in the Development
Project as set out in note 20; and
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([ 3R ) 58 R HHIEFT L2 TE
Th ik

) FOR DA G AL B S AE A
B 20,000,000 JC ( #H
2 i A 7 HE 22,800,000
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TRk ~ freati iy J o R
2 AT g T RN T
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Al o GG HEOR i EE42
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47. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. B AL RB W A+ 55 5 %4 &%

AND BALANCES (Cont’d) (4)
Connected party transactions (Cont’d) Bl A L2 5 ()
(@  (Cont'd) (@  (H
(iii)  the lease of Guangzhou Lotus Hill Golf Resort (i) A< i A N T
(“Lease Agreement”) which comprises golf course BRI 4 A FRA )
and golf clubhouse within Panyu, Guangzhou, (I SRR 5 48 20 ) B
Guangdong Province, the PRC to Guangzhou 33 v B B R N T
Donson Hotel Management Limited (“Donson Hotel FE AR W R R
Management”)_, a subsidiary of the Company, for B T R BR & BT 2 &
three years commencing from the date of the Lease P AE L = R BR R
Agreement entered into between Donson Hotel TSR] - W
Management as lessee and Panyu Golf as lessor TR 5 I (FE Ay R
for the lease of the Guangzhou Lotus Hill Golf FHON) B2 B =i 7 % Bk
Resort on 16th April, 2008 at an annual rental of (FE B AN ) s AL 5 R
RMBS5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$5.7 M 3 A6 1 =R Bk E
million) renewable at the option of Donson Hotel BAEFEER -FEN
Management at successive terms of 3 years up to 20 AN HREALZ
years. LB o ok H R 2% 31
2 EHEA AR
5,000,000 7C (A % & %7
# % 5,700,0007T) - K
A T A R R Y
ARG AR
= By e
By virtue of the fact that #& & 15 7k is controlled by the H A 7 3 foh a2 2 R T R 4
Panyu Municipal Government and J& 1 7 75 B fig Vi 4 7] il T T A R iR i AR
(“F& B JikIF), a company established in the PRC which is a (12 H il 1) )5 — [ TR i
substantial shareholder of Panyu Golf, Wei Di Si and Lian N YA/ MR =2 =
Chui, is also controlled by the Panyu Municipal Government, FBR (T ROE AR B
T B 1ih 3 and 7 By filkliFare therefore connected persons of W IR A BT BUMRE R - i
the Company. Further details of the transactions are set out in T B W o I T R R U 48 B AR
the announcement dated 7th December, 2007. The disposal 2B AL o g 2 GG
was completed on 6th March, 2008. WH A = ERLET+ AL
HZ A o MEFEER %
TNEZHANHER o
During the year ended 31st March, 2009, lease rental of BE_EZFZNE=H=1+—H
HK$4,837,000 was paid to Panyu Golf. The rentals were 1E4F B > Fl 4 W5 04,837,000 7
charged in accordance with the Lease Agreement. B THEERRE IR - e

TR B ke 5 o
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47. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. B AL RB A 1555 %4 #%

AND BALANCES (Cont’d) (#%)

Connected party transactions (Cont’d) BN L35 (3E)

(b)  During the year ended 31st March, 2009, subsidiaries of the (b) BWE_EZNFE=H=1T—H
Company entered into tenancy agreements with a subsidiary IEAERE > AR\ ) B e 2 ] B AR
of a substantial shareholder of the Company and a minority S ) B R B N
shareholder of subsidiaries. The rental expense paid to the J& s\ 22 0 R R E] S B
subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company and k- HE _FFNE=H
minority shareholders of subsidiaries were HK$3,721,000 =T —HILEE > mAAEE
(2008: Nil) and HK$247,000 (2008: HK$231,000), BB 2 WA T 2 =) % K 4
respectively for the year ended 31st March, 2009. The 2D WU S AN 2 AH 45 BA 303
rentals were charged in accordance with the relevant tenancy Al 2 W 53,721,00000 (—FF )\
agreements. 4 E) K 247,00000 (—F

TN - #¥231,0007C) o FH
B TR B W ket

(©) During the year ended 31st March, 2008, Kopola Investment (©) WE_FENE=ZH=1—H
Company Limited (“Kopola”) had converted HK$50 million 1k 4 £ A > Kopola Investment
of the convertible note due 2010 issued by the Company into Company Limited ([ Kopola ]) E.
113,636,363 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share AR 23 F T EEA T 150,000,000
capital of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.44 JCZ ] i EE R
per share. Each of Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman (a former A 1% i 15 A s W0 0.44 T L4 £
non-executive director of the Company who retired on 113,636,363 & 7 2 7] LA R 45
12th September, 2007), and his brother, Mr. Ho Hau Hay, % T (B 75 %5 0.01 T 2 A % o
Hamilton owned 50% interest in Kopola, the conversion of RS (AR Z H IR T
the convertible notes constituted a connected transaction of HwH R EBELE LA+
the Company under the Listing Rules. HUIBATE) B St s ] S Se A 45

H #4 Kopola 50% 1 4 > 5.k
] R R A N AR L
TR Z B 5
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48.  BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 48.  ARKuEEAMR
The balance sheet of the Company at 31st March, 2009 is as follows: BNFAR _EFZNFZA=Z1T—HZ
HEABRWT

2009 2008
ZRBNAE e AN
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
iz T T
Assets B 3,883,915 3,186,076
Liabilities =K 1,373,451 1,279,538
2,510,464 1,906,538

Capital and reserves JBeAs K At
Share capital &N 4,709 30,955
Reserves Tt (a) 2,505,755 1,875,583
2,510,464 1,906,538
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48. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 48.  ARAFIEREARER A
Note: HtaE -
(a) Reserves (a) Al
Convertible Share-
Capital  loan notes based
redemption equity ~ payment  Warrant
Share Contributed reserve reserve reserve reserve  Retained

premium surplus Bk wWHBER RBAE SRR profits Total
Befviafl SRS RER RRBRG it Bl RBRER At
HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
T BRI ERTr BT ElTE T BT EhTx

(Note)
()

THE COMPANY AR
At31st March, 2007 REFRLEZA=ZT—H 1,066,055 - L4 355304 3,29 - 28938 1454717
Conversion of ST AR

convertible notes 268,001 - - (47,585) - - - 220,416
Issue of shares BT 163,000 - - - - - - 165,000
Expenses incurred in BB TR Z B

connection with issue

of shares (5,114) - - - - - - (5,114)
Recognition of equity-settled R4 EL 3

share-based payments - - - - 8,342 - - 8,342
Profit for the year KA EA - - - - - - Ky} 00
At31st March, 2008 REFRNEEAZT—H 149394 - L4 307,719 11,638 - 61,160 1,875,583
Profit for the year ARAE A = = - = = - 1,517 1,517
Rights issue with warrants  {IHCRE ] R I e 522,622 - - - - 34,571 - 557,193
Transfer upon lapse and TR R A e

forfeiture of share options - - - - (4418) - 1,083 (3,335)
Recognition of equity-settled  FERR IR /R45 Bt 1 3k

share-based payments - - - - 5,547 - - 5,547
Repurchase and cancellation M & E b

of shares (20,587) - 6,092 - - - (6,092)  (20,587)
Capital Reorganisation AR E AL (f3E37(e)(iv)

(note 37(e)(iv)) - 113,020 - - - - - 113,020
Expenses incurred in B2 B

connection with

rights issue (23,183) - - - - - - (23,183)

At 31st March, 2009 REFFNEZAZT—H 197279 113,020 7,216 307,719 12,767 34,57 57,668 2,505,755

Note:  The contributed surplus of the Company represents the Bt - AN A Z AR R IR IR R
credit arising from Capital Reduction pursuant to the “EENE=AT=HZ
Capital Reorganisation on 13th March, 2009. JBe A B A AE AT 2 W B A

M A 2 AR -
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49.  SUBSIDIARIES 49.  WBAA B B
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, ;E;‘&E iﬁ ?ﬁf@?@é—z FRAE=
2009 are as follows:

Place of Percentage of

incorporation Issued and issued share/

or registration/ fully paid share/ registered capital

operations registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary ALl A CHITRSR AN B LB Principal activities
WBAT 4 it/ R Bk /A Bk /AT A B3]

Directly Indirectly
i [H3

009 208 2009 2008
SRR CEBAE CREWE CEBAE

% % % %
Advance Tech Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Securities investment
PHEARAA Bk ordinary share #5HE
R UL
Castle Win International Hong Kong HKS! - - 100 100 Properties
Limited Fik ordinary share development
SHBRAR AT BT ER ES
Donson Hong Kong HK$85,297,692 - - 100 100 Investment holding
3l Bk ordinary shares R
85,097,692
T
Hayton Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Property investment
ERARAT i ordinary share bE 8%
R ULk
ITC Properties Management Hong Kong HK$2,000 - - 100 100 Securities investment
Limited ik ordinary shares and investment
EHNEERARAA 52,0007 holding
S RERSE R
HK$500,000 - - - -
non-voting
deferred shares
(note a)
iEHs00.0007
SRR
(Wizta)
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49.  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 49.  WEAE (A
Place of Percentage of
incorporation Issued and issued share/
or registration/ fully paid share/ registered capital
operations registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary Fi3 ]/ WA DEfT KA AR PR T BT Principal activities
WHB A i 4418 gkl /A WAk /MR AR ReAk /Mg A2 i S b FERH
Directly Indirectly
Hi% [1E
2009 2008 2009 2008
“ERWE CITVE CRRME CRTE
% % % %
Keen Step Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 - Property investment
i ik ordinary shares VB4
ki3l
Linktop Limited British Virgin US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
[slands ordinary share HEER
EREARE EZ AVl
Macau Prime (B.V.L) British Virgin US$50,000 100 100 - = Investment holding
Limited [slands ordinary shares HEER
EREAHE E2500007 E AR
Macau Prime Finance Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Money lending
Limited Eif ordinary shares v
BIHRMB AR ki3l
Macau Prime Property British Virgin USS1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited Islands ordinary share RGN
EREAHE EZ AV
Macau Prime Property British Virgin USS1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
(Macau) Limited Islands ordinary share R
EREAHE EZ AV
Master Super Development Hong Kong HKS$100 - - 100 100 Property investment
Limited Eif ordinary shares WERE
REREARAR HH 007 B
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49.  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 49.  WEAE (A

Place of Percentage of

incorporation Issued and issued share/

or registration/ fully paid share/ registered capital

operations registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary Fia7) A DEAT R AR PR T Principal activities
WoB A i 4418 gkl /A Wk /M EE A Rk /Mg A2 i 2 FERH

Directly Indirectly
Hik JEA

2009 2008 2009 2008
CEBE CTTAE CREAE CTTAR

% % % %
Million Orient Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
REARAR ik ordinary share HREHER
i ThEk
New Smarten Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
HUHHRAR Eif ordinary share RER
i ThEk
Oriental Mind Limited British Virgin US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
[slands ordinary share AR
EREARS EZ AV
Pine Cheer Hong Kong HKS$100 - - 100 - Property investment
i ik ordinary shares VB4
007 HER
Smarteam Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Property investment
FERARAT ik ordinary share VB4
i ThEk
South Step Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Property investment
ARERRAR ik ordinary share and development
i ThEk SIS YT
Teamate Limited British Virgin US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
[slands ordinary share AR
ERELRE EZ AVl
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49. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 49, KB A Wl (42)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation Issued and issued share/
or registration/ fully paid share/ registered capital
operations registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary Fi37/ YA DEfT KA AR PR T BT Principal activities
WHB A 2 gkl /A Rk /Mg A ReAk /Mg A2 i S b FERH
Directly Indirectly
Hi% &
2009 2008 2009 2008
“ERWE CITVE CRRME CRTUE
% % % %
Top Century International British Virgin US$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share BarE
EREARE FeIak
Well Cycle Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - - 100 100 Letting of motor
HEARAT Eif ordinary shares vehicles
i Ek Hfg
BUHE 3 B ETPR PRC RMB35,000,000 - = 80 80 Development and
X ARARAT (note b) AR #35,000,0007C operation of hotel
R (Afitn) and golf resort
HRRARTERER
AIRIRE R
=R AT R PRC HK$30,000,000 - = 96 96 Development and
A RAT (note b) 1130,000,0007C operation of hotel
" (Hfzto) 8 R EET
N T AR PRC HK$5,000,000 - = 100 100 Development and
HRAH (note b) 5,000,000 operation of hotel
" (Hfzto) 8 R EET
Notes: MIEE -
(a) The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, (a) S IE A £E [E A 2 e ZERE R GE A%
practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to 0y > BRI 4 R A RE ) T A R A
attend or vote at any general meeting of the respective companies nor BB A BN WA R R e
to participate in any distribution on winding up. A5 Bl R AR R R el i e e
AT B IR U AT /3K
(b) The subsidiaries were established in the PRC as a sino-foreign equity (b) LR N T A B ST B R AN

joint venture companies.
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49.  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 49.  WBAW 4)
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the IAES T B AR AR IR PR A > 4% B
balance sheet date or at any time during the year. Jii > ) AR AR AT o] 1 A R 2 AR AR
% o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the R E BRI AR A
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of FERERYEZANFMEAT - &
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion PR o wES HA K A B 2 E ke
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. A EEER TR ©
50. SEGMENT INFORMATION 50. SR
Business segments SR
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into five BTN F o A B BN 5 RS
operating divisions. These divisions are the basis on which the Group R o RZAE AR A AS SR R
reports its primary segment information. BBl BEYE o
Principal activities are as follows: FEEH R -
Property development —  development of property yEurE — YRR
Property investment ~ —  trading of properties YERE - YEEH
Golf and leisure — development and operation of EWRER N —  EERERERN &
golf resort and hotel TH A T 5 5 R
Securities investment ~ —  trading and investment of securities BHRRE - SHREEAME
Finance — loan financing services Fl —  HEHRENRE
The Group was also involved in trading of motorcycles and WA AL E NG R R E E
manufacturing and trading of medicine and health products REERERE M SR EE -
previously. These operations were discontinued in prior year as set A E 7 Anl NS i R o i )
out in note 11. FELD o
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50. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 50. SRR (4E)
Business segments (Cont’d) B ()
Segment information about these businesses is presented below. FEEB 2P EERI RS o T
Gross proceeds included in turnover as set out below comprise PR EEE A SR 2 TS AR AR
revenue from property development and investment, golf and KEYEFRENRTE - BRI
leisure operations, loan financing income, dividend income from Bl 2 s ~ Bl E A ~ F51E
investments held-for-trading and gross proceeds from disposal of BEREZREBWA L EREREE
investments held-for-trading. G2 TS R AAA o
2009 ZRFJUE
Golf and
Property  Property leisure ~ Securities Segment
development investment  FMAR investment  Finance total  Elimination Consolidated

WREE  BRRE XMW ERRK Ly i e W
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'OM  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKS000  HKS'000
EMTE RETL EWTX O RWMEX RTx EWTR O RMTX EETx

CONSOLIDATEDINCOME ~ &AH%%

STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE-Z2AL

31ST MARCH, 2009 SRET-HEA
TURNOVER BEH

- Gross proceeds ~ R R 706 25,045 44,058 53,540 2,172 145,121 - 145,121
REVENUE /e
External sales Hhh e 706 25,045 44,058 1,089 2,772 92,670 - 92,670
Tnter-segment sales (Nore) Iz M8 () 5 . = = 26,107 26,107 (26,107) =
Total el 706 25,045 44,058 1,089 41879 118,777 (26,107) 92,670
SEGMENT RESULTS VLS (08512)  (91,817) (5833)  (169,794) 20,338 (315,618) (315,618)
Unallocated corporate income A A 29955 29,955
Unallocated corporate expenses A/ A% (63,649) (63,649)
Finance costs W& (108,357) (108,357)
Share of result of Feff— B R

ajointly-controlled entity Bty (212) = = = = (212) (212)
Share of results of associates il - INTE % (4,404) = = = = (4404) (4404)
Loss before taxation C3it e (462,285) (462,285)
Taxation BH 469 469
Loss for the year KEEER (461,816) (461,816)
Note:  Inter-segment sales were charged at terms determined and agreed Bt - Gy b2 2 A T A I A A ]

between group companies. [ e [ e o
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50. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 50. A EER (A7)
Business segments (Cont’d) SR (A7)
Golf and
Property Property leisure Securities
development  investment WHEKR  investment Finance Consolidated

ES RS R s (34 i
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
MWW WWTx WMt WWTx EWTx

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ~ #A# iR %

AT 31ST MARCH, 2009 REZZNEEN=1—H
ASSETS (A
Segment assets IR 306,108 544,820 306,337 251,491 320,702 1,729,458
Interest in a joint venture i NP 44,759 = = = = 44,759
Interest in associates T A A 2 g 134,809 - - - = 134,809
Unsecured loans and TR 20 ] 2 AT

interest due from associates BB 1,073,982 - - - - 1,073,982
Unallocated corporate assets ROBDEGE 508,362
Consolidated total assets EABRME 3,581,370
LIABILITIES Al
Segment liabilities AR 1,202 5,045 41,071 820 2 48,158
Unallocated corporate liabilities InbihEaE 1,523,976
Consolidated total liabilities AAfELE 1,572,134
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50.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 50.  AEER A7)
Business segments (Cont’d) SR (A7)
Golf and
Property  Property leisure ~ Securities Segment
development investment  FMAR investment  Finance total - Unallocated Consolidated
PERR WERE RNE WY BE  ARE kAR )
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
L WML WWTIL WWTL WWTL WWT L WWTIL WWTI
(OTHER INFORMATION HibER
Depreciation of property, plant W%~ ks
and equipment 429 170 8,808 - - 9,497 2,010 11,507
Amortisation of prepaid lease FMHE T2
payments of leasehold land TGS - - 525 - - 525 = 525
Amortisation of premium on FMHE T2
prepaid lease payments of T O
leasehold land B - - 2736 - - 2736 = 2736
Loss on disposal of property, HEE - i
plant and equipment Rk fER = - n - - yi] 144 171
Alowance for bad and doubtful debts SRk f 56 4440 817 - - 5313 - 5313
Decrease in fair value of financial A TEFIR K
assets at fair value through ATARG S HEE
profit o loss NFEBED = = = 114477 = 114477 = 114477
Decrease in fair value of W ER NG 2
derivatives embedded in fitTH
convertible bonds NFEED = = = = = = I 3047
Capital additions B 2,553 4604 3979 - - 11,156 4,688 15,844
Equity-settled share-based IRCHERE SR 0 S A
payment expenses ZBX = - - - - = 5541 5541
Tmpairment loss on it e
available-for-sales investment R = = = 53,037 = = = 53,037
Impairment loss on property interests 4 &M &3 it (5 45 54,121 92,591 - - - 146,712 - 146,712
Loss on disposal of e E
available-for-sales investment BEER - - - 4,299 - - = 4,299
Dividend income on Wt ERE
available-for-sales investment FREA = = = 970 = = = 970
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50.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 50. ¥R (A
Business segments (Cont’d) SR (A7)
2008 ZET)\4E
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
bo e TR

Medicine

Property Golf and and health

develop-  Property leisure  Securities Segment Motor-  products

ment investment R AM investment  Finance total ~ Elimination Total  cycles  RER Total Consolidated
PEERE WERE MR RERE BE Bew HE 4 BHE BRER A &R
HKS'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000
BT EWTT N ERTr BN BETr BN BETx EWTn #Tr #Tr T

CONSOLIDATED INCOME EaE

STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED RE-ZI\E

31ST MARCH, 2008 ZHZA kA

TURNOVER BEH

- Gross proceeds — e 2500 79292 62,622 424641 31,789 600,844 - 600844 17567 115,741 133308 734,152
REVENUE e

External sales v 2500 79292 6622 5741 31789 181944 - 181944 17567 115741 133308 31525
Tnter-segment sales (Note) i YA iva: 3 - - - - B8 5842 (25842) - - - - -
Total ozt 2500 79292 62622 5741 57,631 207,786 (25,842) 181944 17567 115,741 133308 315,252
SEGMENT RESULTS RS (2,136) 27906  (56.461) 59,141 7469 35919 3919 (13%9) 1,747 388 36,307

Unallocated corporate income A/ A0A 39,018 39,018 = 689 689 39,707

i
i

Unallocated corporate expenses /R AEE (58,762) (58,762) - - - (58762
Unallocated finance costs FOEHEER (54,787) (54,787) (613)  (55400)
Loss on disposal of an associate & — B/l 2 iR - (39.486) - - - (39486) (39.486) - - - (39.486)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & EA 7l 2 5 - - (19073) - - (19073) (19.073) - - - (19073)
Share of results of associates TEfbBE AR 25 (30.047) 5,000 - - - (25047) (25,047) - - - (25047)
Loss before taxation and gain -~ [RB S i JE oA

(loss) on disposal of BEEHHELZ

discontinued operations i (5 48) A R (122.218) (122,218) 464 (121,754)
Taxation HE (3475) (3475) (558)  (4.033)
Gain (loss) on disposal of HEF AR BT

discontinued operations e 2 ki (518 - - 6 (18577) (18571) (18,571)
Loss for the year BEEH (125,693) (125,693) (18,665) (144,358)
Note: Inter-segment sales were charged at terms determined and agreed BREE - Oy BB TR 2 8 0 i G 1 TN A ]

between group companies. 2 [ R Il 7R AT o
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ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED £ #: 1 45 [ 5 KL A #]

50. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 50. SRR (4E)
Business segments (Cont’d) SR (A7)
2008 —ET)N\F
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
R FHEREEY
Medicine
Golf and and health
Property  Property leisure  Securities products

development investment AT investment  Finance Totdl Motorcycles — H&R Total Consolidated
WEEE  WEOE  REN ERRE 0 BR At R BEER & &R
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
BRI ENTE ENTR kT ENTx N BRI #iTx T Rk

CONSOLIDATED BALANCESHEET S A HRfifi#

AT31STMARCH, 2008 REFRNE
=Y: I |

ASSETS %
Segment assets g 3814 274111 320619 162513 322,178 1402,235 - - - 1,402,235
Interest in a joint venture ReBrEER 14,745 = = = - 48 = = - 478
Tnterest in associates B AT Z R 135,503 = = = - 135503 = = - 135503
Unsecured loans and TR B A i

interest due from associates B RIS 1,077,690 - - - - 1,077,690 1,077,690
Unallocated corporate assets AP ELRE 730820 730,820
Consolidated total assets GREEMMH 3,360,993 3,360,993
LIABILITIES fifk
Segment liabilities AELE 885 5168 58250 920 3 65,299 - - - 65059
Unallocated corporate liabilities FARbEAR 1,445,557 1,445,557
Consolidated total liabilities GhERYE 1,510,816 1,510,816
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Annual Report 2008-2009 4E

50.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 50. ¥R (A
Business segments (Cont’d) SEF AR ()
2008 ZET)\4E
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
bo e TR

Medicine

Property Golf and and health

develop-  Property  leisure  Securities Segment Motor-  products

ment investment KK investment  Finance total - Unallocated Toul oyl BER Total Consolidated
YRR MERE OREM EREE BE MBS ROR & R ERER & &a
HKS'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000
BT T N ERTr T BETx ENTx B x W #Tx #FTx #lTx

OTHER INFORMATION KR
Depreciation of property, plant ERE 1

and equipment HlhirE 20 - 14882 - - 1490 786 15,688 - 1,881 1881 17,569
Amortisation of prepaid lease RfHE L2

payments of leasehold land R o - - - - -8 - 10 0 229
Amortisation of premium on gLz

prepaid lease payments of TSR (R

leasehold land - - 2914 - - 2914 - 2914 - - - 2914
Allowance for inventories TSl - - - - - - - - A 1 T A [ A 1
Loss on disposal of property, HEE  BER

plant and equipment Rl - - 7 - - 7 3 110 - 17 17 17
Allowance for bad and IR

doubtful debts - - 1441 - - 1441 - 1,441 - 360 360 1,801
Tncrease in fair value of FATLEFIRRAA

financial assets at fair value B AMEREAT

through profit or loss st - - 10318 - - 10318 - 10318 - - - 10318
Tncrease in fair value of derivatives WA RAZ

embedded in convertible bonds firk TEA T = - - = = - 19 194 = = - 194
Capital additions HAS 958 - % - /1 T (1 -0 T 3933
Equity-settled share-based IRHES AR

payment expenses S0 5 = = = = = = 8342 834 = = - 8
Gain on disposal of e

available-for-sales investments B - - - 60752 - - - 6073 - - -0
Dividend income on Ak

available-for-sales investments HREMA - = = 426 = = = 426 = = = 426
Geographical segments H it 4338
The Group’s operations are principally located in Macau, Hong Kong AR 2R EEAR T - FHs R
and the PRC. The Group’s administrative functions are carried out in I o AR B AT EURBE A IR - &
Macau, Hong Kong and the PRC. W K AT o
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(BREZZFIF=ZH=1T—HIEFE)

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 s 25 45 |5

50.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 50. ¥R (A
Geographical segments (Cont’d) i 43 EB (4)
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by N R S AR IR &5 AT AE b A st
geographical market, based on location of customers, irrespective of I 717 355 &) 43 22 Wi g 40 BT (A i 5 A€ T
the origin of the goods: Hh)
Revenue by
geographical market
2l It v 55380 4y
Z Wi
2009 2008
- 2 %2 —EFT)N\E
HK$°000 HK$’000
EWT L BT
Hong Kong HE 24,605 188,549
PRC H 49,459 89,657
Macau T 11,356 15,260
Others** HiAthy 7,250 21,786
92,670 315,252
i No single location included in this category constituted 10% or o T HH ) 1 A B — Ay I 15 K A
above of total revenue from sales to all external customers. f SN2 B P e s 10%.2% LA
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment DATR 2 48 65 7 BT AE b [ 1 43 2 40 F K
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment analysed by 28 MR TAI DA B B 2~ W B et
the geographical area in which the assets are located: M
Carrying amount of Additions to property,
segment assets plant and equipment
23 OB e e i U K/ERE L VT ]
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEUE CTTE ZERUE CITTAF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T BT W T T
Segment assets 53 HB
Macau M 1,308,034 1,375,889 - -
Hong Kong i 1,001,926 607,606 4,624 710
PRC [ 376,827 374,277 6,532 37,685
Others oAl 78,386 122,153 - =
2,765,173 2,479,925 11,156 38,395
Other corporate assets HAth s 7 & 816,197 881,068 4,688 918
3,581,370 3,360,993 15,844 39,313
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Annual Report 2008-2009 4E

Year ended 31st March,
BRE=ZA=14—HIEEE
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
CEFHE CFEAE CFRLE CFRAE CRBAN
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EHTT W% T  Ww%To  w%To BB

Revenue & 379,396 842,256 507,152 181,944 92,670
Profit (loss) before tax BB RT F (B518) 14,085 (70,435) 84,156 (140,325)  (462,285)
Income tax expenses A5 BB 5 (1,823) (2,657) (10,055) (4,033) 469
Profit (loss) for the year AR (8 12,262 (73,092) 74,101 (144,358)  (461,816)
Attributable to: TFHIALRE -
Equity holders of the Company RAFIRER RN 12,262 (72,960) 79,091 (141,853) (461,816)
Minority interests DR RS = (132) (4,990) (2,505) -
12,262 (73,092) 74,101 (144358)  (461,816)
At 31st March,
REA=1—H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

CEFRE CFENE CEELE CFEAE CSBIK
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
BETE WML TR BNTE  WWT

Total assets A 478,513 1,401,214 3,382,100 3,360,993 3,581,370
Total liabilities e fE (229,709) (955,381)  (1,710,280)  (1,510,816)  (1,572,134)

248,804 445,833 1,671,820 1,850,177 2,009,236

Equity attributable to equity E/NEiL 1 ETEE DN
holders of the Company JRE A A 248,804 445017 1,621,639 1842998 2,002,051
Minority interests DB SRR £ = 816 50,181 7,179 7,185

248,804 445,833 1,671,820 1,850,177 2,009,236
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
FEY MR

ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED 1 s 25 45 |5

Group’s
Approximate Stage of ownership
Location gross floor area Use completion AL
bk B &Y 3 2 i jif7 TR ZPihhE
(Sq. ft.)
SFLN

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (R R IE S

First floor, 9C, 10C, 22B, 22C, 23C, 25C 8,275 Commercial Completed 100%
Talon Tower and residential B
38 Connaught Road West EREE
Hong Kong
PR T i VG 38 TR e 42 i 2 —
9C ~ 10C ~ 22B ~ 22C ~ 23C J25C

44 residential units at Edificio Comercial 57,432 Residential Completed 100%
Zhu Kuan Mansion, Avenida Xian Xing Hai i€ BV
nos. 81-121, Rua de Londres nos. 148-254,
Avenida do Governador Jaime Silverio Marques
nos. 80-120 and Rua de Madrid nos. 147-225,
DL VR I B8 11215 >
T 148-254%5 >
VA IR A K B .80- 1205
FE A 15147-205%%
RILKE 2 A4 BB LA

15 residential units and 15 car parking spaces 37,097 Residential Completed 100%
Pearl on the Lough, Ilha da Taipa, fFE T
junto a Estrada Nordeste da Taipa Aterro
da Baia de Pac On, Macau
PR R T AL
POS Hb B 1 P I 1 6
Z ISR EE A
K15

Shop Space on G/F, 8,781 Residential Completed 100%
Cockloft and the Whole of Front Terrace, £ B339
Flat A on 1/F and Flat Roof, Flat B on
1/F and Flat Roof, Flats A and B on 2/F,

Flats A and B on 3/F, Flats A and B on 4/F,
Flat A on 5/F and Portion A of the Main Roof,
No. 7 Moreton Terrace, Hong Kong

Vs EVE LT S T R IR
BMAE - —MAZRTA - —#BE
JoF6 > ZHARBE - —#AKBE
PEAKBE » HHAZE K EEKBAT I

Nos. 19 — 21 Shelter Street, Hong Kong 16,300 Residential Completed 100%
V(5 R 19-219% e R34

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT TR S

Nos. 703 and 705 29,000 (Gross site area Retailing Undergoing 100%

Nathan Road, Kowloon approximately 2,432 sq. ft.) T demolition
JURERHOET03 K 70545 CURRTERE « #52,432°F 7790 e

Junto Atewo Da Concudia 8,000,000 (Gross site area Residential, Commercial ~ Planning 35.5%
Estrada De Seac Pai Van approximately 600,000 sq. ft.) and Hotel FiEiks
Lote “A” to “0”. S. Francisco (MAETERS © 41600,0007-H)  HE -~ FEELE
Xavier Colraue, Macao
LA P B B 7 4% 4 A M B Z Ot B
i 8 B B SR [

156



ITCEE EEE L NS0
ITC PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED

Unit 3102, 31/F., Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong
7 P IR B RO 129 2 B AR AT H D 3 143102




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告書
	董事及高級管理人員履歷
	董事會報告書
	企業管治報告書
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合損益表
	綜合資產負債表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	主要物業附表
	封底

